
 
 

 

 
To: All Members of the Council 

  

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN, 12 August 2014 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 

 

 The Members of the COUNCIL are requested to meet in Council Chamber - Town 
House on WEDNESDAY, 20 AUGUST 2014 at 10.30am. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
JANE G. MACEACHRAN 

HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 Admission of Burgesses   
 

2 Members are requested to agree that any exempt business on this agenda be 
considered with the press and public excluded   
 

3 Requests for Deputations   
 

 MINUTES OF COUNCIL 

 

4(a) Minute of Meeting of Council of 25 June - for approval (circulated separately)   
 

 BUSINESS STATEMENT, MOTIONS LIST AND OTHER MINUTES 

 

5(a) Business Statement  (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 REFERRALS FROM COMMITTEES IN TERMS OF STANDING ORDER 36(3) 

 

6 None to date   
 

 GENERAL BUSINESS 

 

7(a) Organisational Review (Phase Two)  (Pages 11 - 62) 
 

7(b) Committee Structures  (Pages 63 - 118) 
 

7(c) Camping in Designated Places Update  (Pages 119 - 122) 
 

7(d) SIP New Build Housing Budget  (Pages 123 - 134) 
 

7(e) International Trade Overseas Travel  (Pages 135 - 142) 
 

 MOTIONS 

 

8(a) Councillor Thomson   

  “That this Council: 
  
(1) Restates its commitment to the Local Authority Community Covenant        

which ensures that Aberdeen City Council supports the local armed forces 
community. 

(2) Recognises the enormous contribution that the Armed Forces make and 
the sacrifices that the Armed Forces and their families make every day for 
the safety and security of our country. 

(3) To recognise the contribution made by our Armed Forces agrees to 
request a report examining what more Aberdeen City Council can do to 
support our armed forces and veterans community across the services it 
provides. 

(4) Instructs officers to engage with neighbouring authorities on their allocation 
of housing to members of the Armed Forces. 

(5) Instructs officers to meet with Legion Scotland and to establish a protocol 
for an ongoing relationship between the Council, Legion Scotland and 
other pertinent organisations. 

(6) Congratulates and welcomes the Armed Services Advice Project  (ASAP) 
provided by the Scottish Citizens Advice Bureau which is a focal point for 
the city’s armed forces community for access to advice, information and 
support.” 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

8(b) Councillor Cameron   

  "That this Council, as a matter of urgency, instructs Council officers to 
investigate the feasibility of the former Summerhill Academy site in Stronsay 
Drive to become the preferred site for the construction of the ASN School." 
 
 

 BUSINESS THE COUNCIL MAY WISH TO CONSIDER IN PRIVATE 

 

9(a) Accelerate Aberdeen - Digital Connectivity Update  (Pages 143 - 154) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  

 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Martyn 
Orchard, tel. (52)3097 or email morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
 

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 
 

2
0

 A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
0

1
4

 
 P

le
a
s

e
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
c

o
n

ta
in

s
 a

 n
o

te
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

s
tr

u
c

te
d

 f
o

r 
s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 C

o
u

n
c

il
. 

A
ll

 o
th

e
r 

a
c

ti
o

n
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

s
tr

u
c

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
, 
a

s
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

. 
 

  

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

D
u

e
  

R
e

p
o

rt
 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

1
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

0
6

.0
3

.1
3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
6
 

 

W
e
lf

a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 
a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 s

te
p
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
 

p
o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

a
n
d
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 

in
 

d
u
e
 

c
o
u
rs

e
 

a
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

e
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

 

T
h
e

 
S

c
o

tt
is

h
 

W
e
lf
a

re
 

F
u

n
d

 
h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 a

n
d
 

is
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

w
e

ll 
a

n
d

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

d
e

a
d

lin
e

s
 

fo
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

to
 

w
e

lf
a

re
 

re
fo

rm
 

a
re

 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 

fo
r 

la
te

r 
th

is
 

y
e

a
r.

 
T

h
e
 

H
u

b
 j

o
in

t 
p

ro
je

c
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 D

W
P

 i
s
 

n
o

w
 

o
p

e
n

 
a
n

d
 

b
e

in
g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

c
o

m
in

g
 

w
e

e
k
s
. 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 r
e

a
c
h
e

d
 w

it
h

 
T

h
e

 
C

it
iz

e
n

s
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 

B
u

re
a
u
 

re
g
a

rd
in

g
 
th

e
 
b

a
s
is

 
fo

r 
a

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

le
v
e

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 

C
la

im
s
 

fo
r 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 

to
 

b
e

 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
e

d
 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 a
g
re

e
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

T
h

e
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
h

a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

n
d

 t
o

o
k
 u

p
 h

is
 p

o
s
t 

o
n
 

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3
. 

  A
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

re
p

o
rt

 
w

a
s
 

n
o

te
d

 
b

y
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
n

 2
1

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
3

. 
A

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

re
p

o
rt

 w
a

s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 
B

u
lle

ti
n

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

4
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

4
. 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

A
s
 a

n
d

 
w

h
e

n
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 

 

Agenda Item 5(a)

Page 1



 
2

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

D
u

e
  

R
e

p
o

rt
 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

2
. 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

1
2

.1
1

.0
9
 

A
rt

ic
le

 2
2
 

  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 

F
a
ir

e
r 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 F
u

n
d

 
 T

h
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 
in

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 
th

e
 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

tw
ic

e
 y

e
a
rl
y
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 i

n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 A

lli
a
n
c
e
 

(n
o
w

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
) 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

F
a
ir
e
r 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

F
u
n
d
 (

n
o
w

 F
a
ir
e
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 F

u
n
d
).

 
  

T
h

is
 i
te

m
 n

o
w

 f
a

lls
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 r
e
m

it
 

o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 d
is

b
a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
P

o
lic

y
 

a
n

d
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 
 

 T
h
e

 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 
th

e
 
la

s
t 

s
ix

 
m

o
n
th

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

re
p
o

rt
 

a
t 

it
s
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

4
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

4
. 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 

1
7

.1
2

.1
4
 

 

3
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

2
1

.0
8

.1
3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 9
 

 

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
S

h
o

rt
-t

e
rm

 
H

a
lt

in
g

 S
it

e
s
 f

o
r 

G
y
p

s
ie

s
/T

ra
v
e
ll
e
rs

 
a
n

d
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
B

y
e
la

w
 

R
e
g

a
rd

in
g

 
C

a
m

p
in

g
 i
n

 D
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 A

re
a
s
 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

d
e
la

y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

S
c
o
tt
is

h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 

a
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

b
y
e
la

w
 
to

 
p
ro

h
ib

it
 
c
a
m

p
in

g
 

o
n
 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
 

a
re

a
s
 

s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 

p
u
b
lic

 
p
la

c
e
s
. 

 In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(a
) 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 a
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

w
it
h
 

c
o
s
t 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 

c
o
s
ts

 
fo

r 
a
 

s
h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

 
h
a
lt
in

g
 

s
it
e
 

a
t 

H
o
w

e
s
 

R
o
a
d
; 

(b
) 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
p
re

p
a
re

 
a
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 
d
e
ta

ils
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

tt
e
n

d
in

g
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

o
f 

th
e

 
H

e
a
th

ry
fo

ld
 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 

G
ro

u
p

 
a
n

d
 
N

o
rt

h
fi
e

ld
 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

to
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
, 

s
c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 
to

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

th
e

 
H

o
w

e
s
 

R
o

a
d

 s
it
e

. 
 A

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

p
re

p
a

re
d

 
o

n
c
e

 
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 
a

 
d

ra
ft

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

d
e

s
ig

n
 

fo
r 

th
e

 
s
it
e
 

a
n

d
 

a
n

y
 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 t

o
o

. 
T

h
e

 A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a
m

 a
re

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 

to
 

id
e
n

ti
fy

 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
a

n
d
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
it
e

s
 b

o
th

 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 
a

n
d

 p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r.
  
 

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 a
t 

it
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

4
 

M
a

y
 

2
0

1
4

, 
a

g
re

e
d
 

to
 

m
o

v
e
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 

E
v
e

ry
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

2
0

.0
8

.1
4
 

Page 2



 
3

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

D
u

e
  

R
e

p
o

rt
 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

o
f 

c
o
s
ti
n
g
s
 (

c
a
p
it
a
l 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
) 

fo
r 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
; 

(c
) 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

th
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

s
tr

o
n
g
 

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
in

io
n
s
 w

e
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
; 

a
n
d
 (

d
) 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

s
e
a
rc

h
e
s
 

w
it
h
 

a
 

v
ie

w
 

to
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
it
e
 
o
r 

a
 m

o
re

 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
re

p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 t

o
 e

v
e
ry

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

r 
o
th

e
rw

is
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta

ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

S
c
o
tt
is

h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 
th

e
 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

b
y
e
la

w
 

a
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
o
th

e
rw

is
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
s
. 
 

 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 

b
y
e

la
w

 
a

s
 

a
p

p
e

n
d
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 A

 r
e

p
o

rt
 i
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

g
e

n
d

a
. 
 

 

4
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

2
1

.0
8

.1
3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
7
 

    

S
tr

e
e
t 

B
e
g

g
in

g
 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 
a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

d
e
la

y
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta

ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

S
c
o
tt
is

h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 

a
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

b
y
e
la

w
 t

o
 p

ro
h
ib

it
 s

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
g
g
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 t

o
 e

v
e
ry

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
n
 
th

e
 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 
o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta

ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

S
c
o
tt
is

h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 

 

T
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il,

 a
t 

it
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
2
5
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

, 
re

s
o

lv
e

d
:-

 
(i
) 

to
 

n
o

te
 

th
e

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 
o
f 

th
e
 

S
N

P
 S

c
o
tt

is
h

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

to
 

re
je

c
t 

th
e

 
re

q
u

e
s
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 
P

ro
h

ib
it
io

n
 

o
f 

B
e

g
g
in

g
 

in
 

D
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 
A

re
a

s
 

B
y
e

la
w

s
 

2
0

1
4

 a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h
e

 l
e

tt
e

r 
d

a
te

d
 2

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
4

; 
(i
i)

 
in

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 
S

c
o

tt
is

h
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
d

e
c
lin

in
g
 

to
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

a
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

y
e

la
w

, 
to

 i
n

s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 

to
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 

to
 

th
e

 
u

s
e

 
o
f 

th
e
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 

0
8

.1
0

.1
4
 

 

Page 3



 
4

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

D
u

e
  

R
e

p
o

rt
 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 
b

y
e

la
w

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 
in

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
it
h

 
P

o
lic

e
 

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

 
a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
; 

a
n

d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
to

 
w

ri
te

 
to

 
th

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 S

c
o

tt
is

h
 M

in
is

te
r 

s
e

e
k
in

g
 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 
n

o
n

-
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 
to

 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 

to
 

ta
c
k
le

 s
tr

e
e

t 
b
e

g
g
in

g
. 

 
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
a

re
 

n
o

w
 

lia
is

in
g
 

w
it
h

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

to
 

e
x
p

lo
re

 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
. 

 
O

n
c
e

 
p

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

o
p
ti
o

n
s
 

h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

, 
th

e
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

o
f 

th
e
 

S
c
o

tt
is

h
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

s
o

u
g
h

t.
 

 

5
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

3
1

.1
0

.1
3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

 

C
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 B

o
a
rd

 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

C
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

B
o
a
rd

 
a
n
d
 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

th
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 
to

 
re

p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 t

o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
t 

it
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

n
 2

5
 

J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

w
it
h
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t(

s
) 

to
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

te
 

th
e
 

c
it
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
, 

a
n
d
 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 

o
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
a
c
h
 c

y
c
le

. 
  

T
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il,

 a
t 

it
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
2
5
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

, 
re

s
o

lv
e

d
:-

 
(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it
y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 B
o

a
rd

; 
(i
i)

 
to

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

n
in

e
 

m
o

n
th

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

fo
r 

th
e

 
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 
C

it
y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

M
a

s
te

rp
la

n
 

a
n
d

 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
; 

a
n

d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

 
th

e
 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
 

o
f 

th
e

 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t 
o
f 

T
e
n

d
e

re
r 

B
, 

in
 

lin
e

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 
o
f 

th
e

 
C

it
y
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

E
v
e

ry
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

 

Page 4



 
5

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

D
u

e
  

R
e

p
o

rt
 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

C
e

n
tr

e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 B
o

a
rd

. 
 M

in
u

te
s
 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

o
f 

th
e

 
C

it
y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 B

o
a

rd
 w

ill
 b

e
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 w

h
e

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 

6
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

3
1

.1
0

.1
3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
7
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 
- 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
d
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

s
ix

 
m

o
n
th

ly
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 

 

T
h
e

 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 
th

e
 
la

s
t 

s
ix

 
m

o
n
th

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

re
p
o

rt
 

a
t 

it
s
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

4
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

4
. 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 

1
7

.1
2

.1
4
 

 

7
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

0
6

.0
2

.1
4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 2
 

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 
S

p
o

rt
s
 

V
il
la

g
e
 

- 
S

p
o

rt
s
 

P
it

c
h

 a
n

d
 A

n
c
il
la

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
C

u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 S

p
o
rt

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 

to
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
it
h
 

a
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

to
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 
th

e
 
s
p
o
rt

s
 
p
it
c
h
 
a
n
d
 

a
n
c
ill

a
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

th
e
 
N

o
rt

h
 
E

a
s
t 

w
it
h
 
a
 
tr

u
e
 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 
s
ty

le
 v

ill
a
g
e
. 
 

 

In
it
ia

l 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
p
o

rt
s
 p

it
c
h
e

s
 

o
n

 
th

e
 
s
it
e

 
a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n
 

S
p

o
rt

s
 V

ill
a

g
e

 a
re

 u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

T
h

e
 

n
e

x
t 

s
ta

g
e

s
 

w
ill

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 
g
ro

u
n

d
 
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

s
ti
n

g
 

m
a

s
te

rp
la

n
 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
. 

It
 

is
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 c
o

m
e
 

to
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

in
 a

u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1

4
. 

  

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
In

te
g
ra

te
d

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

2
5

.0
6

.1
4
 

0
8

.1
0

.1
4
 

8
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

0
5

.0
3

.1
4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 2
1
 

B
ro

a
d

 
S

tr
e
e
t 

C
iv

ic
 

S
q

u
a
re

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 
a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 (

1
) 

to
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
a
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
 C

 -
 

fu
ll 

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

ro
a
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

U
p
p
e
rk

ir
k
g
a
te

 
a
n
d
 

Q
u
e
e
n
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

- 
b
e
s
t 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 

In
 

lig
h

t 
o
f 

th
e

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 
o
f 

th
e
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t

o
 h

o
ld

 a
 

H
e

a
ri
n

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 M
a

ri
s
c
h

a
l 

S
q
u

a
re

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,
 

it
 

w
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

p
re

m
a

tu
re

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
 

O
rd

e
r 

in
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 o
n
 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

, 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

2
0

.0
8

.1
4
 

O
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
d
 

Page 5



 
6

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

D
u

e
  

R
e

p
o

rt
 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

o
p
ti
o
n
 

is
 

re
lia

n
t 

o
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

tr
a
ff
ic

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
; 

(2
) 

to
 

in
s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ra
ft
 T

ra
ff
ic

 R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 

O
rd

e
r 

w
it
h
in

 
s
ix

 
m

o
n
th

s
; 

a
n
d
 
(3

) 
to

 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
a
ls

o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 

w
it
h
in

 s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 
y
e
a
r 

tr
a
ff
ic

 a
n
d
 
a
ir
 
q
u
a
lit

y
 

m
o
d
e
l 

te
s
ti
n
g
 

fo
r 

2
0
2
3
; 

a
n
d
 

(4
) 

to
 

in
s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 
th

e
 

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

re
o
p
e
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

a
s
tl
e
g
a
te

 
to

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 Q

u
e
e
n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
t 

th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
W

e
s
t 

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

th
e
ir
 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 

in
 

th
e
 

a
b
o
v
e
 

re
p
o
rt

, 
a
n
d
 e

n
te

r 
in

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

M
u
s
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 
w

it
h
 

re
g
a
rd

 
to

 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
P

ro
v
o
s
t 

S
k
e
n
e
’s

 
H

o
u
s
e
 f
ro

m
 B

ro
a
d
 S

tr
e
e
t.
 

 

th
e

re
fo

re
, 

b
e

 
c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

a
t 

a
 

fu
tu

re
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
e
e

ti
n

g
. 

  
 

9
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

1
4

.0
5

.1
4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
7
 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

 T
h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 
th

e
 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

to
p
 

ti
e
r 

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 

m
o
d
e
l 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

fi
lli

n
g
 t

o
p
 t

ie
r 

p
o
s
ts

, 
a
n
d
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

C
h
ie

f 
S

o
c
ia

l W
o
rk

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

b
e
 p

la
c
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

n
o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 e
m

a
n
a
ti
n
g
 f

ro
m

 
p
h
a
s
e
 

tw
o
 

o
f 

th
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 

w
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 
to

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

la
te

r 
in

 
th

e
 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

h
a
s
e
 t

w
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
o
u
ld

 
a
ls

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

a
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

to
 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 

n
e
w

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

g
e

n
d

a
. 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
2

0
.0

8
.1

4
 

  

2
0

.0
8

.1
4
 

Page 6



 
7

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

D
u

e
  

R
e

p
o

rt
 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

1
0

.
C

o
u

n
c
il 

1
4

.0
5

.1
4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 2
4
 

 

B
ig

 N
o

is
e
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 
a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 t
o
 l
ia

is
e
 

w
it
h
 a

ll 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 B

ig
 

N
o
is

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

ity
, 

it
s
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 

a
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

in
to

 a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

o
rk

 
a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
is

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 

to
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
  

T
h
e

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 

a
re

 a
d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 t

h
is

 m
a

tt
e

r 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 

o
n

 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
re

v
is

e
d

 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

 T
h
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 
s
ig

n
e

d
 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 

th
e

 
C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 

S
is

te
m

a
 

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

; 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 B
ig

 N
o

is
e
 

T
o

rr
y
 u

p
 a

n
d

 r
u
n

n
in

g
 n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r.

 
  S

is
te

m
a

 
S

c
o
tl
a

n
d

 
h

a
s
 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

e
d
 

fo
r 

a
 

T
e

a
m

 
L

e
a

d
e
r 

a
n

d
 

a
n
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r;
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 

a
re

 s
c
h
e

d
u

le
d

 i
n
 e

a
rl
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

H
e

a
d

 
T

e
a

c
h
e

rs
 

o
f 

th
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

th
e
 l

a
tt
e

r 
w

h
o

 w
ill

 b
e

 o
n
 

th
e

 
in

te
rv

ie
w

 
p

a
n

e
l.
  

T
h

e
s
e
 

a
re

 
c
ru

c
ia

l 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

th
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 

In
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
c
a
n

d
id

a
te

s
 
is

 
p

la
n

n
e
d
 

fo
r 

O
c
to

b
e

r/
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r/

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r.

 
  A

d
v
e

rt
s
 

fo
r 

m
u

s
ic

ia
n

s
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

p
la

c
e

d
 
la

te
r 

in
 
th

e
 
c
a
le

n
d

a
r 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 

S
is

te
m

a
 

S
c
o
tl
a

n
d

 
w

ill
 

o
p

e
n
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 

in
 

M
a

rc
h

, 
w

it
h

 
a

 
v
ie

w
 

to
 

a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n
ts

 
b
e

in
g
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 
in

 
M

a
y
, 

w
it
h

 
in

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
. 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
2

0
.0

8
.1

4
 

0
8

.1
0

.1
4
 

Page 7



 
8

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

D
u

e
  

R
e

p
o

rt
 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

1
1

.
C

o
u

n
c
il 

1
4

.0
5

.1
4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 3
0
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
a
re

n
ti

n
g

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
re

p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
a
re

n
ti
n
g
 P

o
lic

y
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
5
. 

  

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
In

te
g
ra

te
d

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

5
 

 

1
2

.
C

o
u

n
c
il 

1
4

.0
5

.1
4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 3
2
 

  

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 
E

x
h

ib
it

io
n

 
a
n

d
 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

(A
E

C
C

) 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
fi
n
a
lis

e
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

m
in

im
u
m

 c
o
s
t 

to
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

s
u
c
h
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
t 

it
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i

n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

 

T
h
e

 A
E

C
C

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r.
 

T
h
e

 
re

a
s
o

n
 

fo
r 

th
is

 
is

 
to

 
a

llo
w

 
o
ff

ic
e

rs
 
m

o
re

 
ti
m

e
 
to

 
e

n
s
u

re
 
th

a
t 

th
e

 
fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 

a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

it
ie

s
 

s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 

th
e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
re

 f
u

lly
 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
e
fo

re
 

th
e

y
 

a
re

 
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 

to
 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

 
  

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

0
8

.1
0

.1
4
 

1
7

.1
2

.1
4
 

1
3

.
C

o
u

n
c
il 

2
5

.0
6

.1
4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

L
e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

n
o
te

d
 

w
it
h
 

d
is

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

h
a
d
 
o
n
ly

 
b
e
e
n
 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

fo
r 

a
 f

e
w

 
m

o
n
th

s
; 

a
n
d
 
in

 
lig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
d
e
la

y
 
in

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 
th

e
 
n
e
w

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

o
f 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

fr
o
m

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
th

a
t 

th
e
y
 
a
re

 
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 
w

it
h
 

th
e
 
n
e
w

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 
a
n
d
 
th

e
 
q
u
a
lit

y
 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

b
e
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

 
in

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

th
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

to
 

re
p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
t 

it
s
 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 
in

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
le

v
e
ls

 o
f 

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 

   

1
7

.1
2

.1
4
 

 

Page 8



 
9

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

  C
o

u
n

c
il

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c

is
io

n
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

D
u

e
  

R
e

p
o

rt
 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 
in

 
te

rm
s
 

o
f 

e
x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
 

o
n
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

le
g
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 

  

1
4

.
C

o
u

n
c
il 

2
5

.0
6

.1
4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
5
 

  

S
h

a
d

o
w

 I
n

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

 B
o

a
rd

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
d
 

to
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

a
 

S
h
a
d
o
w

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 J

o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 f
ro

m
 

1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
th

e
 S

h
a
d
o
w

 
In

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 J

o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

. 
  

 
T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
- 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

0
8

.1
0

.1
4
 

 

1
5

.
C

o
u

n
c
il 

2
5

.0
6

.1
4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
7
 

 

J
o

in
t 

In
s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 
C

it
y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 A
re

a
 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

th
e
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

to
 

s
u
b
m

it
 

a
 

re
p
o
rt

 
to

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
tt
in

g
 

o
u
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

  

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
In

te
g
ra

te
d

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
- 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 

2
0

1
5
 

 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Council 
 
DATE  20 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Angela Scott 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Organisational Review (Phase Two) 
 
REPORT NUMBER: OCE/14/034 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED:       Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of the report is to further develop the organisation structure approved 
by the Council on 14 May 2014 by recommending changes to the second tier level 
(i.e. Heads of Service). 
 
The report provides the platform for the third and final stage of the restructuring 
process, which will deal with structural arrangements below second tier level. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that the Council: 
 
a) Approves the second tier structural model as set out in Appendix 1. 
 
b) Instructs the Chief Executive and her respective Directors to report phase 3 

structural proposals to the appropriate Committee within two Committee cycles 
from the date of today’s meeting, where possible. 

 
c) Notes that the process for filling posts will be that which the Council approved at 

its meeting on 14 May 2014. 
 

d) Approves the establishment of the necessary number of Appointment Panels 
comprising nine members in total (3+3+1+1+1) to appoint to vacant Head of 
Service posts in accordance with the process agreed for filling posts which are 
new roles or where no job matches can be established and to delegate powers 
to the Appointment Panels to agree all matters relating to the recruitment 
process, including role profile, person specification and salary, and to appoint a 
Convener from within their membership. In addition approves the establishment 
of a further Appointment Panel with the same composition to appoint to the 
vacant post of Director of Corporate Governance, delegating powers to agree 
the matters relating to the recruitment process as for Heads of Service, and to 

Agenda Item 7(a)

Page 11



2 
 

appoint, as part of the membership, the Convener of Finance, Policy and 
Resources as Convener of this Appointment Panel. 

e) Approves the appointment of external recruitment consultants for the purposes 
of supporting the recruitment to vacant Director of Corporate Governance and 
Heads of Service posts where appropriate and: 
 

• invokes Standing Order 1(6)(a) of the Council’s Standing Orders relating 
to Contracts and Procurement to dis-apply the requirements of Standing 
Order 5, thereby allowing a contract to be entered into with the 
recruitment consultants to support the recruitment process for these posts 
without the need to undertake a competitive tendering exercise; 

• notes the expenditure associated with these recruitment exercises, which 
is estimated to be no more than £100,000, and that these costs be met 
from contingencies. 

 
f) Agrees to suspend standing order 22(1) and amend the title of the Director of 

Communities and Infrastructure to Director of Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure and amend the Service title from Communities and Infrastructure 
to Communities, Housing and Infrastructure, consistent with the proposed title of 
the service’s parent committee. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

3.1 Whilst no direct financial savings emanate from phase 2 of the restructuring, (owing 
to the fact that the proposed number of Heads of Service matches the existing 
number) recurring establishment savings of approximately £290,000 resulted from 
phase 1 (although the full extent of the savings will not be realised until August 
2016 by which time two current Directors will have retired from the Council and their 
substantive posts disestablished). 
 

3.2 During the 2014/15 financial year the Council recruited to the post of Chief 
Executive. The budget allocation held within HR for Chief Official recruitment caters 
for only one appointment. Therefore additional monies need to be identified and 
approved for this recruitment and selection process. With the proposal of all posts 
being advertised together there will be some economies in the placing of one advert 
in the national press.  It is estimated the costs for this recruitment process (including 
appointing external recruitment consultants, running the assessment centre and the 
purchase and administration of psychometric tests, candidate expenses etc) should 
be no more than £100,000. It is recommended this unbudgeted cost be met from 
Council contingencies. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 The major direct implication emanating from the recommended changes to the 
Council’s management structure is a requirement to amend appropriately the 
Council’s committee structure. 
 

4.2 Report 7(b) on today’s Council agenda proposes an amended committee structure. 
 

4.3 It is requested that Standing Order 1(6) (a) of the Council’s Standing Orders relating 
to Contracts and Procurement be invoked to allow a new contract to be entered into 

Page 12



3 
 

with Aspen People Ltd without the need to seek four quotes in accordance with 
Standing Order 6 or to undertake a competitive tendering exercise in accordance 
with Standing Order 5.  It is estimated that the value of the Aspen People Ltd 
contract will be in the region of £50,000 for this recruitment.  Ordinarily, where the 
Council wants to put in place any contract for services with a value below £60,000, 
the Standing Orders require four written quotes to be sought.  Where the estimated 
value of the contract is above £60,000, a competitive tendering exercise must be 
undertaken.  Matters are slightly complicated here by virtue of aggregation.   
 

4.4 Whilst the estimated expenditure is considerably less than the current EU threshold 
for services contracts (£173,934), the Council has to take account of the 
aggregation rules, both in terms of its own Standing Orders but more importantly in 
terms of compliance with the Public Contracts (Scotland) Regulations 2012 (“the 
Regs”).  Regulation 8(11) requires that, where the Council is letting a number of 
contracts which are part of or arise from a “single requirement”, then the value of 
each contract needs to be aggregated and where the aggregate value exceeds the 
EU threshold then each constituent/individual contract should be the subject of a 
tender which is EU compliant 
 

4.5 The “single requirement” here is the provision of recruitment support/consultancy 
services.  Over the last year the Council has expended money on the filling of 
vacancies including the Directors of Social Care & Wellbeing and Corporate 
Governance, Head of Finance and the Chief Executive.  When these costs are 
aggregated the expenditure within this report takes the Council beyond the £60,000 
limit and closer to the EU threshold.  In these circumstances, the need for 
transparency and equal treatment increases and, to negate any procurement risk, 
the Council should undertake some form of competitive exercise in order to comply 
with its EU Treaty requirements of “a degree of advertising and competition”.  
However, this would take a number of months and it is believed that there is a 
greater risk in delaying the appointment process than in failing to comply with 
Regulation 8(21).  Further, this would also mean that the Council would lose the 
savings from advertising all the Head of Service posts at the same time. 
 

4.6 As mentioned above, in these circumstances the Council would normally undertake 
a competitive procurement in terms of Standing Order 5.  However, if the Council is 
satisfied that there are special circumstances to exempt any contract from these 
requirements, Standing Order 1(6) (a) can be invoked.    
 

4.7 It is felt that this current arrangement justifies invoking Standing Order 1(6) (a), 
thereby enabling the Council to set aside the need for compliance with the 
tendering requirements of Standing Order 5, by virtue of special circumstances as 
there is a time pressure to commence the recruitment process as soon as possible.  
Tendering would delay this process.  Furthermore, Aspen People Ltd has supported 
the Council in all Chief Official appointments for the previous 5 years.  It should also 
be noted that officers have commenced work, in conjunction with colleagues in 
Legal Services and the Central Procurement Unit, with a view to retendering the 
recruitment consultancy/support services. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



4 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1  The Council approved an amended top tier structure at its meeting of 14 May 2014.  
In essence this resulted in a five Director model being replaced by a ‘3+1’ model i.e. 
three substantive posts of Director and a shared Chief Officer post with NHS 
Grampian to manage the nationally driven integrated agenda for the NHS and 
Social Care. 
 

5.2 As outlined within the phase 1 report, upon conclusion of the Director matching 
process, the CMT developed proposals for a second tier structure to match the 
functional reconfiguration resulting from phase 1. 

 
5.3 The second tier structure has been underpinned by the same nine principles which 

were used to develop phase 1 proposals.  These are attached as Appendix 3 to this 
report. 

 
5.4 Clearly the same internal and external drivers for change which acted as catalysts 

for phase 1 proposals have been similarly influential during phase 2.  These were 
described in detail within the phase 1 report and can be summarised as follows: 
 

5.4.1 External drivers for change 
 
- The Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014 
- The Public Bodies (Joint Working)(Scotland) Act 2014, and 
- The Community Empowerment Bill (2014) 
- The Scottish Government Procurement Reform Bill (2014) 

 
5.4.2 Internal drivers for change 

 
- The financial landscape 
- The ‘Smarter City’ vision and the six strategic priorities 
- The need to embrace more fully a ‘Group structure’ approach and to ensure that 

the Council’s relationships with its ‘arms length’ organisations are affected 
positively by actions and ‘behaviours’ consistent with a willingness to collaborate 

- The continuing drive to instill a high performance culture in the organisation, and 
- The feedback generated by the 500 staff who responded to the first phase of the 

exercise.  A number of common themes emerged from this consultative process, 
including the need for: 

 
▫ Greater integration, joined up working and collaboration 
▫ Co-location of related services 
▫ Clear lines of accountability and responsibility 
▫ Structure and processes which allow for the free flow of work and sharing 

of resources 
▫ Role clarity 
▫ The adoption of a ‘one team’ mentality 
▫ Cognisance to be taken of the national picture 
▫ Visible management. 

 
5.5 Wider Organisational Development Context 
 

Page 14



5 
 

5.5.1 Whilst amendments to the organisational structure are being proposed for sound 
reasons and will, it is believed, lead to tangible and sustainable improvements to the 
way in which the Council operates and performs, the challenges facing the 
organisation in the medium to long term will require an unprecedented level of 
transformational change and the organisational development underpinning this 
transformation will involve much more than structural change and re-alignment. 

 
5.5.2 The restructure process is designed to align the organisation’s functions in a more 

logical, efficient and collaborative manner.  However, fundamentally these functions 
are performed by people; people whose behaviours, relationships and ways of 
doing things form the culture of the organisation – or contribute to a series of sub-
cultures which ultimately make up the whole. 

 
5.5.3 Irrespective of the way functions are realigned, if the behaviours and culture remain 

the same the impact of any realignment will be less pronounced than it could have 
been.  The restructure therefore needs to be underpinned by commitment to a 
fundamental change in the way people think and perform at work.  A culture and 
appetite for high performance and outcomes delivery is what we aspire to and 
through this appetite it is hoped to create a prevailing attitude of willingness to 
innovate and do things differently in order that the present workforce are the 
architects of future service delivery. 

 
5.5.4 This, in turn, needs to be based on a well-articulated and widely understood vision 

(currently being developed by the Chief Executive and CMT); an integrated and 
coherent approach to implementing this vision and a genuine acceptance of the 
organisation’s behaviours at all levels in terms of the requirement for: 

 
- Open, honest and frequent communication 
- A customer focused approach which places customers at the heart of what we 

do 
- High standards of professionalism 
- Respect for others and promoting equality through fairness and consistency in 

our approach. 
 
5.5.5 And managers who: 

 
- Accept the need for transformation and encourage creativity and innovation in 

the way we deliver our services 
- Engage with employees, involve them in decisions which affect them and 

encourage their full contribution and participation 
- Plan services and make decisions which focus on an effective and sustainable 

future rather than on short term views 
- Provide genuine leadership and direction 
- Have a collaborative mindset – enabling constructive dialogue and joint 

working with partner organisations.  In particular, the aforementioned desire to 
more fully develop and capitalise on the advantages of a ‘Group structure’ 
approach will be enabled by this particular mindset. 

 
5.5.6 In addition systems need to be in place which integrate the above into day to day 

working life, which set out clearly what people are accountable for and will be held 
accountable against, while at the same time providing the necessary support and 
development. 

Page 15



6 
 

 
5.5.7 A good start has been made in relation to embedding the Council’s core behaviours 

at all organisational levels but there is much more to do.  In order to fulfill the 
aforementioned aspirations, the Council requires to attract, select, develop, 
promote, reward and engage employees who exhibit and advocate our core 
behaviours.  The actions in place, and planned, in order to achieve this will be 
reported on later in the year within the Council’s updated Corporate Workforce Plan. 
 

5.6 Proposed second tier structure 
 
5.6.1 The existing second tier structure comprises 16.5 posts (the Head of Procurement 

being a shared post with Aberdeenshire).  This structure was implemented in 2009 
and has remained largely unaltered since that time (see Appendix 2). 

 
5.6.2 Appendix 1 illustrates the proposed second tier structure, consistent with the ‘3+1’ 

Director model previously approved by the Council.  No change is proposed to the 
total number of second tier posts. 

 
5.6.3 The proposed portfolios associated with each of the posts are illustrated throughout 

the next sections, along with the context and rationale for each set of proposals. 
 

 
5.7 Education and Children’s Services 
 
5.7.1 Our vision for Children’s Services is to put the child and the family at the heart of all 

we do, to deliver the Scottish Government’s pledge to make Scotland ‘the best 
place in the world to grow up’ and for Aberdeen to be the best city in Scotland for 
children to grow up in. 

 
In order to deliver effective services for children we need to ensure we all share 
common principles: 
 
- Our service is the champion for all children in Aberdeen and an active advocate 

on their behalf 
- The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child drives all we do 
- Children and their families are lead partners in all we plan, deliver and support 
- The voice of children and their families is actively sought, listened to and acted 

upon 
- The wellbeing of children is central to all and is at the heart of ‘getting it right for 

every child’ 
- We aim to improve outcomes for all children and in particular to improve 

outcomes for vulnerable children in Aberdeen 
- We are committed to an integrated service that works as a team in the best 

interests of children and their families. 
 
 

 

Page 16



7 
 

Roles for Heads of Service: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Head of Children’s 
Social Work 

 
 
• Looked After and 

Accommodated 
Children 

• Professional Support 

• Family Based Care 

• Children’s Residential 
and Looked After Care 

• Children’s Practice 
(RSW) 

• Children in Need 

• Youth Justice 

• Chief Social Work 
Officer* 

 
*following the transition 

to integrated health and 
social care services 

 

Head of Education 
Services 

 
 
• Schools – Primary, 

Secondary and Special 

• Quality Improvement 

• Curriculum 
Support/Cfe 

• Education ICT 

• CPD 

• Early Years 

• Culture (libraries, 
museums, galleries 
etc) 

• Adventure Aberdeen 

• Adult and Family 
Learning 

• Youth Work  

• Parent Councils 

• School Performance 

 

Head of Inclusion 

 
 
 
• Children with 

Additional Support 
Needs 

• Education Psychology 

• Special Education 
Provision 

• Children’s Rights and 
Pupil Voice 

• Inclusion Review and 
Implementation 

• Specialised and 
Targeted Services 

• Corporate Parenting 

• Family Information 
Services 

• GIRFEC 

 

Head of Policy, 
Performance and 
Resources 

 
• Estates and Asset 

Management 

• Performance and 
Quality Assurance 

• Service Improvement 
and Planning 

• Service Finance 

• Business Continuity  

• Project Development 

• Business Support 
(Facility Management, 
ICT and Infrastructure) 

• Commissioning 

• CYP Plan 

• Integrated Children’s 
Services  

 

 
Rationale 

This will be achieved by the establishment of four services under four Heads of 
Service as detailed below: 
 

5.7.2 Head of Children’s Social Work 
The Children’s Services function, currently in Social Care and Wellbeing, will move 
across to Education and Children’s Services as a total service.  The post of Head of 
Children’s Services will also take on the significant role of the Chief Social Work 
Officer for the Authority following the transitional period. This service is currently 
undergoing a whole service redesign and transformation and is moving into the 
Reclaiming Social Work Model (RSW) of systemic practice from the end of the 
Autumn term. As this is a significant change programme, with its own redesign to 
integrated social work units dedicated to small geographical areas and numbers of 
cases, it is planned that there would be no change to this phased introduction of the 

Director of Education 
and Children’s 

Services 

Head of Children’s 
Social Work 

(CSWO) 

Head of Education 
Services 

Head of Inclusion Head of Policy, 
Performance and 

Resources 

Page 17



8 
 

RSW model. We are also currently involved in an Integrated Children’s Services 
Inspection which will not report until late December and, in order to address any 
outcomes from the inspection, no changes are planned to the existing Children’s 
Services structure until this has been concluded, apart from a move in totality to the 
new Directorate. 
 

5.7.3 Head of Education Services  
The main aim of the Education Service is to raise attainment and improve outcomes 
for all Aberdeen’s children.  The proposed structure supports this aspiration and will 
help to deliver improved outcomes for learners by aligning the teams into more 
focused areas on quality improvement and in providing curriculum support and 
development.  The proposed structure will allow us to deploy our resource in a 
targeted and proportionate way to support schools in raising attainment.  
 
The Head of Education Services also has wider aims, in particular to ensure that 
the quality of life and (life) opportunities in the city contribute to Aberdeen as a 
‘place’ to live, work and learn.  Retaining Culture within the wider Service, and 
within the role of the Head of Education Services, reflects the creativity and 
potential of learners of all ages to contribute to all aspects of city life.  This reflects 
the importance the Council accords to Culture in the longer term.   
 
This ongoing commitment and leadership of the Chief Executive, Corporate Director 
and Head of Service to extending and widening the cultural offer for Aberdeen’s 
citizens remains at the forefront of the Directorate’s aims. 
 

5.7.4 The proposed movement of the Continuing Professional Development team, 
currently in the Performance and Policy team, to the Curriculum team under the 
Head of Education Services, will allow for a direct link between school improvement 
strategy and the offer for professional development and training. The curriculum 
development officers will work directly with this team to ensure an impactful offer to 
meet the needs of our learners. 
 

5.7.5 The further proposed movement of the Education ICT Service, currently in the 
Performance and Policy team, to the Curriculum team, under the Head of Education 
Services, will allow the development of an integrated offer of support for schools 
regarding ICT in education and using ICT as a tool for learning, to support 
curriculum development and improve children’s outcomes. ICT infrastructure, e.g. 
MIS and system design and service, will remain in the Policy and Performance and 
Resources team. 
 

5.7.6 Two teams would be disaggregated from the current communities team – that being 
the Adult Learning team and the Youth Work team who currently work closely 
together and deliver a number of projects involving children, young people and 
adults. The rationale for this is that the focus of the work of this team is in 
developing life long learning, adult and family learning activities including learning 
pathways for young people, parents and families. Given the clear link into education 
and CLD planning it is essential that this programme of activity continues to be 
integrated with education and schools and so it is proposed these be retained under 
the Head of Education Services, based in the Curriculum team. The Family 
Learning Development Officer and two posts in this team, currently placed in Early 
Years, Families and Vulnerable Learners Service (EYF and VL) would also move 
into this team to create an aligned and coordinated service. 

Page 18



9 
 

 
5.7.7 The Outdoor Education Service, Adventure Aberdeen, would move to the Head of 

Education Service and sit within the Curriculum Support Service as it is a targeted 
service for schools and children and is best placed with education to support and 
extend Curriculum for Excellence outdoor learning opportunities.  
 

5.7.8 Head of Inclusion 
This is a new post reporting to the Director of Education and Children’s Services. 
The key responsibilities of the post will be to lead and manage the implementation 
of the Inclusion Review and ensure delivery of service for children and young 
people with Additional Support Needs.  It is highly likely that the Inclusion Review 
will make significant recommendations on a range of services.  It is important that 
we have a senior officer in post to lead on the significant work emerging from the 
review. This post would deliver on the strategic outcomes for all areas of inclusion 
and lead the redesign of provision across the city. The proposal includes creating 
three Service Managers to work to the newly created Head of Inclusion. These 
posts would cover the following remits in general but would be further defined by 
the incoming Head of Inclusion: ASN Support; Targeted/Specialist Support; 
Inclusion Manager (currently filled on a secondment basis). These posts would 
ensure focused and integrated delivery of services for vulnerable children. 
 

5.7.9 The Family Information Service, currently in the EYF and VL team, would also move 
into the Head of Inclusion Service in order to align support and information for 
families. 
 

5.7.10 Head of Policy, Performance and Resources 
The final proposal is to rename the Head of Service ECS Resources Head of 
Policy, Performance and Resources (PP&R). The remit of this post will largely 
remain unchanged, covering service finance, performance monitoring, data 
systems and analysis, business support and continuity, asset and estate 
management and workforce planning across the Directorate. 
 
The Integrated Children’s Services team, currently in the Education, Culture and 
Sport Directorate within the EYF and VL team, would also move to the Head of 
Service for PP&R in order to align support and information for partners across the 
Directorate. 
 

5.7.11 It is proposed that the function of the Sports Team (three permanent posts, plus one 
fixed term) that currently resides in Education Culture and Sport is transferred, if 
applicable through TUPE, to Sport Aberdeen, our arm’s length partner organisation. 
Basing this function in Sport Aberdeen would allow the Council to align and 
rationalise sports development and planning in one arm’s length organisation and 
allow Sport Aberdeen to have the full oversight of sporting development across 
Aberdeen and to implement a city wide strategy alongside its partner organisations. 

 
Further detail is required to specify which functions would transfer to Sport 
Aberdeen and this detail would be considered in the phase 3 consultation and 
proposed structure.  As part of this process the Council’s approach to monitoring 
and evaluation of ALEOS, including Sport Aberdeen, would be defined and clarified.  
It would then be assessed whether transfer of staff under TUPE legislation would be 
applicable/required. 

Page 19



10 
 

 
5.8 Corporate Governance 

 
5.8.1 No substantial changes are proposed for the second tier structure within Corporate 

Governance (CG).  Instead, it is proposed to re-align certain functional areas both 
within and outwith the Directorate (by applying the principle of ‘form follows 
function’) to provide the synergy and focus that will support key corporate priorities 
and enhance customer service. 

 
5.8.2 There has, over the course of the last two years or so, been consistent structural 

refinement within CG meaning that significant change at this time is deemed 
unnecessary. 

 
5.8.3 In the absence of any material change to the second tier structure, most of the 

proposed structural re-alignment will be capable of being progressed relatively 
quickly.  Significant structural change proposals over and above the re-alignment 
proposals will be reported during phase 3 of the restructuring exercise. 

 

Page 20



11 
 

Roles for Heads of Service 

 
 

Head of Finance 
 
 
 
 

• Financial Strategy 
and Planning 

• Financial 
Reporting, Analysis 
and Controls 

• Financial 
Performance 
Management 

• Financial Systems 

• Business Advice to 
Services 

• Investments and 
Treasury 

• Bank and Cash 
Management 

• VAT Management 

• Corporate 
Governance 
Administration 

• Pensions 
Investments and 
Accounting 

• Revenue 
Collection 

• Administration of 
Benefits, Council 
Tax, Business 
Rates 

• Social Work 
Financial 
Assessments 

Head of HR & OD 
 

 
 
 

• HR Policies/ 
Strategy 

• Employee/ 
Industrial Relations 

• Organisational 
Development 

• Training 

• Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing 

• Recruitment and 
Selection 

• Payroll 

• HR Shared Service 
Centre 

• YourHR 

• Equality and 
Diversity 

• HR Performance 

• Business Advice to 
Services 

• Job Evaluation 

• Pay & 
Remuneration 
Strategy 

• Workforce 
Planning 

• Employee Benefits 
 

Head of IT, 
Customer Service & 
Performance 

 
 

• Best Value 

• Internal Audit 

• Risk Management 

• Corporate 
Performance 
Management 

• Customer 
Relations 

• Customer Service 
(CRM) 

• Contact Centres 

• Access Points 

• IT Services 

• Business 
Improvement 

• Shared Services 
Process Redesign 

• Improvement 
Management 

• Knowledge 
Management 

• Members’ 
Enquiries 

• Customer 
Complaints 

• Emergency 
Planning 

 

Head of Legal & 
Democratic 
Services 
 
 

• Legal Services 

• Licensing 

• Archives 

• Committee 
Services 

• Democratic 
Services 

• Registrar and 
Registration 

• Legal 
Performance 

• Data Protection 
Officer Function 

• Monitoring Officer 
Function 

 

Head of 
Commercial & 
Procurement 
Services 
 

• Scotland Excel 
Regional Hub 

• Procurement 
Policy, Strategy 
and Advice 

• Procurement 
Performance 

• Electronic 
Procurement and 
Systems 

• Supplier and 
Contract 
Management 

• Payments/ 
Creditors 

• Programme 
Management 
Office 
(including SIP 
Monitoring) 

• Insurance 

• Procurement Legal 
Advice 

• ICT Procurement 

• Social Care 
Commissioning  
and Contracts 
Team 

 

 
Rationale 

 
5.8.4 Head of Finance 
 It is proposed to transfer the Insurance function from Finance to Procurement. This 

function fits well with the core functions of Commercial and Procurement (C&P) 
Services and is consistent with the recent transfer of the Accounts Payable function 
to the C&P Services. 

Director of 
Corporate 

Governance 

Head of Finance 
(S.95 Officer) 

Head of HR & 
OD 

Head of IT, 
Customer 
Service & 

Performance 

Head of Legal & 
Democratic 

Services 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Head of 
Commercial & 
Procurement 

Services 

Page 21



12 
 

 
5.8.5 Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 It is proposed to transfer Member Enquiries (but not Member Support) to IT and 

Customer Service and Performance. 
 

5.8.6 It is also proposed to transfer solicitors from the Projects, Procurement and 
Contracts Team to the Commercial and Procurement Service in order to assist with 
providing a ‘one stop shop’ for procurement services in the Council (reflecting 
feedback from services). 
 

5.8.7 Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development (HR & OD) 
 It is proposed that the internal communication function transfers from HR & OD to 

the Office of Chief Executive (OCE) to form part of the portfolio of the proposed new 
post of Head of Communications and Promotion.  This proposal is consistent with 
the notion of ‘form follows function’. 
 

5.8.8 Head of IT and Customer Services and Performance 
The proposals for structural change in relation to this area of Corporate Governance 
are as follows: 
 
Transfer in: 

- Members Enquiries Consistent with the Customer Services 
function. 

- All customer reception areas  Consistent with the Customer Services 
function. 

- Transformation and 
Improvement function 

The Council’s internal transformation 
programme will be co-ordinated and 
supported by this team. This builds on the 
existing performance monitoring function 
currently undertaken by this team and will 
enable it to become a catalyst for service 
transformation within the Council. 

- Emergency Planning function 
 

Provides synergy with the risk 
management function which currently sits 
within this team. 

 
Transfer out: 

- ICT procurement function Transfer to Commercial and Procurement 
Service to align with core procurement 
function. 

- Community planning and 
equalities functions 

Transfer to Community and Infrastructure 
Services where there is now a greater 
functional alignment. 

- FOI; Knowledge Management; 
Research; Web content 

Transfer to the Head of Communications 
and Promotion (OCE). 

 
5.8.9 The job title of the Head of Service has been amended to contain reference to the 

IT function.  It is felt appropriate to explicitly reference this critical function within the 
job title and to make clear where management accountability for this service is 
vested. 

Page 22



13 
 

 
5.8.10 Head of Commercial and Procurement Services 

The proposals for structural change in relation to this area of Corporate Governance 
are as follows: 
 
Transfer in: 

- Social Care Contracts & 
Commissioning team 

 
All proposed transfers will strengthen the 

- ICT procurement role of the procurement function and 
contribute to the establishment of a ‘one  

- Procurement legal advice stop’ shop for customers. 
 

5.8.11The integration of the Social Care Procurement function within the Commercial and 
Procurement Services team is regarded as a logical development.  The same 
procurement principles and customer requirements apply in this area as for the 
existing range of commodities which the team currently procures. 

 
 
5.9 Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Service 

 
5.9.1 This new Directorate is responsible for a broad range of services that the Council 

provides to those who live, work, visit and invest in the City of Aberdeen. 
 

5.9.2 It brings together teams and individuals in order to support the development of 
enhanced strategic planning capability and improved joined-up operational practices 
in the following areas: 
 
- City-wide and neighbourhood community planning and capacity building 
- Customer oriented services that are delivered within people’s homes and 

communities 
- Management and development of the Council’s land and property assets 
- Management and development of Aberdeen’s external environment  
- Planning and sustainable development  
- Economic development.  

  

Page 23



14 
 

Roles for Heads of Service 
 

 
 
Head of 
Communities and 
Housing 
 

• Community 
Planning 

• Regeneration 
Strategy 

• Community 
Capacity Building 

• Learning Centres 
and Projects 

• Community 
Centres 

• Partnerships 

• Inclusion and 
Employability 

• Equalities 

• Housing Policy and 
Performance 

• Estate 
Management 

• Housing Advice 

• Housing Support 

• Community Safety 

 

Head of Land and 
Property Assets 
 
 

• Strategic Asset 
Planning and 
Investment 

• Capital and 
Revenue Project 
Planning and 
Delivery 

• Technical Services 

• Commercial 
Development 

• Property 
Rationalisation 

• Energy 
Management 

• Repairs, 
Maintenance and 
Contracts 

• Facilities 
Management 

Head of Public 
Infrastructure and 
Environment 
 

• Waste Strategy and 
Operations 

• Parks and Public 
Greenspace 

• Arboriculture 

• Countryside 
Rangers 

• Streetscene 

• Roads/Lighting 
Operations and 
Projects 

• Coastal Defence and 
Flooding 

• Bereavement 
Services 

• Fleet Management 
 

Head of Planning 
and Sustainable 
Development 
 

• Planning Strategy 
and Policy 

• Sustainable 
Development 

• Masterplanning 
and Design 

• Conservation 

• Transportation 
Planning and Major 
Projects 

• PTU 

• AWPR 

• Building Standards 

• Greenspace 
Strategy 

• Archaeological 
Services 

• Environmental 
Health and Trading 
Standards 

• Public Analyst  

Head of 
Economic 
Development 
 

• Business 
Development 

• Inward 
investment 

• Funding and 
Partnerships 

• Employability 
and Skills 

• Commercial 
Property 
Portfolio 

• Digital 
Connectivity 

• AREG 

• Future Cities 
Agenda 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Rationale 

 
5.9.3 Head of Communities and Housing 

This role has  strategy and policy development responsibilities together with 
operational management responsibilities for a range of services which interact 
directly with people in our communities. 
 

Director of  
Communities, 

Housing & 
Infrastructure 

Head of 
Communities 
and Housing 

Head of Land 
and Property 

Assets 

Head of Public 
Infrastructure 

and Environment 

Head of Planning 
and Sustainable 

Development 

Head of 
Economic 

Development 

Regeneration 
Programme 

House Building 
Programme 

Roads Programme City Development 
Programme 

Programme Management 

Page 24



15 
 

The role brings together all aspects of community planning;  from supporting the 
city-wide Community Planning Partnership to engaging directly with communities at 
a local level via enhanced neighbourhood community planning arrangements. A key 
responsibility of this role is to act as a link between communities and other services 
provided by the Council and its partners to maximise opportunities for people to 
shape and co-construct better outcomes within their communities.  
 

5.9.4 In addition to delivering the Community Planning Partnership priorities at a local 
level, this role will be active in improving outcomes for themes such as equality, 
inclusion and  community capacity and resilience.  The services which have been 
brought together under this role are all major contributors to improving outcomes for 
people in relation to these themes. In particular, areas such as financial inclusion 
and employability will be increasingly important in supporting people to respond to 
the changing welfare environment. 
 

5.9.5 All of the above leads logically to this service taking the lead in shaping the 
Council’s approach to regeneration. A key task will be the development of  
strategies which bring together physical and social regeneration interventions and 
which meet the  desires and expectations of communities in so far as is possible 
within resource constraints. 
 

5.9.6 Head of Land and Property Assets 
This role has responsibility  for  strategy and policy development, operational 
management and programme delivery in relation to the Council’s land and property 
assets. 
 

5.9.7 The role brings together all asset management, technical services,  repairs and 
maintenance and capital projects for the Council’s housing and non-housing 
property portfolio (excluding the schools estate programme which sits under the 
Infrastructure and Assets Programme Manager within Education and Children’s 
Services). This is supported by the provision of facilities management and energy 
management services. 
 

5.9.8 A key responsibility of this role will be to develop a centre of excellence for strategic 
asset management and project delivery. Working closely with colleagues across the 
Council and the wider public sector, and in particular the Corporate Governance 
services of finance, legal and procurement, the team will develop short, medium 
and long term investment priorities for the Council’s land and property assets.  
 

5.9.9 This service provides a lead role in the delivery of Strategic Infrastructure Plan 
programmes for new affordable housing and regeneration, supported by  the  
Programme Management Office within Corporate Governance.   
 

5.9.10 Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment 
This role has responsibility  for  strategy and policy development and  operational 
management in relation to the Council’s public infrastructure assets. 
 

5.9.11 The role brings together a range of services which have a focus on developing and 
maintaining the city’s roads and greenspace to the benefit of the city’s economy and 
the health and wellbeing of its citizens.  The service will build on recent good 
practice to further develop effective links to communities and educational services 

Page 25



16 
 

through a variety of means such as friends groups, outdoor education partnerships 
and third sector access to employment partnerships. 
 
As the main user of heavy goods vehicles and plant, this role will also include 
responsibility for vehicle fleet assets. 
 

5.9.12 Head of Planning and Sustainable Development 
This role has responsibility for strategy and policy development, along with 
operational management and programme delivery for a wide range of services that 
impact on the quality of life of the citizens of Aberdeen. 
 

5.9.13 The role brings together functions that facilitate and support sustainable economic 
development, creating the conditions for growth whilst maintaining and enhancing 
the quality of the natural and built environment of the city. 
 

5.9.14 Key responsibilities of this post are: to develop and implement long and medium 
term land use, environmental and transportation strategies; deliver a programme of 
major transport projects to provide the infrastructure required to support 
development; and manage statutory functions to ensure compliance by business 
and individuals with policies and regulations that provide for a high quality, safe, 
living and working environment.  This is particularly important in a time of significant 
growth pressure such as Aberdeen is currently experiencing. 
 

5.9.15 Working in partnership with other Council services, public and private sector 
organisations and communities will be central to ensuring a joined up and holistic 
approach to the future development of the city. 
 

5.9.16 Head of Economic Development 
This role has responsibility for developing strategy and policy for business and 
economic development as well as both promoting the city and delivering support to 
our key industrial sectors. 
 

5.9.17 An important part of the role will be the need to work across the service, and indeed 
the whole Council, in a corporate manner around key elements of the economy 
including planning, skills, promotion and infrastructure.  
 

5.9.18 External partnerships play a crucial role in the development of the economy and 
direct liaison with other Councils, ACSEF Members, Scottish Cities Alliance and 
national and international agencies is an important element of this position. The role 
carries with it the responsibility of representing the Council and the city on local, 
national and international stages. 
 

5.9.19 This service provides the lead role for the Strategic Infrastructure Plan city 
development programme, supported by the Programme Management Office. 

 
 
5.10 Office of Chief Executive 

 
The Office of Chief Executive has ultimate responsibility for the delivery of Council 
services.  The Office is led by the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service for the 
Council, supported by the Head of Service (Office of the Chief Executive) and the 
Head of Communications and Promotion.  

Page 26



17 
 

Role for the Heads of Service 
 

 
Head of Service, Office of Chief 
Executive 

 
 
Business Management: 

• CE correspondence 

• CE diary 

• CE relationship management 

• CE roles (Returning Officer/Clerk to the 
Lieutenancy) 

• Elections 

• Leader and Elected Members 

• Lord Provost/Lord Lieutenant 
 

Research: 

• Influence 

• Information 

• Intelligence 

 

Head of Communications and 
Promotion 

 
 
• City events 

• Civic events 

• Promotion 

• Advertising 

• City promotion 

• Design 

• Marketing 

• Twinning 

• Communication 

• FOISA 

• Internal communication 

• Media 

• Public reporting 

• Digital communications 

• Web content 

 
Rationale 

 
5.10.1 Head of Service (Office of the Chief Executive) 

The Head of Service (Office of the Chief Executive) supports and enables the Chief 
Executive to fulfill the role of Head of Paid Service for the Council.  This includes 
managing the diary and multiple roles required of the Chief Executive.  In addition 
the Head of Service also supports and manages the civic function of the Council 
through the Lord Provost and Lord Lieutenancy. 
 

5.10.2 The Head of Service will perform a significant role in relation to managing the Office 
of Chief Executive’s relationships with a range of key individuals and bodies 
including Members, MSPs, MPs, and government representatives – both Scottish 
and UK. 
 

5.10.3 The post holder will also manage a centralised research function providing support 
to the Chief Executive in developing future strategic options for the organisation. 

Chief Executive 

Head of Service 
(Office of the Chief Executive) 

Head of Communications and 
Promotion 

Page 27



18 
 

 
5.10.4 Head of Communications and Promotion 

This new role will create and implement corporate communications and public 
relations strategies, plans, key messages, and marketing campaigns in support of 
the Council’s goals of improved customer experience and enhanced staff 
engagement.   
 

5.10.5 The Head of Communications and Promotion will lead the strategic development 
and implementation of corporate communication activities for all local, national and 
international stakeholders and audiences and will deliver these through PR 
initiatives, marketing campaigns, internal, external and media communication 
programmes, web and social media and a full programme of city and civic events. 
The events, whether civic, sporting or cultural, will have reputational significance for 
the Council – both locally, nationally and internationally and the post holder will be 
responsible for positive reputational management in this regard. 

 
5.10.6 To ensure transparency and clarity of all corporate communication, the role also 

encompasses the Freedom of Information and public reporting teams. 
 
 

5.11 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.11.1 As with phase 1 of the restructuring project, every effort has been made to engage 
with the workforce and their trade unions in relation to the management proposals.  
Consistent with phase 1, the feedback received has been constructive and thought 
provoking to the extent that several of the initial management proposals have 
either been dropped or altered as a consequence. 
 

5.11.2 In addition to formal consultation with the trade unions, feedback was gathered 
from employees: at six roadshows held throughout the city (213 employees 
contributing); through an on-line survey (160 employees contributing) and by e-
mail (39 employees contributing).  Therefore over 400 employees took the time to 
feed back their views on the proposals.  Phase 1 generated a response from 
approximately 500 employees. 

 
5.11.3 Appendix 4 details the feedback from the three consultative processes.  In 

summary, employees feel the new second tier structure presents the following 
opportunities and concerns. 

 
a) Opportunities 

 
- The bringing together of related teams under the Commercial and 

Procurement Service  
- The creation of a Head of Communications and Promotion and the 

centralisation of this function 
- The co-location of related services under the Community and 

Infrastructure Service.  
  

b) Concerns 
 

- The definition and positioning of culture and whether this should sit in 
Communities or Education 

Page 28



19 
 

- The division of community learning and whether this should sit in 
Communities or Education 

- The move of sport staff from Education to Sport Aberdeen. 
 

5.11.4 In order to address some of the questions and concerns raised during phase 1 in 
relation to the integration of Social Work Children’s Services within the Education 
and Children’s Directorate, eight engagement sessions were held for staff affected 
– both from an ‘Education’ and ‘Social Work’ background.  These externally 
facilitated sessions were attended by the Chief Executive and Directors of 
Education and Children’s Services and Social Care and Wellbeing.  The sessions 
have proved useful in helping to clarify the rationale for the change and how future 
arrangements will work in practice. 
 

5.11.5 Some of the cross-service feedback received inevitably dealt with issues which will 
be addressed within phase 3 of the restructuring process (i.e. everything below 
Head of Service level).  Whilst phase 2 is primarily concerned with the second tier 
structure, by virtue of the detail of the functional portfolios, staff below Head of 
Service clearly wished a degree of clarity about the omission or addition of a 
particular functional area (denoted in bullet point form).  Every effort has been 
made to clarify each query received in this regard.  However, several of the more 
specific queries will only be capable of being answered upon the development of 
phase 3 proposals.  

 
5.11.6 The feedback received did, however, result in several of the initial management 

proposals being dropped or altered, i.e. 
 

(i)  It was proposed to move the Criminal Justice function from the current Social 
Care and Wellbeing Directorate to the Community and Infrastructure Service. 
 
Rationale for re-consideration 
The feedback received via the consultation exercise suggested that greater 
synergy and professional alignment would be achieved by co-locating 
Criminal Justice Services along with the Adult Social Work Service under the 
direction of the Joint Accountable Chief Officer within the Integrated 
NHS/Social Care Service. 
 

(ii) It was proposed to split the Community Learning function between Education 
and Children’s Services and the Community and Infrastructure Service. 

 
Rationale for re-consideration 
The majority of the feedback suggested that the function in general would be 
strengthened by retaining it as a whole service under the direction of the 
Director of Education and Children’s Services.  A strong rationale was 
presented to keep the Adult Learning service and the Youth Work team 
together, currently managed collectively under the Team Manager (Lifelong 
Learning). Having reviewed the evidence provided by the teams regarding 
joint project work, delivery of service and links into Associated School Groups 
and individual schools, the proposal has been amended to keep these two 
teams together within the Education and Children’s Services portfolio. There 
will, of course, continue to be strong and effective links between and across 
the communities teams that will be part of the Communities and 
Infrastructure Directorate. 

Page 29



20 
 

 
(iii) There was some feedback proposing that Culture could be placed within the 

Office of the Chief Executive and aligned with the city events team.  
 
Rationale for re-consideration 
Having explored this option, it was agreed that the range of cultural services: 
libraries, library services, creative arts learning team, museums and galleries 
are more strongly aligned with learning and education and form part of the 
suite of opportunities to enhance all forms of learning and quality of life for all 
age groups. Strong links will remain with the city events team regarding any 
large scale whole city wide festivals and events, as is the current practice, 
however, as the cultural service and offer is much wider and deeper than city 
events, the proposal remains unchanged.  
 
The proposed post of Head of Communications and Promotion within the 
Office of Chef Executive will be tasked with ensuring that cultural events are 
widely and effectively promoted. 

 
(iv) Sport 

 
It is proposed that Sport functions be transferred to Sport Aberdeen, to be 
the lead organisation for Sport development across the city.  Staff questioned 
the detail of specific functions related to this proposal and the operational 
detail of tasks relating to monitoring of delivery, relationships with partners 
and retention of sporting expertise within the council.  
 
The proposals focus specifically on phase 2 of the restructure, i.e. the Head 
of Service posts. The purpose of the phase 2 consultation proposals was to 
define the remits for the Heads of Service across the new Directorates. Sport 
does not appear in any of the proposed Head of Service remits, and the 
proposal is for the communities team to be split between two Directorates.  It 
was decided, therefore, to include more detail around these teams so that 
staff in these areas would know where it was proposed their teams would sit. 
In-depth consultation regarding the structure below Head of Service level is 
still to take place and detailed questions will be answered at that point of the 
consultation process, once the lower levels of the structure have been 
defined.  
 
A number of issues were raised with regard to the TUPE process.  The 
process by which staff transfer from one organisation to another is defined by 
the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 
and as amended.  These issues will be dealt with during phase 3. 
 
In response to the feedback received, phase 3 proposals will be developed 
to enable a sports quality assurance role to be provided within the Corporate 
Governance Directorate. 
 

5.11.7 The formal responses received by the trade unions and replies thereto are shown 
within Appendix 5. 

 
 
 

Page 30



21 
 

 
5.12 Next Steps 
 
5.12.1 The majority of the second tier posts will be filled via the job-matching process 

agreed by the Council at its meeting of 14 May 2014.  In relation to new or 
substantially altered posts then clearly there will be the opportunity to advertise 
these internally and externally at the same time as the job-matching process. 
 

The indicative timeline for the matching and advertising process is as follows: 
 

w/c 25/8  - job-matching process commences 

- non-matchable posts advertised 

w/c 8/9 - matches formalised and arrangements made for any 

required ‘competitive’ selection processes 

w/c 22/9 - closing date for advertised posts; arrangements for Elected 

Member interview panel(s) to be taken forward separately. 

 
5.12.2 The CMT will meet during the week commencing 25 August to discuss and agree a 

more refined timeline and to progress the matching and advertising process. 
 

5.12.3 In relation to the ‘live dates’ for key functional transfers, it is proposed that the 
integration of the former EP&I and Housing and Environment Directorates will begin 
during the week commencing 25 August.  The transfer of Social Work Children’s 
Services to Education and Children’s Services will take place in December 
(following the Children’s Inspection).  The transfer of Adult Social Work Services 
and Criminal Justice Services to the new integrated arrangements with NHS 
Grampian will take place in April 2015.  Finally, work on the re-alignment of 
Corporate Governance services will begin in week commencing 25 August. 

 
Proposed time-line for key structural changes and appointments 
 

  Aug 14 Sept 14 Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 

Environment, Planning and Infrastructure 

and Housing and Environment Integration 

commences                   

Transfer of Social Work Children’s Services 

to Education and Children’s Services 
                  

Transfer of Adult Social Work Services and 

Criminal Justice Services to the new 

integrated arrangements with NHS 

Grampian                   

Re-alignment of Corporate Governance 

services commences          

Appointment of Chief Officer (Social Care 

and NHS Integration)          

Job matching process for Heads of Service 

commences          

Appointment of vacant Heads of Service 

post and Director of Corporate 

Governance          

 
 

Page 31



22 
 

 
 

 
6. IMPACT 

 
6.1 This report’s primary impact is on existing Heads of Service.  Clearly, there are 

certain implications arising from the proposed Head of Service portfolios which will 
impact on staff below second tier level.  The relevant proposals will be taken 
forward and consulted on during phase 3 of the restructuring exercise. 
 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
7.1 It is considered that a failure by the Council to amend its structure in response to 

the external and internal drivers for change outlined in this report would result in 
significant risk to the Council. 

 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
The Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Act (2014) 
The Community Empowerment Bill (2014) 
 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
 Angela Scott 
 Chief Executive 
 E-mail: anscott@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 Tel: 01224 (52)2500 

Page 32



23 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1  - Proposed second tier structure 
 
Appendix 2  - Current second tier structure 
 
Appendix 3  - Organisational re-design principles 
 
Appendix 4  - Consultation feedback (employees) 
 
Appendix 5  - Formal responses – Trade Unions 

Page 33



24 
 

 

Chief Executive 
(Returning Officer) 

Director of Communities, 
Housing and Infrastructure 

Services 

Director of Corporate 
Governance 

Head of Service 
(Office of the Chief 

Executive) 

Director Education and 
Children’s Services 

Head of Communities and 
Housing 

Head of Land and Property 
Assets 

Head of Public Infrastructure 
and Environment 

Head of Finance 
(S.95) 

Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Head of HR & OD 

Head of IT, Customer 
Service and Performance 

Head of Procurement (post 
shared with Aberdeenshire 

Council) 

Head of Children’s Social 
Work (CSWO) 

Head of Education Services 

Head of Inclusion 

Head of Communications 
and Promotion 

Head of Planning and 
Sustainable Development 

 

Chief Officer Adult Health 
and Social Care (Joint post 

with NHS) 

Head of Adult Social Care 
Service 

Head of Economic 
Development 

 

Head of Policy, Performance 
and Resources 

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 
P

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 S
e

c
o

n
d

 T
ie

r S
tru

c
tu

re
 

P
a

g
e
 3

4



25 
 

 

Chief Executive 

Director of Social Care 
and Wellbeing 

Director of Corporate 
Governance 

Head of Service 

Director of Housing 
and Environment 

Head of Children’s 
Services 

Head of Adult Services 

Head of Integrated and 
Joint Commissioning 

Head of Finance 

 

Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services 

Head of HR & OD 

Head of Customer 
Service and 
Performance 

Head of Procurement 
(post shared with 

Aberdeenshire Council) 

Head of Environment 
Services 

Head of Housing and 
Community Safety 

Head of Regeneration and 
Housing Investment 

Director of Enterprise, 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Head of Asset 
Management and 

Operations 

Director of Education, 
Culture and Sport 

Head of Education 
Services 

Head of Education, 
Culture and Sport 

Resources 

Head of Communities, 
Culture and Sport 

Head of Planning and 
Sustainable 

Development 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 
C

u
rre

n
t S

e
c

o
n

d
 T

ie
r S

tru
c

tu
re

 

P
a
g
e
 3

5



26 
 

Appendix 3 
 

Organisational Re-design – Principles 
 
Experience has shown that significant benefits are derived by agreeing a common set of 
principles for structural re-design (e.g. providing for consistency across Services). 
 
It is proposed that the following principles should be applied in the 2014 re-structuring 
exercise. 
 
Structures should: 
 

1. Be as ‘flat’ as possible – minimising levels of hierarchy and allowing decisions to 
be taken near the point of the customer. 

 
a) Clearly define accountabilities and remits for each Directorate (and each 

postholder) to ensure clarity of job role and eliminate duplication of effort and 
‘blurring’ of job boundaries. 

 
b) Describe services in a straightforward fashion so as to assist the public and other 

stakeholders associate service name with service delivery. 
 

2. Be reflective of the Council’s current and future strategic priorities and directly 
facilitate the achievement of these objectives. 

 
3. Facilitate service and Council wide ‘transformational’ change by maximising the 

potential for business synergies and efficiencies.  
 

4. Facilitate the delivery of customer focused and cost effective services. 
 

5. Provide for strong and sustainable corporate and performance management. 
 

6. Consolidate the delivery of related activities/services within the same management 
structure – maximising scale economies and creating or strengthening centres of 
expertise. 

 
7. Provide a more direct focus on ‘Community and Place’. 

 
8. Facilitate both integration and interaction with partner organisations, either as a 

result of legislative requirement or voluntary agreement. 
 

9. Provide the platform for an engaged and motivated workforce and assist with the 
development of the desired organisation culture by facilitating the embedment of 
our core behaviours. 

Page 36



27 
 

Appendix 4 
 

MAKING THE COUNCIL FIT FOR THE FUTURE – PHASE 2 CONSULTATION  

 

1 Introduction   

 

Phase 2 of the restructure consultation began on 23 June and ended on 25 July.  All employees were given 
access to the consultation report showing the Head of Service posts in the new structure, along with the 
broad functions which it is proposed will sit under each, and were invited to contribute their views on the 
proposed structure in terms of: 
 
- The opportunities it presents for improving staff and customer experience and making best use of 

resources 

- The risks it might present for staff and customer experience and for best use of resources.  

 

 Options for providing comment included: 
 

- Attending one of the road-shows held at various locations in the city 

- Completing an online survey 

- Sending individual responses to the comms email address 

- Completing a paper survey and submitting this via a TU representative.  

 

2 Response rates 

 

a) Attendance at consultation events 

 
AECC 30 June 30 
3W01, Marischal 1 July 88 
Tullos 2 July 12 
4W-01, Marischal 2 July 45 
Kittybrewster 4 July 8 
Central Library 7 July 30 

Total  213 

 
b) Responses to online survey 

 
Corporate Governance 19.38% 31 
Education, Culture and Sport 39.38% 63 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 20% 32 
Housing and Environment 8.13% 13 
Social Care and Wellbeing 13.13% 21 
Office of the Chief Executive 0.00% 0% 

Total   160 

 
c) Emails to comms address  

 
Corporate Governance 35.89% 14 
Education, Culture and Sport 33.33% 13 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 0.00% 0 
Housing and Environment 12.82% 5 
Social Care and Wellbeing 10.25% 4 
Office of the Chief Executive 0.00% 0 
Other  07.67% 3 

Total   39 

 
Total responses overall – 412  

Page 37



28 
 

3 Overview of responses 

 
A number of opportunities and benefits were identified.  Particularly welcomed were: 
 

- The bringing together of related teams under the central procurement service  

- The creation of a Head of Communications and the centralisation of this function 

- The co-location of related services under Communities and Infrastructure.  

 
 The most frequently cited areas of concern were around: 
 

- The definition and positioning of culture and whether this should sit in Communities or 

Education 

- The division of community learning and whether this should sit in Communities or Education 

- The move of sport staff from Education to Sport Aberdeen. 

 
4 Summary of outcomes  
 
Full versions of the outcomes from all three sources are contained in the appendices to this paper.  In 
summary, however, the main comments were as follows: 

 
a) Opportunities 

 
A significant number of staff were able to identify clear opportunities arising from the new structure.  In 
general terms these included: 
 

- Improved collaborative working and the breaking down of silos leading to a more joined up 

approach 

- The opportunity to obtain more joined up feedback from customers and to provide a more 

streamlined service to customers  

- Increased opportunities for staff development, career progression and chances to share and 

develop different skills by bringing different staff groupings together 

- The opportunity to review the skills sets of Heads of Service and Service Managers and to 

share knowledge and expertise as they take on new roles 

- Greater understanding between staff in different areas of the roles and responsibilities of 

others  

- The opportunity to focus on improving technology and process review to support the new 

structure, ensuring that end to end processes are united 

- Increased opportunity to adopt a matrix approach to projects 

- A smaller more focused senior management team leading to a shared vision, better 

communication and clearer priorities  

- Clearer and more logical portfolios with clearer Directorate accountability  

- Reduction of duplication and better alignment of staff  

- Increased ability to allocate resources appropriately 

- Co-location of like with like leading to greater efficiency and adoption of best practice 

- The opportunity to maximise the benefits of Smarter Working  

- The opportunity to maximise the benefits of PR&D and promote the development of the 

corporate behaviours through the implementation of the new structure.  

 
More specifically opportunities were identified in each of the Directorates as follows: 
 
i) Communities and Infrastructure 

 

Page 38



29 
 

- The co-location of services such as facilities management and repairs and maintenance; 

air quality and transport; roads and housing; roads, lighting and grounds – to name but 

some – were seen as positive moves likely to result in improved communication, efficiencies 

and better co-ordination of services 

- The move of community learning, community engagement and capacity building into the 

larger Communities Directorate was seen by some as positive, likely to strengthen links and to 

result in a positive impact on life chances and an improved service to the community as a 

whole; also leading to strengthened local engagement opportunities in line with the Community 

Empowerment Bill  

- Locating community planning and regeneration and planning and sustainable 

development in the same Directorate was seen as positive, allowing opportunity to develop a 

more rounded Council vision capturing synergy and benefits between private sector 

development and regeneration  

- Centralised asset management team was seen as positive in helping make better use of the 

asset portfolio 

- Further opportunities were identified for collaboration outwith the Council – for example 

between the roads services in the City and Shire 

- Opportunities were identified for libraries to move to Communities in recognition of their 

broader role in the community and to enable easier collaboration on things they are already 

prioritising - such as employability, digital connectivity and partnerships 

- Potential was identified for better opportunities for a one-stop shop approach – e.g. access to 

advice on planning, building standards, trading standards and environmental health in 

the same Directorate 

- An opportunity was identified to move the Community Council Liaison Officer from Corporate 

Governance into Communities in order to better support community councils.   

 
ii) Corporate Governance 

 
- Although the administrative impact of moving large numbers of staff on PSe was recognised 

the opportunity to update staff data records and sort out historic anomalies was welcomed 

- The move of the social care commissioning and contracts team to procurement was seen 

as ‘positive’, ‘long awaited’ and a ‘new and exciting experience’ with potential to allow for more 

strategic and judicious purchasing decisions and to benefit both staff and service users  

- The move of legal officers to procurement was seen as positive and essential to ensuring a 

swift and consistent response  

- The move of ICT procurement to procurement was viewed by some as positive, motivating 

staff to higher performance and allowing a more joined up approach 

- Overall it was felt that with the new additions the commercial and procurement services 

would present ‘a comprehensive procurement capability rivalled by none in our sector’ 

- The move of all customer contact teams under the same banner was seen as an opportunity 

to fully engage with customers and provide the most effective experience possible 

- Opportunities were identified to strengthen financial management through the new structure; 

to reinforce the importance of budget holding responsibilities and to build skills of budget 

holders; to continue to strengthen the strategic input finance can make to the organisation 

through the role of the Head of Finance and links of finance staff across the Council. 

Page 39



30 
 

 
iii) Education and Integrated Children’s Services  

 
- Closer working between social care and education was seen as likely to result in more 

efficient solutions to persistent problems 

- Some staff in libraries welcomed the continuing link with Education in terms of developing 

relationships with the Family Information Service and working more closely with school 

librarians and teaching staff 

- Adventure Aberdeen remaining in Education was welcomed and was seen as supporting the 

continuation of work with schools  

- Opportunities to share resources – such as library buildings – for activities such as housing 

advice/ support were identified  

- An opportunity was identified to bring culture, sport and city events together in one team to 

support the improved profile of the city; an alternative option to link culture, city events and 

economic development was cited to the same effect. 

 

iv) Joint Accountability Post 

 
- The creation of joint working with health and social care was seen to offer potential for real 

understanding of the processes and challenges facing health and social care personnel and to 

provide a more streamlined transition between these services for service users. 

 
v) OCE 

 
- An enhanced OCE was welcomed with comments such as ‘anything which improves integrated 

communication is a welcome move’  

- The establishment of a Head of Corporate Communications was also seen as a positive 

move likely to lead to a more co-ordinated approach; it was felt that this would encourage 

creativity and remove duplication of effort; in addition a unified approach to external 

engagement was seen as having potential to improve customer experience 

- The potential was cited for a more co-ordinated and comprehensive approach by moving the 

whole web team to OCE rather than the proposed move of web content to OCE while the web 

team remain in Corporate Governance.     

 
b) Risks 

 
A number of concerns and risks were raised around the new structure which it is useful for Directors to be 
aware of in taking the next phase of the restructure forward.  In general terms these included: 
 

- The risk of simply creating new silos without sufficient thought being given to how new service 

areas will work together 

- The impact on staff of a continued period of uncertainty, the risk of disengagement if the 

change process is not managed effectively, concerns about job losses and risk of losing staff 

thus affecting business continuity  

- The potential clash of cultures when certain teams come together and the impact of this on 

staff morale  

- The risk of conducting the restructure in a vacuum without making our vision for the city, our 

direction of travel and the rationale for the changes really clear to all involved  

- The risk of titles and remits changing but not behaviours which may ultimately result in no real 

benefits being realised  

- The cost of restructuring as compared to simply improving what we already have  

Page 40



31 
 

- Concerns about the size of some of the Head of Service remits and consequent risk of 

management not understanding the roles of the teams they are being asked to manage  

- The lack of transparency/ clarity in some Directorate/ job titles which may make it harder for 

customers, both internal and external, to know who to contact 

- The risks to knowledge management if stock is not taken of what information lies where before 

moves are made.  

 
More specifically risks were identified in each of the Directorates as follows: 
 
- Communities and Infrastructure 

 
- Concerns were raised around Criminal Justice (CJ) being moved to Communities – 

particularly around how professional quality will be managed given the lack of qualified social 

care management above the CJ social worker posts; the MAPPA requirements for a social 

work Head of Service at very serious case conferences was also raised along with the general 

risks to the quality of social care provision of splitting CJ from the rest of social care; the 

potential division of youth justice from criminal justice was also cited as a concern   

- Concerns were raised about community learning; while the move to Communities was 

welcomed by some the fact that elements such as adult learning remain in Education was 

considered to be counter-productive to joined up working and co-ordination of approach – it 

was also seen as being contrary to their employability role and to the requirement placed on 

local authorities to provide community learning and development via a 3 year plan  

- Some concern was raised about funding being less secure for community learning in a more 

diverse Directorate such as Communities 

- Splitting learning centres from Education was also highlighted as a concern 

- General risks were identified in splitting strategy from operations – e.g. roads programme 

separate from roads operations; greenspace strategy separate from greenspace 

operations 

- A risk to smooth operations and good communication was also identified in the proposal to 

move the management of the investment portfolio to a different Head of Service from the 

management of operational property 

- Aberdeen Scientific Labs had a major concern about the potential impact of changing their 

Head of Service during the ongoing work on the unified service proposal they are progressing 

with the 3 other Scottish scientific service labs; their preference would be to sit under Head of 

Public Infrastructure.  

 
ii) Corporate Governance 

 
- Members’ Services, Members’ Support and Members’ Enquiries highlighted concerns 

about their disaggregation and the impact this would have on them and on  Elected Members 

- There was also felt to be some risk in separating ICT procurement from the rest of ICT with 

the impact on team work, loss of skills and reduced ability to directly manage information and 

contracts 

- The move of the web team to OCE was cited as causing potential issues for YourHR which is 

presently hosted on the web team server – it was felt that potentially YourHR may be better 

with its own server 

- Potential risks to financial governance through the handover period were highlighted along 

with the impact on finance staff of the creation of the new ledger structure; this needs to be 

mitigated by clear structured processes and clear handovers for budget holders 

Page 41



32 
 

- There was also concern that the high expectation under the new structures to drive services 

forward may require a lot of hands on support from finance and other support services (for 

example, asset management) 

- Failure to appoint a dedicated Head of ICT was cited as having potential negative impact on 

rising customer expectations and security 

- The move of legal officers to procurement was seen by some as a potential dis-benefit 

limiting these staff to a narrow field of expertise; it was also felt that this may result in solicitors 

losing their independence and impartiality and may create lack of capacity in legal services to 

deal with non-procurement work; there was further concern that the fragmentation would 

impact on relationships, on client services and may cause difficulties with retention.  
   

iii) Education and Integrated Children’s’ Services  

 
- Some staff in libraries felt their link was stronger with Communities than with Education – e.g. 

‘libraries are more than just an Education service’; ‘libraries are for everyone’; there were 

concerns that there may be greater emphasis on children to the detriment of adults 

- Some also felt that, given their statutory role, libraries should have a higher profile than simply 

being absorbed under the heading of ‘culture’ and that that lack of profile may make them the 

poor relation in a much larger service and may also impact on career progression opportunities 

and on funding 

- Concerns were also raised about the impact on the joint vision for libraries and community 

learning which has been part of the ongoing CLD and libraries review  

- There were concerns about adult learning being split from the rest of community learning in 

terms of loss of joined up working, impact on service users and possible duplication of effort in 

issues such as HMIE inspections; there were also concerns that splitting youth work from 

adult learning would dilute the service  

- Concerns were raised about the focus of Education in the consultation paper being on ‘raising 

attainment’ where CLD is more focused on ‘achievement’ 

- It was felt that the placing of culture in Education and the lack of reference to it any of the 

Integrated Children Services documentation runs counter to the commitment and investment in 

culture demonstrated through the bid for culture and undersells its potential in terms of social, 

economic and civic impact 

- Social care staff raised concerns about their ability to meet the 12 specific duties under the 

Social Work Scotland Act as a divided service; there were also concerns about governance 

and where the Chief Social Work Officer would sit as well as concerns that the proposed set up 

would lead to a repeat of the very poor SWIA inspection report in 2008 

- The impact on service users transitioning through the social care system was also raised with 

fears of a poorer, less joined up service for our most vulnerable customers  

- The impact on social care staff of their disaggregation was also mentioned in terms of its 

potential for loss of opportunity, isolation and demoralisation as well as the dilution of social 

care values through being managed by non-social care managers 

- Concerns were raised about business management, carefirst, social work records, 

complaints and enquiries teams in terms of how these would operate across a divided 

social care service and whether there would be potential risk to jobs 

- Retaining a separate asset management team in Education was noted as having potential for 

silo thinking leading to differing standards and poorer project management 

- There were some concerns about moving sports staff to Sport Aberdeen and the impact this 

could have on sport and physical activity in Aberdeen and on staff retention; there were also 

concerns about how the monitoring and scrutiny role will be managed and the potential impact 

on currently fruitful relationships and on external investment. 

Page 42



33 
 

 

iv) Joint Accountability Post 

 
- Some concerns were raised about the loss of direct control over funding for adults and older 

people’s services and how this would be managed; also how the Council’s statutory role for 

adult support and protection would be discharged were the successful candidate to be from 

an NHS background 

- There was a concern that the term 3+1 model implies that the +1 is somehow less important 

than the other Directorates. 

 
v) OCE 

 
- Questions were raised about the rationale for putting the Information Compliance Team in 

with media and communications – 

- The impact of raising the role and profile of communications based on current staffing levels 

in this area was also highlighted as a risk.  

 

Page 43



34 
 

Appendix 5 

Trade Union Responses to the Re-structuring Proposals 
 

 
 

1. EIS 

 
2. GMB 

 
3. Unison 

 
4. Unite 

 

Page 44



35 
 

 

1. 

Ewan Sutherland 
Head of Human Resources & Organisational Development 
Corporate Governance 
Aberdeen City Council 
Business Hub 18 
Fourth Floor West 
Marischal College 
Broad Street 
ABERDEEN 
AB10 1AB 
 
 
 
Dear Ewan 
 
Phase II Restructure 
 
Having supported the move to the 3 + 1 model, Aberdeen EIS broadly supports the proposals for the 
restructuring of the 17 Heads of Service posts underneath.   
 
Whilst the Sue Bruce/Annette Bruton restructuring of 2009 was a great improvement on what had gone 
before, we did feel at the time that there were anomalies in the Heads of Service remits that meant that 
certain teams could have been better placed.  We feel that it has made sense for the Director to have 
waited a year or so to familiarise herself with our structures before advocating a realignment to address 
these anomalies.  
 
Head of Education Services 
 
The post holder will be in charge of primary, secondary and special schools.  Whilst we agree that an 
important aim of an Education Service is to raise attainment, it is also important for Education 
establishments to focus on achievement.  It is possible for a high attainer who is cruising, not to be a high 
achiever.  Likewise, it is possible for pupils who are working flat out, although not attaining high grades, to 
be high achievers.  CfE is about working with parents and other partners to encourage our young people to 
become responsible citizens; there is not an SQA qualification in caring for your classmates, your 
community and society in general.  We need our young people to have an appreciation and a tolerance of 
diversity. 
 
With the main focus of this post holder being learning, it makes sense to move the CPD teams and the 
Education ICT teams into this section to maximise support for the teaching and learning processes.   
 
Head of Inclusion 
 
We are mindful of the fact that this new post has similarities to the Assistant Director SEN post that the city 
had in the late 1990s.  Whilst the EIS has always been an advocate of multi-agency working and the 
GIRFEC process to ensure that we provide excellent support to children with additional support needs 
(ASN), care will need to be taken to ensure that there is overlap between these two Heads of Service 
posts.  Because of bereavement, family break up, bullying etc, many pupils can experience Additional 
Support Needs throughout their school careers and maximising pupil learning and achievement is the key 
issue for all pupils.   
 
Bullet point 3 mentions Special Education Provision such as MICAS bases and these are a vital part of the 
mainstream schools where they exist and we question the rationale for having Special Schools sitting under 
the Head of Education Services and Special Bases sitting elsewhere.   Social Inclusion is as important as 
educational inclusion and so this post holder will have to link with all of the other Heads of Service.   

Page 45



36 
 

 
Whilst we understand the need for the lead officer for GIRFEC to be the new Head of Inclusion, the key 
elements of GIRFEC must permeate all of the four Heads of Service.  It will be vital that the key principles 
of social inclusion underpin educational learning and teaching approaches.  If we are to ensure that all our 
young people feel valued, our emphasis must be on collaborative and participative approaches through 
inclusive learning and teaching pedagogies.   
 
Head of Policy, Performance and Resources 
 
We appreciate that the remit of the post will largely remain unchanged but wonder why the Integrated 
Children’s Services team are to sit here and not under the Head of Inclusion? 
 
Head of Children’s Social Work 
 
We welcome this Head of Service post coming under Education and understand the need to ensure that 
the post holder fulfils the Chief Social Worker role for the Authority.  We have been monitoring the 
Reclaiming Social Work developments with interest and are looking forward to a return to small social work 
teams with the intention of improved collaborative working.   
 
General Points 
 
Whilst appreciating that the realigning of services will create stress and uncertainty for the staff involved, 
once the remits are finalised it will be vital that all positions are matched or appointed ASAP so that the vital 
cooperative working across all four Heads of Service takes place.  For too long now Education has been 
running with staff vacancies which have created extra pressure and stress for our existing officers and the 
Council must address this staffing issue as a matter of priority.  
  
You can have the most innovative, creative structure in the country but if we don’t have suitably skilled 
personnel in place, the new Education and Children’s Services will not be able to deliver the improvements 
that are desired for the benefit of pupils and staff in schools.  Let us not forget that the 3 permanent QIO 
appointments advertised earlier in the year, did not deliver 1 new permanent QIO post holder. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Grant 
 
Grant Bruce  
Aberdeen EIS Secretary 
 

Dear Grant 

 

Many thanks for your response to the re-structuring proposals. 

 

Gayle Gorman will discuss the specific points you raise directly with you.  However, the general points 

raised in your last and penultimate paragraphs are noted and you can be assured that every effort will be 

made to fill the key vacancies you specify as expeditiously as possible. 

 

Regards, 

Ewan 

Page 46



37 
 

 

2. 

Hi All  

 I write to respond to the paper on phase 2 of restructuring, I have commented previously on the proposed TUPE 

TRANSFER of Education Culture and Sport Staff, in that there is not 100% of a task to transfer and therefore feel that 

this may not be an actual TUPE TRANSFER. 

 

 Further to this I acknowledge that there has been extensive consultation and briefings to staff in various locales and 

on the Zone, much of the re- alignment of services does not at stage 2 affect our members, however there is a bit of 

anxiety over the break up of Social Care and Well Being but that I am sure it is caused by change being a stressor, 

however it may well have a greater affect in more numbers for members in the other Unions in the City. The 

Integrated Care agenda will be rolled out and it is comforting to know that we are not adopting the systems of other 

Authorities and a partnership approach will not affect the Terms and Conditions of Staff. 

 

We await the appointment of the head of Integrated Care, Later in the Agenda. 

 

There is to be legislative change and the introduction of child care in early years as well as the additional hours for 

Nursery provision, this is currently being worked on and consulted upon, I would seek that any notes of working 

parties for this and any other services changes be widely distributed where appropriate beyond the Zone. 

 

I do hope the Criminal Justice, community service, is not used to undermine employment in the new service under 

Pete Leonard, I recognise that there is a valuable role for that service to contribute to the City and the clean up of 

the Beach was one good example but the handing over of the Stewart park was a complete disaster, so I would seek 

that the best use of that resource is implemented and that there is consultation regarding deployment into areas 

where our members are engaged. 

In the main we do not have members in phase 2, Heads of Service, but the re-alignment may change working 

practice and line management for some, but we will look forward to phase 3 where there is to be a further 

consultation and our members are likely to be affected by possible outcomes, we would seek a full 20 working days 

and more if it can be fitted in as we would wish to get the best opportunity to engage with both Services and our 

members. 

 

I do hope that I have covered where our position is but there may be further comment from members in Services 

before the 25
th

 of July. 

 

 I am on Annual leave until the 4
th

 of August 

 Kind regards  

 

mike 

 Mike Middleton,  

GMB Convener 

 

Mike 

 

Thanks for your comments on the re-structuring proposals. 

 

In relation to two of your points: 

Page 47



38 
 

 

1. The specifics in relation to the proposed ‘TUPE’ transfer of sports staff to Sport Aberdeen will be dealt with 

in Phase III of the restructuring process.  Your points will be fully discussed and considered at that juncture. 

2. You may not be aware that it is now proposed that Criminal Justice will sit alongside Adult Social Work 

Services under the Joint Accountable Chief Officer. 

 

I note what you say in relation to consultation requirements during Phase III. 

 

Regards, 

Ewan 

 

Page 48



39 
 

 

3. 

 
                                                                                ABERDEEN CITY BRANCH  

 
 
Unison comments Organisational Restructure Phase 2 
 
Thank you for consulting with us on this proposal. We fully appreciate the attempts made to address the 
concerns raised by Unison during the first round of consultation and this has gone some way to alleviate 
the stress and concerns raised by our members. It is unfortunate that the consultation has occurred during 
the summer holiday period as this has resulted in some staff having missed the opportunity to comment.  
 
We continue however to have some concerns which we have been advised will not be answerable until 
Phase 3. We are still unclear as to what “Phase 3” will incorporate and would welcome early discussions to 
seek clarity on this.  We anticipate that phase 3 will follow a similar format with staff briefings being 
available for staff to engage fully and meaningfully in the process? 
 
We would request that the concerns raised below (including the feedback from members) be addressed in 
the report to Council and that this document be included as an appendix. 
 
Corporate Governance 
 
We are disappointed that there has been no in-depth level of discussion regarding shared services. The 
recent posting on the zone stating that discussions are ongoing with Aberdeenshire have caused concerns, 
and the timing of this announcement towards the end of a major consultation on restructure could have 
been better. We have assumed that the proposed “shared services” would currently fall within the CG 
Directorate (IT, HR, Legal Finance) and Unison has a large membership within these areas and urgently 
request full and meaningful discussions commence on this issue.  
 
There continues to be concerns regarding the move of solicitors (and potentially other members of staff?) to 
the CPU team. We are disappointed that the many questions posed by this group remain unanswered and 
at the real lack of clarity around this proposal. This gives arise to concerns that the proposal has not been 
adequately explored. As to how staff can engage meaningfully when they do not know the extent of the 
proposals is unclear. There will undoubtedly be a loss in flexibility in perusing this option, and how that will 
be a benefit to the Council is unclear.  
 
SCW commissioning and contracts being transferred to procurement, on the grounds that it is essential to 
understand the service needs before external services can be commissioned properly.  There is a real 
danger that procurement develops into an industry on its own, disconnected from the service it is meant to 
be assisting.  We are concerned that this may lead to services being monitored and recommissioned solely 
on financial criteria, with quality of service not being as important because those monitoring and 
commissioning do not have any intrinsic understanding of the service.  
 
Community and Infrastructure Services  
 
Despite assurances that some mechanism will be in place to ensure a direct link with Criminal Justice with 
other aspects of SC&WB, there continues to be concern regarding how the practicalities of this would work.  
Concerns remain about the safety of services and their users under the jurisdiction of Directorates with no 
relevant experience or the statutory authority to manage social work, for example, a Director of Housing 
overseeing Criminal Justice social workers and the service.  
Education and Children’s Services  

Page 49



40 
 

 
We have major concerns regarding the proposal to transfer sport strategy team to Sport Aberdeen. We 
would question if this is truly a “TUPE” situation given that a substantial part of the remit will continue to be 
undertaken by ACC. We would also question the legality of such a transfer when ACC is fully aware that 
this organisation has already caused detriment to staff with the deterioration of terms and conditions for 
staff within Sport Aberdeen.  
Concerns were also raised regarding community and youth moving to the communities team. Given the 
number of members currently on leave it is not possible at this time to confirm that they are satisfied with 
the outcome of the meeting with the director which we understand has taken place and resulted in them 
remaining with Education Directorate. 
 
Social Care and Wellbeing 
 
The additional briefings organised for this group of staff was greatly appreciated. As is the assurance that 
the move into Education would be as a complete unit for children’s services.  There does however continue 
to be uncertainty around how the practicalities of this will work and the links between other SC&WB 
services in adult services and criminal justice will transpire. We would expect more detail to be available in 
phase 3. It is also disappointing the business support who will be key to the change management process 
still have had no opportunity to discuss fully with senior management. We expect this to be addressed as a 
matter of urgency on implementation of phase 3 consultation.  
 
Additional  
As some comments would directly identify a specific member we have not included them in this 
report however the majority of those queries were in relation to their post section not being 
included in the new structure. Our understanding in these instances is that these issues will be 
addressed in phase 3.   
 
Feedback and questions from members  
 
Commercial & Advice Team – Legal Services 
 
What outcomes are sought by placing a legal team within the CPU and how are these not achieved 
presently?  
 
Will the workload of the Team that does not fall within the CPU (e.g. contracts, projects, state aid, 
commercial advice, committee monitoring etc) transfer or not? It is difficult for staff to provide meaningful 
comments on this consultation when they do now know the extent of the proposals. 
 
How many staff (Team Leader / Solicitor / Paralegal) are required to deal with the volume of work 
generated from the CPU? 
 
What impact would locating at Woodhill have for accessibility to client services? 
 
How would cross transactional work be managed? (e.g. ISP / Property / Employment etc)? 
 
Would the team remain part of Legal Services albeit based elsewhere or will they transfer completely out of 
Legal Services? 
 
Who would be responsible for the professional supervision of solicitors within the CPU and issues of CPD / 
training, mentoring and support? 
 
Implications of CPU being a Shared Service with Aberdeenshire - would the team require to advise both 
authorities, have the regulatory implications for this been considered and has the Legal Service at 
Aberdeenshire been consulted? 
 
Are their plans for staff from legal services at Aberdeenshire Council to transfer into CPU? 
 

Page 50



41 
 

This proposal will have implications on wider legal services, particularly around the recent Legal Services 
Restructure and the rotation of solicitors across all aspects of a local authority solicitors role to allow for 
cover and succession planning and the desirability of exposing the Council’s solicitors to all aspects of local 
authority work. 
 
How can we safeguard succession planning and cover arrangements if one part of the legal service is 
isolated from the rest? 
 
How can we mitigate the impact of the recruitment challenges faced in competing with the private sector for 
procurement specialists as opposed to recruiting people who wish to be public sector solicitors? 
 
How would the potential isolation of staff from the management and team support available across Legal 
Services be mitigated? 
 
How do Legal Services mitigate any impact on other services of a dedicated legal team within the CPU (e.g 
– loss of expertise within service, lack of holistic approach etc)? 
 
Will other services wish to have legal staff embedded within their structures – how do we safeguard the 
Council from any impact of the splintering of the central legal service? 
 
How does the move fit with the Council’s move to smarter working? 
 
What about staff access to online legal research subscriptions/ library resources / any case management 
system adopted by Legal, files etc? 
 
FOISA Team 
 
I have a concern regarding the positioning of FOISA under Communication and Promotion; 
 
1) Will the integrity of FOISA be challenged by the Promotions aspect of the service? i.e. FOISA releases 

are about transparency and accountability and, as such, may not necessarily promote ACC or 
Aberdeen in a positive light. 

 
2) On that basis, how will it look to any external parties if the FOI team is interlinked with Promotions? Will 

it bring a perception of ‘media management’ or manipulation to FOI? Will this perception, correct or 
otherwise, detrimentally affect ACC’s reputation as being transparent and accountable? 

 
Agree that FOISA should be placed under Chief Executive as it strengthens its position and shows it affects 
the entire Council at all levels. 
 
Education feedback  
 
“Culture” services does not appear to align with the Head of Education remit, and it is not reflected in the 
narrative attached to the post. It will be hard for the public, partners and colleagues to find where culture 
sits in the organisation, and then, it gives the appearance that cultural activity related to schools and 
children, when a small proportion only of the work of your teams happens in those settings. Given the 
efforts made in the Directorate to give culture a higher profile, through the UK City of Culture bid, in the 
SOA (where it is reflected as a multi lateral priority) and the administrations budget plans, it is disappointing 
that it is not reflected in the reorganisation. 
 
Where are the career development opportunities for non teaching staff to progress within the Directorate if 
the Head of Education requires to be registered as a teacher? 
 
There has been a missed opportunity to bring together culture, marketing, sports, civic events and activity 
and city events under one portfolio. This would have allowed for a clear strategic framework for the 
development of the city as a vibrant, creative one, with a leadership and advocacy role for the Lord provost:  
by being in the same Directorate this would have enabled a much more co-ordinated and joined up 

Page 51



42 
 

approach to promoting the city.  Culture and sport play a key role in ‘placemaking’ and this could have been 
better reflected in the structure. 
 
We request an assurance that resource is agreed within the Policy and Performance team to support the 
portfolio of information required under the responsibility for reporting on the SOA and the Service plan. 
 
We would like to understand further the implications of the establishment of the corporate hub to monitor 
ALEO’s and how this will impact on the work of the team.   
 
I think it is inappropriate to devolve the work of the sports strategy team to Sport Aberdeen. The logic of this 
is not articulated within the restructure document and will put a level of distance between areas of the 
service that need to work closely to ensure that the city gets the profile it needs. An example would be the 
way they have worked together to profile the 2012 Olympics and 2014 Commonwealth Games.  If an 
opportunity was available for a major capital bid, for example for a national performance initiative, or to 
host, say the Tour de France in 2020 where would the resource and responsibility lie for moving this 
forward? 
 
Given our awareness of the  issues pertaining to the organisation, and that they are only one of the sports 
funded partners, how can staff be given the comfort they are transferring to a fully functioning organisation, 
and how will the other funding relationships with sports bodies be transparently handled if this is to be 
housed in Sport Aberdeen? Where will the strategic function lie and how/who will monitor the effectiveness 
of Sport Aberdeen itself? 
 
Finally, I think there should be further rounds of staff sessions as given the time of year, many people, like 
I, will not have been able to attend. 
 
SC&WB Feedback  
 
 SCWB – PHASE 2 Restructuring Comments/Concerns from SCWB Staff to UNISON  
  
Business Management (SCWB)  
1. Where does Business Management fit into the new structure? 
 
2. Will Carefirst still be used and if so will Carefirst be split between Directorates (Currently used right 

across SCWB). 
 
3. Unhappy with the way that Phase 2 was just ‘landed’ on staff – via email. 
 
4. As well as restructuring what information can be given on having to physically relocate? 
 
5. Staff being referred to Business Manager for additional information (Phase 2 document page 3) – 

however, Business Management state they have not been given any information so are concerned 
that this could actually heighten the anxiety levels of staff. 

 
Adult Services  
1. In Phase 2 document it states that Commercial & Procurement Services will be a one stop shop for 

Procurement for the whole of ACC yet there is reference to a Commissioning Function in the 
document under Education and Social Work – P.4 – Can this be clarified please? 

 
2. There are 2 tiers of procurement staff within the current C&PS Structure and only 1 within current 

Commissioning and Contracts Team – how do the current staff that are going  to be transferred 
to C&PS fit in with this, has the Union been consulted on this? 

 
3. Service Managers concerned with finance from Adult Social Work being moved to Chief 

Accountable Officer. 
 

Page 52



43 
 

4. Staff feel consultation is not really a consultation – some staff told at ‘Consultation Event’ that the 
new structures are really just proposals, but that they were not really flexible – so why call it a 
consultation – surely the consultation should have happened before the proposals were written up. 

 
5. Managers in Adult Services feel that the restructure makes us really vulnerable at a time of huge 

change. 
 
6. The structure of governance and accountability leave us wide open: lines of accountability are not 

clear i.e. Accountable Officer post could potentially be an NHS appointment which raises issues 
around Statutory Social Work practice and the profession as a whole for e.g. Mental Health officers 
legally have to be employed by the Local Authority, there are also many other Local Authority 
Statutory functions of the Social Work Service. 

 
7. Leadership in Adult Services is being dwindled in Adult Services to a Head of Service – this post 

must be a Social Work Post to mitigate the above risks.  What happens if the 1 Head of Service in 
Adult Services is not able to manage the Social Workers, what happens to Governance then? 

 
8. Queries about the safety of services and their users under the jurisdiction of Directorates with no 

relevant experience or the statutory Authority to manage Social Work, for example, A Director of 
Housing overseeing Criminal Justice Social Workers and the Service – just ridiculous! 

 
9. Feels like we are moving into unchartered/unsafe territory. 
 
10. Where does the Adult Head of Service post fit in with the Chief Accountable officer post – is it the 

same grade? Is the Head of Adult Services going to be accountable to the Chief Accountable 
Officer? 

 
11. How does the restructure and removal of a Social Work Directorate benefit the citizens of Aberdeen, 

or even the Council as a whole?  What have the public been told, have they been engaged in 
meaningful participation and Consultation? 

 
12. Would like all comments noted to be reflected and not just the cherry-picked positive comments, this 

would at least demonstrate the OCE’s commitment to look at all concerns and risks and to work on 
mitigating them. 

 
 
Children’s Services  
1. Seems to be a complete lack of clarity over what’s happening. 
2. How will Social Work systems like Carefirst fit in with Education? 
3. Where will staff be based? 
4. Would like further more detailed info on timescales, logistics – in a timely fashion. 
5. Will there be job losses? 
6. Worried about seeking out Union advice about the situation – situation feels precarious at the 

moment. 
7. Timelines not clear? 
8. Will current Head of Service for Children be retained; will they be the Chief Social Work Officer or is 

it status quo for that post? 
9. What will the financial implications of a joint Directorate between Children’s Social Work and 

Education?  What % split between the 2 financially, will the money be ring-fenced?  How will the 
funding be made up/decided? 

 
Social Care and Wellbeing, Business Management functions 
 
Background 
 
The Business Management function within Social Care and Wellbeing, works across the whole service to 
deliver business and strategic support functions.  This includes: 
- Service Planning, including monitoring of SBP and linking to Risk Management and Risk Reporting 

Page 53



44 
 

- Asset Management (Buildings, ICT, equipment etc) 
- Increasing operational management of facilities 
- Staffing functions 
- Direct line management of all administrative staff within the service, including development of admin 

policies, procedures, templates and performance 
- Health and Safety 
- Communications – internal, zone, website, Grampian Care Data, public comms including leaflets 
- Development, review and implementation of operational policies and procedures 
- Statutory Social Work Complaints Function, FOI responses, Members Enquiries 
- Subject Access requests for open and closed social work cases 
- IMLO and Data Protection Advice and Support, including advice on information sharing and SARs, 

targeted data protection training 
- Social Work Case Recording statutory responsibilities, including development and implementation of 

cross service case recording policy and procedure and training on case recording 
- Development and management of electronic case recording system (careFirst) 
- Continued review of Continuous Learning Framework, linking to PR&D and development and 

implementation of learning and development plan for SSSC registered staff 
- Training for new and existing staff in careFirst 
- Central records (store and guardianship of paper social work case files) 
- Social Work SPIs and other statutory returns 
- Self Evaluation Using How Good is Our Team 
- Implementation of SW Continuous Improvement Framework 
- Internal KPIs and Performance Measures 
- Development, review and implementation of cross social work policy developments such as 

Professional Supervision, Quality Assurance and Case Auditing Policy, Management of Medication, 
Non residential charging policy etc. 

- Emergency planning, Business Continuity Planning and Care for People Group 
 
Following the announcement of phase 1 of the restructuring, the Business Management Team within Social 
Care and Wellbeing met to discuss the work that we did and to highlight potential issues which would 
require to be addressed, during the fragmentation of the social work service. 
 
Properties 
 
The Asset Management Plan for the service is due to Committee in August 2014.   We will only be able to 
do the current position, as future developments are difficult to predict as a result of the integration of health 
and social care and reclaiming social work.  
 
Leases require a closer co-operation between operational services and asset management.   At the 
moment this is done by the Team Manager (Business Support).  
 
Conditions and Suitability Surveys require to be done by one person to ensure consistency.  This could 
transfer to any Business Manager.  
 
Annual Staffing Census 
 
This is a requirement and pulls information about qualified staff across “social work”.  Someone will need to 
pull this information together from the new Directorates.   Have previously been told this is a service 
responsibility not a corporate one. 
 
Complicated by the fact that we hold qualifications data on careFirst on workers record.  Whoever does the 
census will need to request this data to be pulled from careFirst in the future, or PSE adapted to hold it.  
 
SSSC Registrations 
 
This are currently handled by the TM (BS) and the lead signatory is the Director of SCW.  An alternative 
lead signatory will need to be identified (CSWO)?  This is potentially a lot of work, so may need to identify 

Page 54



45 
 

HoS to be lead signatories – there is a responsibility for checking of paperwork, so this is potentially an 
additional burden on HoS.  
 
Disclosures 
 
We are currently retrospectively checking foster carers, to PVG checks.  Someone from A&F will require to 
be lead signatory, not TM (BS).  
 
Emergency and BC Planning 
 
The TM(BS) currently oversees this process for SCWB services and quality checks and ensures 
consistency within the service.  Also responsible for layering of responses. 
 
Need to ensure that in the future someone is named as being the responsible lead within the Council for 
“Care for People” issues in the event of a major incident.  Suggest this would need to be the CSWO.  
Responsibility includes chairing quarterly meeting, leading preparatory exercises and workshops and 
leading the SW response in the event of a major incident (recent helicopter crashes have seen a significant 
SW response). 
 
Chief Social Work Officer Procedures 
 
Support to the CSWO is needed for: 
 
S143 Paperwork     
MAPPA 
Guardianship Orders 
Release of Offenders 
Permission to leave country 
MHO appointments 
Secure Paperwork  
Cover arrangements 
AWI Paperwork  
NCJA Attendance 
Missing Persons alerts (in and out) 
 
MAPPA 
 
Clarity is still needed as to how SCW will key into MAPPA.  Who will be the SW lead?  CSWO? 
 
Out of Hours and Duty 
 
These are cross social work services currently.  Will this arrangement continue and if so, from where will it 
be managed and co-ordinated? 
 
Restrictions to Records / Violent Warning Markers 
 
These are co-ordinated centrally for the service.  This central co-ordination needs to remain in place, to 
ensure a consistency of approach.  
 
Admin / Communication 
 
- Coordinate of Health and Safety.   This is done on a cross service basis and we have a monitoring and 

reporting role.   Information will require to be handed over to receiving Directorate.  Existing and 
historical information will be required to be held in the one place it is currently on in a shared drive until 
drive arrangements are addressed under phase 2 implementation.  

- Admin functions to be disaggregated.   This will have a direct effect on staff at Marischal College – both 
those staff who provide administrative support to MC based staff, but also those who have a direct line 
management responsibility for admin staff.   Project Plan in place for Social Care and Wellbeing Admin 

Page 55



46 
 

Processes & Procedures, process maps, forms, Service Standards & PIs, including Service Wide 
Admin functions (Committee Reporting, Agency Process, Finance, Health & Safety, & Equalities.   
These can be used as a starting point during the phase two implementation period. 

- Central Marischal College Admin – Where will they go? It is unclear at this stage what the phase 3 
arrangements will be in respect of staffing.   On the assumption it will be some form of matching 
process one Admin Officer & their team is currently aligned to Children’s Services & so would be 
matched to the Education and Integrated Children’s Service.  

- The other Admin Officer & their team are aligned to Adults & Older People and Rehabilitation. As part of 
this a small percentage of time and resources go towards supporting the Criminal Justice Service 
because as they have a dedicated Admin Team. On the same assumption above these staff would be 
matched to the Chief Officer. 

- It is not so clear cut for the Team Manager, Admin & Communications or the Admin Assistant as their 
duties and responsibilities span across the three new Directorates. 

- The Admin team currently reviews and rewrites all SCW public information.  This function will 
presumably transfer to the new HoS post in the OCE. 

- Communication with providers about changes? Who to contact and when? It is assumed there will be a 
corporate communication plan for phase 2 and 3?   

- Website and The Zone to be updated. New Directorates Communications Support will need to be put in 
place. Social Care and Wellbeing Communications Support arrangements have been documented to 
facilitate this. 

- Grampian Caredata. Updated. When will be link? Who will lead development? 
- PECOS, Routing, will all need changing 
- New Directorates authorised signatories arrangements will need to be put in place. Social Care and 

Wellbeing arrangements have been documented to facilitate this. 
- Agency process will need changing. Who gets legacy info? 
- Use of carefirst for accidents/Incidents. About to be rolled out – Will it continue? 
- Update to template /Forms/Letterheads. This will need to tie in with the timeline for phase 2. 
 
Digitisation of Social Work Records 
 
The service has a draft business case to move to increased digitisation of records, with the scanning of as 
much historical paper based records as possible, the move to scanning new material and the linking of 
stored material through infosmart. 
 
This is an important development for the service and one which requires to be taken forward and 
resourced.    
 
Data Protection Issues 
 
- Specialised Social Care and Wellbeing training needs to continue.    In particular issues around subject 

access and information sharing.  General corporate training is not sufficiently detailed.   
o Standards for Social Care and Wellbeing staff in relation to data protection are above corporate 

standards and were praised during the ICO inspection.  They were also referenced in a recent 
ICO decision regarding a DP breach.   We are concerned if these standards are allowed to slip.   

o Information Manager Liaison Officer support and guidance. Who will provide specialised Social 
Care and Wellbeing guidance, in line with relevant legislation? 

o Info sharing protocol – who will lead in future? 
o Subject Access Request’s/3rd Party request for closed cases – will it fall to social workers? 

What happens when 1 record spans whole service? It’s a Social Work record, not a children 
services record.  Currently the Complaints, Rights and Enquiries team manage and process all 
the requests for access to social work records closed cases.  This includes requests from the 
Procurator Fiscal and Police Scotland.  Should this become a task for social workers one of the 
main difficulties  will be  identifying who should complete the work.  Should it be the social 
worker who last held the case?  What happens if they are no longer in post, left ACC 
employment, transferred to another team,  what if the last social worker to hold the case  only 
held the case for a short period and the case had been live for a number of years previously.  
Who would be responsible for making the decision, particularly where records span more than 1 
area of the current social work service.   

Page 56



47 
 

 
In addition the Complaints, Rights and Enquiries team also manage and process requests for some current 
cases where this work cannot be done by the current social worker due to workload pressures.  Who would 
be responsible for making the decision in the future, particularly where records span more than 1 area of 
the current social work service.    
 
- Specialist advice and guidance. Support for social workers doing Subject Access Request’s – How do 

we ‘Skill Up’ other services?  Currently IMLO’s provide this support.  IMLO’s in other Directorates such 
as Education, Corporate Governance do not have the knowledge of the social work service to enable 
them to provide this support and advice.     

 
Complaints, rights and Enquiries / Freedom Of information / Enquiries 
 
- Data protection and mandate issues.  
- Statutory complaints process – Who will manage this? Will complaints just be done under CHP?  Would 

deny people the statutory right to complaints review committee?  If they are managed within 
Directorates, how will they ensure that complaints are not sitting in a service being mismanaged? How 
do we support managers with complaints and enquiries?  Current complaint legislation in place provides 
complainants the right to CRC 

- • How will Freedom of Information requests be dealt with? Just to services?   How will this information 
be gathered where the information may span more than 1 area of the current social work service.   Who 
will take the lead? 

 
- Danger of Freedom of Information requests and councillors, MP’s MSP’s enquiries going straight to 

social work staff?  It is known that Councillors, MP’s, MSP’s have bypassed the process of sending 
complaints/enquiries to the Complaints, Rights and Enquiries  team and have sent 
complaints/enquiries direct to social work staff.  This has created  some difficulties, such as 
excessive information being provided without appropriate consent.   Where complaints/enquiries 
have gone to more than 1 individual responses have been different. This can also cause confusion 
for the complainant/enquirer.  No service overview.  In addition the trends and volume being 
reported are not accurate.   

- How do we ensure common/Consistent approach to Scottish Social Services Council/ Care 
inspectors enquiries and also response to Police Scotland requests.  Danger of inconsistencies. 
(Also Disclosure Listing, Getting It Right for Every Child requests). 

- Carefirst holds all statutory complaints info.   ICO / Scottish Public Services Ombudsman says that 
complaints are to be part of client record.  Corporate complaints are recorded on Covalent.  2 
systems at present but necessary as statutory social work complaints need to be part of the client 
record. 

- Carefirst holds staff info. What happens to it?  Would need to be removed if no longer  compliant 
with DPA .  Where would this information be held in the future?    

- Subject Access Request’s also need recorded on to carefirst.  To ensure link to individual’s record, 
provide overview of number of requests made by indivual and when .  How will this be managed in 
the future? 

- How will we produce the statutory complaints annual report?  Who will have overall responsibility for 
this? 

- Support for Redaction and preparing case files for individual clients, solicitors, police and Courts.  
This is done by CRE team using specialist software.  How will this be done in future?  How will 
requests from Police, PF for old cases be managed and who will prepare the files?   

- Increased risk of inappropriate disclosure. 
 
Policy /Strategy   
 
There are various cross service policies and procedures; what will happen to them?   If there is a need for a 
cross service policy in the future, how will it be taken forward? 
 
A lead member of staff requires to be identified asap to lead on Policies and Procedures within each new 
Directorate, which should have a lead officer with overall management of this group and associated tasks.   
A key piece of work would be to ensure the transfer of all current service and team specific SC&W policies 

Page 57



48 
 

and procedures are passed to the relevant new Directorate.  This piece of work could start now until SC&W 
disestablished.  It would be useful to know the timescales involved however in order to implement. 
 
Legacy Information 
 
How does SC&W provide key Legacy Information, Knowledge capture and Transfer (Knowledge 
Management in general to the new Directorates to ensure a seamless transition? 
 
Key staff need to be identified within the new Directorates to work with key personnel in SC&W Business 
Management to begin looking at the overall Knowledge Transfer which is a huge piece of work.  Require to 
know the level of detail as where will current teams be in the new structure (CareFirst/Complaints/Admin)  
Buddy up with similar roles in the new Directorates to begin this process but can’t until level of detail 
known.   
 
Carefirst  
 
Social Work Case Recording is a statutory responsibility.  The Social Work record is a whole system 
record, it is not in three parts. 
 
Electronic recording is the primary record.  This is one system and can’t be broken into three.  Children and 
Adults records are linked, there are safety implications for children if link broken. 
  
How will the system be developed into the future?  What happens if tensions arise with different 
Directorates wanting to take the system different ways. There has to be a clear lead and clear governance 
and accountability. 
  
Someone needs to be identified as responsible for data validation within the system.  This person has to 
have enough authority to challenge poor practice and poor recording. 
  
Who will decide in future on how the system will develop and which modules will be purchased?  How will 
these purchases be funded?  We will have additional functionality purchased by one Directorate, but the 
nature of the system makes that functionality available to all. 
  
How will careFirst licences be monitored?  How will usage be monitored and if we are over licence, who 
pays? 
  
Who pays for whole system upgrades? 
  
Implementation of the new charging policy requires significant development and  implementation of new 
financial modules and links to colleagues in finance.  Also looking to implement SDS and payments to 
foster carers through CareFirst.  The system has to be resourced to support this, including staff and the 
links maintained to operational social work services.  
  
We need to clarify who will have overall control of the system.   This includes controlling access to the 
system, with a clear protocol.  Multiview is the answer, not giving more and more people access to the 
system.   This approach needs to be maintained and supported.   Who does the liaison with OLM and 
maintains the vendor relationship? 
  
Module Support – How? Who? Would we require an Adults, Children’s, Criminal Justice specific support for 
each module?  Do we require identified people within careFirst team to link to each Directorate?  Demand 
is currently met across the team to support as priority needed. 
  
How do we continue to link development to practice?   Who takes forward the user groups?  How do we 
continue to ensure legislation links to the system and to recording?    
  
Need to ensure link continues between the statutory duty to record interventions and the system.  
  

Page 58



49 
 

But careFirst is not just our case recording system.  It also our primary management information system 
and contains information on violent incidents, accidents and incidents and staff.  Will this continue? 
  
Training on careFirst for all new starts is provided by the careFirst team.  Staff get their logins at that 
training.  Need to ensure a consistent training approach in the use of careFIrst.  careFirst staff also train 
staff in new developments and new modules e.g. genograms, SDS, carePay 
  
Someone will also need to be identified to take responsibility for the running of CM2000.  
  
Central Records 
  
A social work record is made up of two parts, the electronic careFirst record and the paper record.  The 
paper record contains copies of documentation we have prepared, information received from other sources 
and personal information relating to the client e.g. birth certificates, hand written letters, photos etc.    
  
Paper case records are stored in operational social work offices and also in central records, in Unit 2, 
Whitemyres.  The central records staff are not just librarians, they also advise staff, ensure the safe and 
tracked movement of case files and file and sort records which are sent in a mess.  
  
Central records staff oversee the safe destruction of paper based and electronic records and are 
responsible for ensuring the timeous destruction of records and resolving queries re destruction. 
  
careFirst also holds the file location of all paper files linked to the client.  Electronic and paper files are 
retained in line with the retention periods in the case recording policy.  This can be up to 100 years.   
careFirst holds the link between the paper record and the electronic system. 
  
The link between electronic and paper records must not be lost. 
  
The service needs to maintain one case recording policy, with specific retention periods.  Different parts of 
the service should not be able to change this.  Whilst we can destroy paper records, we cannot destroy 
parts of the electronic record.   
  
The retention and overview of records is a statutory CSWO function.  Someone will need to be identified in 
the new structure to discharge this responsibility.  
  
Whoever has responsibility for careFirst in the new structure, should also have responsibility for central 
records. 
  
Shared Drives 
  
There is and will be a legacy issue for SCWB in relation to shared drives. There are data protection 
implications here with regard to the historical storage of client related material.  This will need to be 
addressed during the disaggregation of the service.  
  
 
Performance 
 
As our MIS, we also use careFirst to produce many of our SPIs and KPIs.  We also use it for commitment 
monitoring, financial information and payment of invoices for social care.  Under the new charging policy we 
will use careFirst for the production of client invoices.  
 
Given that the information for statutory returns needs to come from careFirst as Business objects reports, 
there needs to be an identification of who will produce this information.  It is currently done by the CareFirst 
team.   The careFirst team also validates the SPIs.   It would be difficult for this to be done outside of the 
system.  
 
Information for management dashboards will require to be produced from careFirst.  
 

Page 59



50 
 

Self evaluation against HGIOT is supported by one Planning and Development Office, who works across 
the service to support teams in self evaluation and the development of KPIs.  This expertise will be lost.  
 
General Issues to be resolved: 
 

- Jobs at risk for whole team.  Some staff are specific across the service and do not align to the new 
structure. 

- Who manages drive access/ removal? 
- How will people be supported through the change? 
- How will we communicate to staff/partners/service users/Carers and families. 
- Knowledge capture and knowledge transfer before moves happen – who needs to know where the 

bodies are buried?  Gatekeeping. 
- Will there be a need to re-evaluate grades for similar posts for example support assistants 
- For Social Care and Wellbeing there is a lot of additional work for Social Care and Wellbeing as it is 

being disaggregated, how will that be resourced? 
 
 

 

Karen / Deirdre 

 

Thank you for your response to the proposal for Phase 2 of the restructuring process. 

 

I'm grateful for your acknowledgement that attempts have been made to alleviate the concerns expressed 

by your members following the approval of phase 1 proposals and would assure you that the CMT is 

committed to working with you to reduce any concerns raised by phase 2 proposals. 

 

In this regard, the many questions raised within the section of your response titled 'Feedback and 

questions from members' are largely matters which are related to phase 3 of the restructuring programme 

(i.e. phase 3 will deal with the structural arrangements below Head of Service level).  Phase 2, as you know, 

is primarily concerned with the numbers and types of second tier posts.  Clearly the detail of respective 

portfolios of the proposed Heads of Service posts have given rise to wholly reasonable questions and 

observations about the inclusion or exclusion of particular functional areas from certain portfolios and that 

has resulted in natural speculation about what specifically will feature below second tier level.  However, 

the precise detail in this regard as well as the operational answers to the question posed by your members, 

will be addressed during phase 3 by the respective directors and their new Heads of Service. 

 

In relation to some of the specific issues in your summary position on pages 1 and 2 of your response: 

 

i. As you would expect, any proposition in relation to shared services will be consulted on, as in normal course. 

 

ii. It is now proposed to align the Criminal Justice function with Adult Social Work Services within the 

Integrated Social Care and NHS Service. 

 

iii. The specific consultation around the proposed transfer of the Sports Strategy Team to Sport Aberdeen will 

take place during phase 3 - including discussions regarding TUPE related matters. 

 

iv. Business Support will be one of the key aspects to be addressed during phase 3. 

 

Thank you again for your input. 

 

Ewan 

Page 60



51 
 

4. 

 Gayle 

 Thank for meeting with your staff and l yesterday morning in relation to their strongly held professional views about 

the proposal to transfer them to Sport Aberdeen.  

I indicated at the meeting that the view of UNITE which is should any transfer take place at all then it should be an 

internal transfer to the new ALEO’s hub to be established within corporate governance. 

 Your employees gave a reasonable good account of their professional work with all outside sport organisations and 

internal sections of the Council that’s helps ensure the delivery of the sports strategy for the entire city. 

 

 They emphasised the important role of being seen to be independent by all outside organisations so all of the core 

behaviours, particularly impartiality and equality is highly transparent to all services they are involved with.  The 

current proposal of representing Sport Aberdeen has a direct consequence of potentially jeopardising the long 

standing relationships which have evolved through mutual respect, integrity and recognition of how partners can 

collaborate together to achieve citywide objectives and also achieve unique outcomes that are specific to partners’ 

delivery.  

 As agreed, the staff will provide more detailed examples of their full role and function including independent client 

management and sport/physical activity strategic partnership work. Hopefully after gaining a full overview of the 

sports team, you will realise that the proposal to move the roles of client management to sit within the organisation 

creates conflicts of interest in areas, and does not reflect the needs of other partners whom receive investment from 

the council for delivery of sport and physical activity services. Rather, this proposal potentially creates risks rather 

than maintaining strong partnerships with clients. 

 

 I welcome your suggestion that the 25
th

  July deadline for submissions will not prevent us from meeting again next 

week to continue this meaningful consultation. 

 

 When we reconvene it would be helpful to have all who contributed to the original idea present i.e. other directors 

and heads of service, plus staff from other areas where it is presumed they may take on the client monitoring role if 

the team are moved out with the council. This way everyone will have the opportunity to understand and seek 

clarification on what is involved if Councillors were to support the proposal to transfer the team out to Sport 

Aberdeen. 

 

 In the event that your final report to Committee continues with this proposal, Unite reserves the right to address 

the Councillors on the Committee concerning our objections to the transfer. 

 Tommy 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Dear Tommy 

 

Thank you for the email you sent Angela on 25 July.  As you may know, Angela is now on leave until the middle of 

August so I am responding to you on behalf of the CMT. 

 

As with all responses to the restructuring proposal, we have considered your feedback but can inform you that it will 

not be possible to further extend our consultation period for this phase.  I am advised that the consultation provision 

associated with this re-structure compares well with all previous Council re-structuring exercise, and we are committed 

to providing similar opportunities for feedback during phase 3 of the process. 

 

Page 61



52 
 

As you have identified in your e-mail, this consultation is around the proposals for the second tier (i.e. Head of 

Service) posts only.  It is understandable, and natural that employees further down the organisation will be scrutinising 

the proposals and seeking to understand the implications for their own posts.  However, we are not yet in a position to 

provide detail of the structure below 2
nd

 tier level.  Please be assured, however, that you and your members will have 

every opportunity to engage in further consultation as the details of the 3
rd

 tier structures, and those below 3
rd

 tier, 

emerge. 

 

I note your comments regarding your members in Sports Development and Communities in particular; for clarification, 

there is no proposal to transfer any Communities staff to any other organisation.  Members of the Communities teams 

and their union representatives engaged fully in the consultation events that took place, and this engagement was 

welcomed and the views expressed have been taken into consideration along with the rest of the consultation 

feedback received. 

 

As indicated to you during our recent meeting in relation to the proposed transfer to Sport Aberdeen, discussion on 

this subject will continue beyond the deadline for second tier consultation.  The focus at this stage is on the fact that 

none of the proposed new Heads of Service have the Sports function in their portfolio.  The implications arising from 

this will be appropriately considered during the next phase. 

 

I hope that this clarifies both the stage we are at in the re-structuring process and our commitment to further 

consultation in relation to the implications arising from Phase 2 should the Council approve the recommendation. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Gayle Gorman 

 

 

 

 

Page 62



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Council

DATE 20 August 2014

DIRECTOR Chief Executive

TITLE OF REPORT Committee Structures

REPORT NUMBER OCE/14/026

CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report presents alternative structures for the Council�s committees and
seeks approval of members� preferred option. It also addresses the review of
senior councillors� allowances, Orders of Reference, Standing Orders and the
diary.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Council:-

(1) Approves the following revised committee structure, to be effective
from immediately after the Council meeting on 8 October:-

Core Committees Regulatory Bodies

Finance, Policy and Resources Appeals Committee

Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Pensions Committee

Education and Children�s Services Planning Development
Management Committee

Communities, Housing and
Infrastructure

Licensing Committee

Health and Care Integration Joint
Board (from 1 April 2015)

Petitions

(2) Approves the Orders of Reference for each Committee circulated at
Appendix B and agrees that the Education and Children�s Services
Committee shall undertake that part of the Social Care and Wellbeing
remit to transfer to the Health and Care Integration Joint Board from 1
April 2015 until such time as the Health and Care Integration Joint
Board is operational;

(3) Agrees the size and composition of Committees as set out in Appendix
C with the membership of the current Appeals Committee remaining
unchanged and on the understanding that the membership of the

Agenda Item 7(b)

Page 63



Health and Care Integration Joint Board is subject to further discussion
with partners;

(4) Appoints a Convener and Vice Convener to each of the core
Committees set out in the table at (1) above and to as many of the
regulatory bodies as it deems appropriate, on the understanding that
appointments to the Health and Care Integration Joint Board is to be
subject to further discussion with partners;

(5) Agrees the senior allowances to be paid, bearing in mind that 19 such
allowances can be paid within the approved total (separate provision
being made for the Civic Head and the Leader of the Council);

(6) Agrees that the existing church, education and parent representatives
be appointed to the Education and Children�s Services Committee for
those items of business contained in the Education section of the
agenda;

(7) Agrees to reappoint an Urgent Business Committee and appoint a
Convener thereto;

(8) Instructs a report on amendments to Standing Orders and the Scheme
of Delegation to Council on 8 October, 2014 as part of a wider report
on Council governance;

(9) Agrees the Council Diary of Meetings to June, 2015 at Appendix E; and
(10) Appoints the Sub Committees, Working Groups and Boards shown in

the diagram at Appendix A based on the current proportionality shown
in Appendix F and subject to the approval of reports on the remit and
membership of the Corporate Parenting Champions Board and the
Sistema Partnership Board to Council on 8 October, 2014, and agrees
that all such bodies shall in future be appointed by Council and to
amend Standing Orders accordingly.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The costs of restructuring committees will not be significant and fewer
committees will free up accommodation and the time of members and officers
for other work. There may be minor changes to senior councillor allowances
depending upon the structure agreed.

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Council will require to review Standing Orders and the Scheme of Delegation
to ensure compliance with the new structure and to minimise risk of challenge
to the decision making process.

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

5.1 Committee Structure

5.1.1 It is proposed that the committee structure reflect the new service
structure agreed by Council on 14 May, 2014 (Article 17 of the Minute
of Meeting refers). The structure now proposed is set out in Appendix
A, which also illustrates the sub committees, working groups and

Page 64



boards which would be associated with each of the new committees
and which it is recommended be established.

5.1.2 Attached as Appendix B to this report are proposed Orders of
Reference for each committee.

5.1.3 In proposing that the Pensions Panel be established as a Pensions
Committee, members may be aware that new pensions regulations are
currently the subject of consultation. The proposed regulations have
the potential to require the establishment of a Pensions Board and a
Joint Investment Advisory Committee, including external
representation. A further report will be submitted in due course
(approximately nine months� time) and it is proposed in the meantime
that the terms of reference for the Pensions Committee remain as
those of the Panel.

5.1.4 Members will be aware that the Health and Care Integration Joint
Board and its Strategic Planning Group require to be established from
1 April 2015 and that issues relating to membership, role and remit are
still under discussion. Reports will continue to be submitted to Council
on this but, in the meantime, it is proposed that that part of the remit of
the Social Care, Wellbeing and Safety Committee to transfer to the
Health and Care Integration Joint Board be undertaken in the interim by
the Education and Children�s Services Committee.

5.1.5 The diagram does not show the other statutory committees which are
managed by Democratic Services as independent bodies such as the
Social Work Complaints Review Committee, School Placings and
Exclusions Appeal Committee, Local Licensing Forum, Area Support
Team for Children�s Hearings Scotland, etc, nor the Licensing Board
nor trusts managed by Legal Services.

5.2 Standing Orders and Scheme of Delegation

5.2.1 It is proposed that revised Standing Orders and Scheme of Delegation
be submitted to the next meeting of Council on 8 October, 2014 as part
of a wider report on Council governance.

5.3 Composition and Membership

5.3.1 Standing Order 29(1) provides that, in appointing committees and sub
committees, the Council shall, so far as possible, give effect to the
principles regarding political balance set out in the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989. Although this element of the statute is not in
force, the Council has always considered it a matter of best practice to
adhere to its principles.

5.3.2 Section 15 of the Act provides that, in allocating seats on ordinary
committees to political groups, three principles are to be observed:-

Page 65



(i) not all the seats of the body are to be allocated to a particular
group;

(ii) the majority of seats on the body are to be allocated to the group
having the majority of seats on the Council; and

(iii) the number of seats on ordinary committees which are allocated
to each group bears the same proportion to the total number of
seats on those committees as the number of seats held by the
group on the Council does to the whole membership of the
Council.

5.3.3 Applying these principles to the Council:-
(i) each committee must consist of at least two political parties and

it is proposed that, as has always been the case, each
committee should consist of members of all political groups
insofar as possible; and

(ii) the proportions of the aggregate number of seats on committees
applicable to each group are as follows:-

Labour 17/43 = 39.5%
SNP 15/43 = 34.9%
Liberal Democrat 5/43 = 11.6%
Independent Alliance 3/43 = 7%
Conservative 1/43 = 2.3%
Conservative 1/43 = 2.3%
Non-aligned 1/43 = 2.3%

100%
(for the purposes of seat allocations, the three members of the former
Conservative group are identified as �others� and seats can be shared
as those members wish amongst themselves)

5.3.4 The Act does not require that the allocation of seats on any particular
committee should follow these proportions, so long as the aggregate
allocation across all committees is correct. The committees to which
this applies are those in the new structure plus the Appeals Committee.
Nevertheless, it would be consistent with the objectives of the Act that,
insofar as possible, the balance is as consistent as it can be from
committee to committee.

5.3.5 Appendix C to this report proposes committee sizes and compositions.

5.3.6 Standing Order 29(3) requires that each member of the Council is
afforded proper opportunity to serve on committees, and so the Lord
Provost may serve as a member of a committee with full voting rights.

5.3.7 It is proposed that the existing religious, education and parent
representation on the new committee with the education function
continue, but that the agenda be split into two sections with external
representatives only attending as voting members for the education
section. The Head of Legal and Democratic Services adheres to the
advice given previously that external members are appointed to the

Page 66



committee for its business, and not for only part of it. Other Councils
have adopted procedures to limit the role of external members either by
amending standing orders or by formally requesting those members to
not participate in non-educational matters, and have done this without
challenge, so the risk to the Council is reduced given this precedence.
It is proposed that this Council amend its standing orders to
accommodate this proposal.

5.4 Appointment of Conveners and Vice Conveners

5.4.1 Council is requested to appoint conveners and vice conveners to the
committee structure to be approved, and to such other bodies as it
deems appropriate.

5.4.2 Council is reminded that, following a recommendation by the Accounts
Commission, it agreed previously that the committee dealing with
scrutiny shall be chaired by a member of an opposition party.

5.4.3 When making these appointments, Council should have regard to the
following structure for the payment of allowances to councillors:-
(i) up to 19 councillors can hold senior positions with a combined

salary and additional allowance of up to £28,981 provided that
the total is within the maximum permissible of £432,642; and

(ii) a basic salary of £16,560 must be paid as a minimum to each
member of the Council, with no member being paid more than
one additional allowance.

5.4.4 Members are reminded that payments to the civic head and leader do
not score against the number of senior allowances. The list of current
approved payments to members is attached as Appendix D to this
report.

5.5 Urgent Business Committee

5.5.1 It is proposed that the Urgent Business Committee be reappointed and
a convener appointed thereto. As this is an ad hoc committee, it does
not feature in the list of core committees used to calculate the
allocation of seats but proportionality should still apply. The current
membership is Councillors Laing, Boulton, Cooney, Crockett, Dickson,
Jackie Dunbar, Forsyth, McCaig, May, Noble, Taylor, Young and Yuill.

5.6 Appeals Committee

5.6.1 Similarly, the Appeals Committee is an ad hoc committee and for the
purposes of this report it is proposed that the existing number of
members remain unchanged. The current membership is Councillors
Grant, Allan, Cameron, Dickson, Donnelly, Jackie Dunbar, Laing,
Young and Yuill. All these members have undergone the required
training.

Page 67



5.7 Council Diary

5.7.1 The approved Council diary runs until the end of 2014. Appendix E
contains an amended diary for the remainder of this year and a diary
until June 2015 which members are requested to approve.

6. IMPACT

6.1 Corporate � This report supports the commitment in Aberdeen � the
Smarter City to encourage participation in decision making and
promote active citizenship by restructuring committees to reflect the
new service structure. This should lead to improved governance and
decision making processes across the Council.

6.2 Public � There will be a clearer understanding of the role of members in
decision making which should lead to a better understanding of the
Council�s work and improve the transparency of the democratic
processes in the city.

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK

7.1 By reducing the number of committees and with those committees
redesigned to reflect the new service structure, there will be increased
transparency in the decision making process and a reduced risk of
decisions being taken in isolation. To avoid the risk of challenge to
decision making, the Council�s Orders of Reference and Scheme of
Delegation will be reviewed and submitted to the meeting on 8 October,
2014, for approval. Specific risk in relation to the Committee with the
education function, and the means of minimising this, is addressed in
section 5.3.7.

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Roderick MacBeath
Senior Democratic Services Manager
Email rmacbeath@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Tel (01224) 523054

Page 68



Petitions

Committee
COUNCIL Urgent Business

Committee

Guildry and

Mortification

Funds Sub

Committee

Special

Licensing

Objections

Committee

Freedom of the

City Working

Group

Finance,

Policy &

Resources

Committee

Audit, Risk

& Scrutiny

Committee

Education &

Children�s

Services

Committee

Communities,

Housing &

Infrastructure

Committee

Health and

Care

Integration

Joint Board

Planning

Development

Management

Committee

Disability

Advisory

Group

Corporate

Health and

Safety

Committee

Shareholder

Scrutiny

Group

Local

Government

Employees

JCC

Electoral

Boundaries

Working

Group

Cowdray Hall

Committee

(Deed of

Trust)

Macdonald Art

Committee

(Deed of Trust)

Rubislaw Field

Committee

(Deed of

Trust)

Zero Waste

Management

Sub

Committee

Housing Cases

Review Sub

Committee

Marischal

Square

Working

Group

City Centre

Regeneration

Board

Controlled

Parking

Working

Group

Corporate

Parenting

Champions

Board*

Sistema

Partnership

Board*

Licensing

Urgent

Business Sub

Committee

Licensing

Hearings

Sub

Committee

Sports

Ground

Advisory

Group

Taxi

Consultation

Group

Planning

Appeals Panel

Licensing

Committee

Strategic

Planning

Group

This band � Sub

Committees acting with

powers

This band � Working

Groups and Boards with

no powers

Please note that new committees etc are highlighted above in bold text and that bodies to be disestablished are shown below:-

Older People�s Advisory Group - to be deleted when similar body established under Community Planning Aberdeen

Culture and Sport Sub Committee

Diamond Jubilee Commonwealth Travel Working Group

Homelessness Strategy Working Group

*These two Boards are to be established subject to the approval of reports on remit and membership to Council on 8 October 2014

NB - The Health and Care Integration Joint Board also reports to the NHS Grampian Board. Both this and the Strategic Planning Group will be

effective from 1 April 2015.

Pensions

Committee

Appendix A

Hazlehead

Grove Nursery

Working

Group

Property Sub

Committee

Page 69



Appendix B

COMMITTEE ORDERS OF REFERENCE

MARCH 2014
(revised 10.3.14)

Proposed deletions from remits are shaded
grey, proposed additions are in italics

Page 70



Page 71



1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. Aberdeen City Council has democratic legitimacy in the City and therefore holds
the responsibility for working with the people of Aberdeen to ensure the long
term wellbeing of the City of Aberdeen, its people and its environment.

2. The Council will:

(i) provide a clear vision of the way forward to ensure the long term well-
being of the City and its people.

(ii) provide strategies and supporting policies which will ensure the
achievement of this.

(iii) deliver services which meet the needs of the citizens of Aberdeen.

(iv) ensure that in relation to the resources needed to achieve the long term
well-being of the people of Aberdeen.

(i) that the supply of resources are maximised.

(ii) best long term value for money is achieved.

(v) monitor the success of the Council and its partners in achieving this for
the City and its people.

(vi) ensure equality of access to these entitlements to all its citizens
regardless of age, gender, social, ethnic or religious background, disability
or sexual orientation.

(vii) ensure the well-being of all who work for the Council, elected members,
staff etc.

3. The Council will work in partnership with other providers of services in the City to
ensure the delivery of the vision.

4. The Council will ensure that the people of Aberdeen are involved in this process.

5. The Council will act as an advocate for the City:

(i) within the local area.

(ii) within Scotland and the UK (in particular to the agencies of Government in
Holyrood and Westminster).

(iii) world-wide (and in particular with agencies of the European Community).

6. The Council will support the Civic Head in his/her duties as:

(i) Lord Provost of the City of Aberdeen.

(ii) Lord Lieutenant of the City of Aberdeen.

7. The Council will uphold and build the heritage and traditions of the City of
Aberdeen, the wider North East of Scotland and Civic Government.

8. The Council will ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the
stewardship of the City and the Council and any other organisation in which the
Council plays a part.

Page 72



9. The Council will be the final internal point of appeal on matters for which it has
responsibility.

10. The Council will resolve all matters bound to be determined by it alone in terms
of the relevant legislation.

11. The Council may delegate areas of responsibility to for instance, committees or
other working groups to ensure the efficient discharge of these responsibilities.

12. The Council will oversee the community planning process.

13. The Council will agree and monitor neighbourhood community action plans.

14. The Council will ensure involvement of community, neighbourhood networks and
partners in Committee decision making.

Page 73



3

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

FINANCE, POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. To set and monitor a resources strategy for the Council and to scrutinise
performance within this.

2. To undertake overall management of the Council�s resources � finance, people,
systems and technology, and property at the stage of acquisition or disposal.

3. To set budgets, including those managed by the service Committees, having
regard to the priorities set by each service Committee.

4. To approve major proposals for changes to staffing structures and for additional
staffing as determined by the Chief Executive. where no budget provision exists
within the services.

5. To monitor all of the Councils budgets, in particular:-

(a) To establish processes and procedures for the close monitoring of budget
approved by the Council.

(b) To receive budget monitoring reports from each service and to ensure
close scrutiny for the management of each service budget.

(c) To call budget holders to account for the proper control of the budget for
which they are responsible.

(d) To ensure action plans are in place to meet the budget savings approved
by the Council and to monitor the performance thereof.

(e) To approve changes to the budget to meet the savings required including
the power to vire between Service budgets.

(f) To scrutinise performance of each service against each budget forecast
within the approved transformation strategy.

(g) To scrutinise the implementation of the Five Year Plan and to monitor
budgets accordingly.

6. To manage the civic functions of the Council.

7. In respect of the Corporate Governance Service and the office of the Chief
Executive:-

(i) To be accountable for the services provided, except internal audit;

(ii) To receive budget monitoring reports and take financial decisions
concerning the service budgets where there will be no adverse effect;

(iii) To receive and scrutinise performance information.

8. To develop and approve corporate policy and strategies including partnership
working, and HR polices, except the Health and Safety policy and those
specified as relating to teaching staff and falling within the remit of the
Education, Culture and Sport Committee Education and Children�s Services
Committee.

Page 74



9. To oversee the provisions of the Code of Conduct for Elected Members including
the taking of action in regard to allegations of misconduct and the introduction of
any guidance, policy or procedures in accordance with the provisions of the
Code.

10. To oversee the implementation of the Five Year Business Plan.

11. To approve a plan for Best Value Audits and to consider performance outcomes
from the Audit.

12. To ensure the Council meets its obligations in terms of Corporate Governance
compliance.

13. To ensure that the Council meets its responsibilities in terms of Best Value
legislation.

14. To monitor annually performance and consistency between service committees.

15. Where the Chief Executive or Council so request, to monitor and scrutinise
particular performance or service delivery matters.

16. To receive reports on whistleblowing and other investigations.

17. To instruct such performance information as the Committee requires to fulfil its
remit.

18. To ensure that in fulfilling this remit the Committee has regard to statutory
requirements such as the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003, in relation to
Best Value and continuous improvement.

19. To ensure the Council meets its legal obligations through:-

20. The approval of an anti-fraud policy and monitoring its implementation; and

(a) Commissioning investigations to secure value for money in the delivery of
services.

(b) To oversee the processes by which services are exposed to competition
and costs are let, where the Council itself is a bidder for the work.

21. The Committee will refer business items relating to service delivery issues to the
appropriate committees, while reserving the function of monitoring performance
of those other committees in dealing with items so referred.

22. To receive external performance reports, and ensure any necessary action,
unless service specific.

23. To receive reports from the Scottish Public Services Ombudsman and ensure
any necessary action.

24. To maintain an overview of the Code of Guidance on Funding External Bodies
and Following the Public Pound � Review of the allocation of grants to outside
bodies.

25. The Committee is charged with the responsibility for corporately monitoring and
validating the activities of other Standing Committees relating to the
development and implementation of processes for achieving Continuous
Improvement (including Best Value) in the design and delivery of services and in
the development of measures to achieve social inclusion and sustainable
development, and generally with the promoting, in a visible and challenging

Page 75



manner, the development of Continuous Improvement (including Best Value) in
all its senses.

26. The committee will have the responsibility of monitoring:-

(a) the development and implementation of new systems for ensuring
performance management and quality assurance in the Council's
structure for service delivery;

(b) the due influencing of service delivery, planning and strategic
development;

(c) the planning and progress of service reviews and the implementation of
action plans arising from those reviews;

(d) arrangements for achieving Value for Money, Continuous Improvement
and Best Value in services provided by external contractors; and

(e) the adoption and implementation of the management framework for
planning, implementing, monitoring, reporting and reviewing delivery.

27. To set and monitor an asset management strategy for the Council and to
scrutinise performance within this.

28. To undertake overall management of the Council�s property at the stage of
acquisition or disposal.

29. The Committee will consider such reports on the following tier 1, 2 and 3
organisations, and any tier 4 organisation, as may be submitted from the
governance hub:-

� Grampian Valuation Joint Board (tier 1)

� Scotland Excel

� Aberdeen Citizens� Advice Bureau

� Pathways

30. Representatives from external organisations are required, when requested, to
attend and contribute to meetings.

Page 76



6

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

AUDIT AND RISK, AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. The Committee will:-

(a) receive an annual review of the risk management process, and an update
every six months on the risk register and related action plans;

(b) approve the risk management strategy and implementation plan;

(c) monitor risk management and internal control arrangements; and

(d) commission and review annual assessments of the effectiveness of the
risk management and control framework.

2. The Committee is charged with responsibility for ensuring that there is an
effective Internal Audit function. This to be achieved through the following:-

(a) the approval of the Internal Audit Annual Plan;

(b) the consideration of all reports issued by Internal Audit with the exception
of those on the Pension Fund;

(c) responsibility for ensuring that there is an adequately resourced Internal
Audit service; and

(d) the consideration of performance reports on Internal Audit activity.

3. To receive all reports prepared by the Council's External Auditor with the
exception of those on the Pension Fund.

4. To consider the Council�s Annual Report, Annual Accounts and Trading Services
Annual Report and Accounts and refer these to Council for approval.

5. To ensure the Council meets its legal obligations through:-

(a) reviewing the reliability and robustness of financial information;

(b) ensuring compliance with audit legislation; and

(c) the preparation of reports of avoidable losses.

6. To receive reports on whistleblowing and other investigations.

7. The approval of an anti-fraud policy and monitoring its implementation; and

(a) Commissioning investigations to secure value for money in the delivery of
services.

(b) To oversee the processes by which services are exposed to competition
and contracts are let, where the Council itself is a bidder for the work.

8. To review minuted actions from all main Committees with the exception of the
Appeals, Planning Development Management and Licensing Committees to
ensure compliance with legal requirements and good practice. The Committee
will not prevent any decision being taken and will only review a decision.

9. To require Heads of Service and managers to be available to answer questions
at each meeting on matters set out on the agenda.

Page 77



10. The Committee may wish to call all Senior Councillors to attend meetings.

11. The Committee may, on occasion, seek information from partner organisations,
contractors or other stakeholders such as Community Councils or groups of
interest in any particular issue.

12. The Committee will make its recommendations by way of its minutes of meetings
which will be submitted to Council Minority views will also be put forward to
Council in the minute.

13. The Committee will consider any previously unscrutinised issue, process or
practice provided the matter has been the subject of a report to Council or
Committee and the consideration of the subject matter concluded by Council or
said Committee.

14. The Committee will ensure, through consideration of a quarterly report from the
governance hub, that each tier 1 Arm�s Length External Organisation has an
effective system of risk management in place, covering strategy, structure, skills,
system, staff and shared values. The Committee will use this to determine the
level of assurance it can place on the effectiveness of that system and its ability
to achieve the organisational objectives.

15. The Committee will consider reports from the governance hub on such other
matters as may be presented in areas such as audit, roles and responsibilities of
the board, legislation, following the public pound and breaches of governance.

16. The Committee will consider such reports on tier 2, 3 and 4 organisations as
may be submitted from the governance hub.

17. Representatives from external organisations are required, when requested, to
attend and contribute to meetings.

Page 78



8

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

ENTERPRISE, STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMUNITIES, HOUSING AND

INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. To be accountable for all services provided by the Enterprise, Planning
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Service, except where delegated to the
Planning Development Management Committee.

2. To receive and scrutinise performance information for the Enterprise, Planning
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Service, except where delegated to the
Planning Development Management Committee.

3. To take financial decisions concerning the Enterprise, Planning Communities,
Housing and Infrastructure Service budget where there will not be an adverse
impact.

4. To ensure that it delivers the services within the overall resources and
management strategies as set by the Council and overseen by the Finance,
Policy and Resources Committee; and to ensure that it achieves maximum value
for money and Best Value in service delivery; except where delegated to the
Planning Development Management Committee.

5. To approve changes to staffing structures and establishment within the agreed
budget.

6. To develop and approve service policies.

7. In respect of Aberdeen Exhibition and Conference Centre Ltd and its subsidiary
companies, the Committee shall receive from the governance hub twice yearly
progress reports on matters such as operational performance (including financial
performance), people performance, risk management and service quality
(including single outcome agreement achievements, customer feedback, and
health and safety); and an annual presentation on the ALEO business plan,
which will be used to approve funding for the subsequent year.

8. In respect of the Council�s responsibilities in relation to the Scottish Police
Authority, the Police Service of Scotland and the Scottish Fire and Rescue
Service under the Police and Fire Reform (Scotland) Act 2012, the Committee
will:-

(a) comment on the strategic police plan and the strategic fire and rescue
plan when consulted by the relevant national authority;

(b) respond to consultation by the Chief Constable on the designation of a
local commander and by the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service on the
designation of a local senior officer;

(c) be involved in the setting of priorities and objectives for the policing of
Aberdeen and for the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service for the
undertaking of its functions in Aberdeen;

(d) specify policing measures the Council wishes the local commander to
include in a local policing plan;

Page 79



(e) approve a local police plan submitted by the local commander and to
approve a local fire and rescue plan prepared by the local senior officer
and submitted by the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service;

(f) monitor service provision and delivery in Aberdeen and provide feedback
to the local commander and the local senior officer;

(g) consider reports, statistical information and other information about the
policing of Aberdeen and the undertaking of the Fire and Rescue function
in Aberdeen provided in response to the Council�s reasonable requests;

(h) agree, with the local commander, modifications to an approved local
police plan at any time; and

(i) liaise with the local commander and local senior officer with regard to the
undertaking by them of the community planning duties of the Chief
Constable and the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service.

9. To develop and approve the Council�s Health and Safety policy, including its
annual review and inclusion.

10. The Committee will consider such reports on the following tier 2 and 3
organisations, and any tier 4 organisation, as may be submitted from the
governance hub:-

� North East Scotland Transport Partnership (NESTRANS)

� Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA)

� Visit Aberdeen

� Grampian Venture Capital Fund Ltd

� Aberdeen City and Shire Economic Forum (ACSEF)

� Aberdeen Renewables Group (AREG) (no longer an ALEO)

� Aberdeen Heat and Power (AHP)

� Grampian Housing Association

� Care and Repair

11. Representatives from external organisations are required, when requested, to
attend and contribute to meetings.

Page 80



10

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT AND CHILDREN�S SERVICES

COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. To be accountable for all services provided by the Education, Culture and Sport
and Children�s Services Service.

2. To receive and scrutinise performance information for the Education, Culture
and Sport and Children�s Services Service.

3. To take financial decisions concerning the Education, Culture and Sport and
Children�s Services Service budget where there will not be an adverse impact.

4. To develop and approve policies and strategies for all functions of the Council as
education authority.

5. To oversee the functions of the Council as education authority under the
Education (Scotland) Act and all other relevant legislation and regulations
relating thereto.

6. To ensure that it delivers the services of the Education, Culture and Sport and
Children�s Services Service within the overall resources and management
strategies as set by the Council and overseen by the Finance, Policy and
Resources Committee; and to ensure that it achieves maximum value for money
and best value in service delivery.

7. To approve changes to staffing structures and establishment within the agreed
budget.

8. To develop and approve service policies.

9. To approve HR policies for teaching staff including instrumental music
instructors, advisors and educational psychologists.

10. To hear appeals by teaching staff.

11. To determine any complaints against external members of the Committee in
accordance with the agreed procedure.

12. In respect of Sport Aberdeen Ltd and Aberdeen Sports Village Ltd, to receive
from the governance hub twice yearly progress reports on matters such as
operational performance (including financial performance), people performance,
risk management and service quality (including single outcome agreement
achievements, customer feedback, and health and safety); and an annual
presentation on the ALEO business plan, which will be used to approve funding
for the subsequent year.

13. To consider such reports on the following tier 2 and 3 organisations, and any tier
4 organisation, as may be submitted from the governance hub:-

� Aberdeen Performing Arts (APA)

� Garthdee Alpine Sports

� Transition Extreme Sports Ltd

� Peacock Visual Arts

� Aberdeen International Youth Festival

Page 81



� Belmont Filmhouse Aberdeen Ltd

� Aberdeen Lads Club

� Fersands and Fountain Project

� Middlefield Community Project

� St Machar Parents Support Project

� Station House Media Unit

14. Representatives from external organisations are required, when requested, to
attend and contribute to meetings.

Page 82



12

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. To be accountable for all services provided by the Housing and Environment
Service.

2. To receive and scrutinise performance information for the Housing and
Environment Service.

3. To take financial decisions concerning the Housing and Environment Service
budget where there will not be an adverse impact.

4. To ensure that it delivers the services within the overall resources and
management strategies as set by the Council and overseen by the Finance,
Policy and Resources Committee; and to ensure that it achieves maximum value
for money and best value in service delivery.

5. To approve changes to staffing structures and establishment within the agreed
budget.

6. To develop and approve service policies.

7. The Committee will consider such reports on the following tier 2 and 3
organisations and any tier 4 organisation, as may be submitted from the
governance hub:-

� Aberdeen Heat and Power (AHP)

� Grampian Housing Association

� Care and Repair

8. The Committee can require representatives of organisations to attend its
meetings.

Page 83



13

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

SOCIAL CARE, WELLBEING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. To be accountable for all services provided by the Social Care and Wellbeing
Service.

2. To receive and scrutinise performance information for the Social Care and
Wellbeing Service.

3. To take financial decisions concerning the Social Care and Wellbeing Service
budget where there will not be an adverse impact.

4. To ensure that it delivers the services within the overall resources and
management strategies as set by the Council and overseen by the Finance,
Policy and Resources Committee; and to ensure that it achieves maximum value
for money and best value in service delivery

5. To approve changes to staffing structures and establishment within the agreed
budget.

6. To develop and approve service policies.

7. In respect of Bon Accord Care Ltd and Bon Accord Support Services Ltd, the
Committee shall receive from the governance hub twice yearly progress reports
on matters such as operational performance (including financial performance),
people performance, risk management and service quality (including single
outcome agreement achievements, customer feedback, and health and safety);
and an annual presentation on the ALEO business plan, which will be used to
approve funding for the subsequent year.

8. The Committee can require representatives of organisations to attend its
meetings.

9. In respect of the Council�s responsibilities in relation to the Scottish Police
Authority, the Police Service of Scotland and the Scottish Fire and Rescue
Service under the Police and Fire Reform (Scotland) Act 2012, the Committee
will:-

(j) comment on the strategic police plan and the strategic fire and rescue
plan when consulted by the relevant national authority;

(k) respond to consultation by the Chief Constable on the designation of a
local commander and by the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service on the
designation of a local senior officer;

(l) be involved in the setting of priorities and objectives for the policing of
Aberdeen and for the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service for the
undertaking of its functions in Aberdeen;

(m) specify policing measures the Council wishes the local commander to
include in a local policing plan;

(n) approve a local police plan submitted by the local commander and to
approve a local fire and rescue plan prepared by the local senior officer
and submitted by the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service;

Page 84



(o) monitor service provision and delivery in Aberdeen and provide feedback
to the local commander and the local senior officer;

(p) consider reports, statistical information and other information about the
policing of Aberdeen and the undertaking of the Fire and Rescue function
in Aberdeen provided in response to the Council�s reasonable requests;

(q) agree, with the local commander, modifications to an approved local
police plan at any time; and

(r) liaise with the local commander and local senior officer with regard to the
undertaking by them of the community planning duties of the Chief
Constable and the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service.

10. To develop and approve the Council�s Health and Safety policy, including its
annual review and inclusion.

Page 85



15

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. The functions of the Council in relation to all licensing matters under the Civic
Government (Scotland) Act 1982 and all other Acts (not falling specifically within
the remit of any other Committee) covering personal or other licences,
certificates and permits (excluding all matters dealt with by the Licensing Board).

2. The consideration of applications for the grant, renewal or suspension of
Licences for Houses of Multiple Occupation that require a hearing. (The
responsibility for all other matters relating to the licensing of Houses of Multiple
Occupation resting with the Housing and Environment Committee).

3. All other matters relating thereto, including fixing of application fees, taxi fares
and taxi stances.

4. The functions of the Council under the Safety of Sports Ground Act 1975.

Page 86



16

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

PENSIONS PANEL COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. Appoint the Convener and Vice Convener of the Pensions Panel.

2. The Committee will appoint the Convener of the Joint Investment Advisory
Committee.

3. The Committee will specify the name of the Fund.

4. To authorise the Convener and Vice Convener of the Pensions Panel Committee
to act on behalf of the Panel Committee.

5. To prepare, maintain and publish the Governance Policy Statement.

6. To ensure that the Fund complies with:

� the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1998;

� the Local Government (Discretionary Payments and Injury
Benefits) (Scotland) Regulations 1998;

� the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) (Scotland) Regulations 1998 as amended;
and

� all other legislation governing the administration of the Fund.

7. To ensure that an actuarial valuation is carried out on a triennial basis and
consider the outcome of the valuation, and to determine the level of employer
contributions necessary to ensure a 100% funding level.

8. To prepare, maintain and publish the Funding Strategy Statement.

9. To set the investment objective and strategy in light of the Fund's liabilities.

10. To oversee and monitor the investment strategy and investment management of
the Pension Fund having considered the recommendations of the Joint
Investment Advisory Committee.

11. To receive on a quarterly basis a report from the Joint Investment Advisory
Committee on their recommendations with regard to the appointment, retention
and termination of fund management appointments.

12. To ensure that appropriate arrangements for the benefit administration of the
Pension Fund are in place.

13. To oversee admission agreements and their implementation.

14. To review on a regular basis, discretions available under regulation 96.

15. To receive reports from officers on regulation consultation exercises carried out
with the SPPA (Scottish Public Pensions Agency).

16. To prepare, maintain and publish the Communications policy.

17. To prepare, maintain and publish the Statement of Investment Principles.

18. To approve the budget and service plan.

19. To ensure that an effective system of internal financial control is maintained.

20. To review the annual report and accounting statement.

Page 87



21. To consider all reports issued by internal and external audit on the Pension
Fund.

Page 88



18

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. The Planning Development Management Committee will have the primary
responsibility for ensuring the effective and proper disposal of the Development
Management and Building Standards responsibilities of the Council.

2. The Committee will ensure that the functions, powers and duties of the Council
as planning authority and buildings authority in terms of relevant planning
legislation and building standards regulations are met and, in particular, the Sub-
Committee shall:-

(a) determine all applications for consent or permission except those local
applications which fall to be determined by an appointed officer under the
adopted Scheme of Delegation;

(b) visit application sites where agreed;

(c) authorise the taking of enforcement action;

(d) authorise participation in the appeals process;

(e) make Orders and issue Notices;

(f) approve development briefs and masterplans;

(g) develop and adopt non-statutory development management guidance
(supplementary planning guidance); and

(h) conduct pre-determination hearings in pursuance of the provisions
contained within Section 38A of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as introduced by Section 14 of the Planning etc
(Scotland) Act 2006).

3. The Committee will ensure the integrated delivery of these services within the
policies and strategies of Aberdeen City Council.

4. The Committee will ensure that it delivers services within the overall resources
management strategies as set by the Council and that it achieves maximum
value for money and Best Value in service delivery.

5. The Committee will receive and scrutinise performance information for the
Development Management and Building Control services.

Page 89



19

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

PETITIONS COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

To consider and respond to petitions addressed to Aberdeen City Council in
accordance with the Council�s approved petitions procedure.

Page 90



HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

To Be Agreed By TLG/Council/NHS Board

Page 91



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

PROPERTY SUB COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. To set and monitor an asset management strategy for the Council and to
scrutinise performance within this.

2. To undertake overall management of the Council�s property at the stage of
acquisition or disposal.

Page 92



22

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

HOUSING CASES REVIEW SUB COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

That the Sub Committee acts with delegated powers to deal with all matters relative to
the allocation and management of individual Council houses including the leasing and
management of pitches at Clinterty Caravan Site and any similar site, with the
exception of matters which have already been delegated to the Director of Housing
and Environment Communities and Infrastructure.

Page 93



23

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

LICENSING HEARINGS SUB COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

As a sub committee of the Licensing Committee to hear any application for grant,
renewal or suspension of any licence on behalf of the Licensing Committee where
evidence is to be heard and to make decisions on such matters.

Page 94



24

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

LICENSING INFORMAL BUSINESS PANEL URGENT BUSINESS SUB

COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

To consider any matters placed before it by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services
relating to any matters on which the Licensing Committee can make decisions and to
either grant or refuse applications where it deems appropriate.

Page 95



25

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

CULTURE AND SPORT SUB COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. To approve individual culture and sport awards to the value of £10,000.

2. To consider any and all other items relating to culture and/ or sport, except
where expressly delegated to another Committee or Sub Committee, including,
but not limited to, the following:

15. reports on culture and sport policy and strategy matters, including
research and consultancy work, the development of sports and cultural
priorities and action plans

16. reports and presentations on previously approved major revenue and
capital initiatives such as the proposed enhanced culture programme,
Sistema, Commonwealth Games Legacy planning, and other projects

17. implementation reports on organisational performance and How Good is
Our Culture and Sport (HGIOC&S), ensuring that funds are used to meet
the strategic and operational objectives of the City Council

3. In respect of Sport Aberdeen Ltd and Aberdeen Sports Village Ltd, to receive
from the governance hub twice yearly progress reports on matters such as
operational performance (including financial performance), people performance,
risk management and service quality (including single outcome agreement
achievements, customer feedback, and health and safety); and an annual
presentation on the ALEO business plan, which will be used to approve funding
for the subsequent year.

4. To consider such reports on the following tier 2 and 3 organisations, and any tier
4 organisation, as may be submitted from the governance hub:-

� Aberdeen Performing Arts (APA)

� Garthdee Alpine Sports

� Transition Extreme Sports Ltd

� Peacock Visual Arts

� Aberdeen International Youth Festival

� City Screen Aberdeen Ltd

� Aberdeen Lads Club

� Fersands and Fountain Project

� Middlefield Community Project

� St Machar Parents Support Project

� Station House Media Unit

5. Representatives of organisations can be required to attend meetings.

Page 96



26

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF CULTURE 2017 SUB COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. To monitor and oversee all aspects relating to the development of Aberdeen City
Council�s bid for UK City of Culture 2017 within the approved budget, with the
final bid to be submitted to Council for approval. This does not apply in respect
of matters which fall within the remit of a Committee of the Council, or which are
delegated to officers unless such delegation is removed by the Council.

2. To establish the bid project board and working groups and to monitor their
activities.

Page 97



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

ZERO WASTE MANAGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

To deal with all matters pertaining to strategic waste management issues including (1)
identifying a preferred solution further to an options appraisal; (2) the contracting of
new services in this regard; and (3) undertaking any spend within the allocated waste
management budgets.

Page 98



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

HAZLEHEAD GROVE NURSERY WORKING GROUP

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

1. To provide support to the Project Owner and Project Decision Maker
2. To operate as a high level consultation group, addressing strategic issues

and any potential major points of difficulty and ensure that other
stakeholders are committed to the project.

3. To direct the project, ensuring the project supports the strategy of the
Council, 5 Year Business Plan and other associated strategies for example
City of Culture and Britain in Bloom.

4. To ensure the quality of the output of the project, including sustainability,
and approve Scope, Business Case, Project Charter, Change Requests,
and Project Closure

Page 99



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

SHAREHOLDER SCRUTINY GROUP

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

The following remit of the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee applies to
this Sub Committee only in respect of the Bon Accord Care Companies.

1. To ensure, through consideration of a quarterly report from the governance
hub, that each tier 1 Arm�s Length External Organisation has an effective
system of risk management in place, covering strategy, structure, skills,
system, staff and shared values. The Committee will use this to determine the
level of assurance it can place on the effectiveness of that system and its ability
to achieve the organisational objectives.

2. To consider reports from the governance hub on such other matters as may be
presented in areas such as audit, roles and responsibilities of the board,
legislation, following the public pound and breaches of governance.

3. To consider such reports on tier 2, 3 and 4 organisations as may be submitted
from the governance hub.

4. Representatives from external organisations are required, when requested, to
attend and contribute to meetings.

Page 100



Appendix C

No. of
members

Lab SNP Lib Dem Ind Others

Finance, Policy
and Resources

17 7 6 2 1 1

Audit, Risk &
Scrutiny

17 7 6 2 1 1

Education &
Children�s
Services

19 8 7 2 1 1

Communities,
Housing &
Infrastructure

19 8 7 2 1 1

Health and Care
Integration Joint
Board

6
(to be

agreed with
partners)

2 1 1 1 1

Planning
Development
Management

15 6 5 2 1 1

Licensing
Committee

15 6 5 2 1 1

Pensions 9 3 3 1 1 1

Petitions 13 5 5 1 1 1

Total 130 52 45 15 9 9

Page 101



Appendix D
Senior Councillors

Post Appointee Remuneration Senior
Councillor

Lord Provost Councillor Adam £28,981

Depute Provost Councillor
Reynolds

£21,736 1

Council Leader Councillor Laing £38,641

Depute Council Leader Councillor
Boulton

£28,981 1

Convener, Audit & Risk Councillor
McCaig

£28,981 1

Vice Convener, Audit &
Risk

Councillor Yuill £21,736 1

Convener, Education,
Culture and Sport

Councillor Laing

Vice Convener, Education,
Culture and Sport

Councillor
Thomson

£21,736 1

Convener, Enterprise,
Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure

Councillor
Crockett

£28,981 1

Vice Convener, Enterprise ,
Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure

Councillor Taylor £21,736 1

Convener, Finance, Policy
and Resources

Councillor
Young

£28,981 1

Vice Convener, Finance,
Policy and Resources

Councillor
Forsyth

Convener, Property Sub-
Committee

Councillor Allan £21,736 1

Convener, Housing and
Environment

Councillor
Cooney

£28,981 1

Vice Convener, Housing
and Environment

Councillor
Jean Morrison

£21,736 1

Convener, Petitions Councillor
Donnelly

£0 1

Vice Convener, Petitions Councillor Carle £0 1

Page 102



Post Appointee Remuneration Senior
Councillor

Convener, Planning
Development Management
Committee

Councillor Milne £21,736 1

Convener, Social Care,
Wellbeing and Safety

Councillor
Ironside

£28,981 1

Vice Convener, Social
Care, Wellbeing and Safety

Councillor Lesley
Dunbar

£21,736 1

Vice Convener with
responsibility for Police and
Fire

Councillor
Graham

£21,736 1

Convener, Licensing
Committee

Councillor
Forsyth

£28,981 1

Convener, Appeals
Committee

Councillor Grant £21,736 1

Convener, Licensing Board Councillor
Boulton

Convener, Pensions Panel Councillor
Crockett

Senior Councillor Totals £420,227 19

Maximum allowed £432,642 19

13.6.14

Page 103



2014 AUGUST 2014

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8

Local Review Body (10am)

9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19

SCHOOL TERM STARTS

Licensing Board (10.30am)

20

Council (10.30am)

21

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

Local Review Body (12pm)

22 23

24 25 26

Housing and Environment

Committee (2pm)

27

Appeals Committee (10am)

28

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits)(9.30am)

Social Care, Wellbeing and

Safety Committee (2pm)

29

Corporate Health & Safety

Committee (10am)

30

31

P
a
g

e
 1

0
4



2014 SEPTEMBER 2014

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

1 2

Licensing Committee (10am)

3

Homelessness Strategy

Working Group (10am)

4

Enterprise, Strategic

Planning and Infrastructure

Committee (2pm)

5 6

7 8

Pensions Committee (10am)

Elected Member

Development Day

9

Property Sub Committee

(2pm)

10

Disability Advisory Group

(10.30am)

11

Education, Culture and Sport

Committee (2pm)

12

Local Review Body (10am)

13

14 15 16

Licensing Board (10.30am)

17

Housing Cases Review Sub

Committee (2pm)

18 19

SEPTEMBER HOLIDAY

20

21 22

SEPTEMBER HOLIDAY

23

Shareholder Scrutiny Group

(10am)

Audit and Risk Committee

(2pm)

24

Appeals Committee (10am)

25

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

Local Review Body (12pm)

Petitions Committee (2pm)

26

Reconvened Appeals

Committee (10am)

27

28 29 30

Finance, Policy and Resources

Committee (2pm)

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



2014 OCTOBER 2014

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

1

Culture and Sport Sub

Committee (10am)

2

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits) (9.30am)

3 4

5 6 7

Zero Waste Management Sub

Committee (2pm)

8

Council (10.30am)

9 10

SCHOOL TERM ENDS

Local Review Body (10am)

11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27

SCHOOL TERM STARTS

28

Communities, Housing and

Infrastructure Committee

(2pm)

29

Appeals Committee (10am)

30 31

P
a
g

e
 1

0
6



2014 NOVEMBER 2014

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

1

2 3

Elected Member

Development Day

4

Education and Children�s

Services (2pm)

5

Disability Advisory Group

(10.30am)

6

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

Local Review Body (12pm)

7 8

9 10 11

Licensing Board (10.30am)

12

Housing Cases Review Sub

Committee (2pm)

13

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits)(9.30am)

14 15

16 17 18 19 20

Shareholder Scrutiny Group

(10am)

Audit, Risk and Scrutiny

Committee (2pm)

21

Local Review Body (10am)

22

23 24

Pensions Committee (10am)

25

Licensing Committee (10am)

26

Appeals Committee (10am)

27

Petitions Committee (2pm)

28

Corporate Health & Safety

Committee (10am)

29

30

P
a
g
e
 1

0
7



2014 DECEMBER 2014

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

1 2

Zero Waste Management Sub

Committee (2pm)

3 4

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

Local Review Body (12pm)

Finance, Policy and

Resources Committee (2pm)

5 6

7 8

Elected Member

Development Day

9 10 11

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits)(9.30am)

Disability Advisory Group

(10.30am)

12 13

14 15

Local Review Body (10am)

16

Appeals Committee (10am)

17

Council (10.30am)

18 19

SCHOOL TERM ENDS

20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31

P
a
g

e
 1

0
8



2015 JANUARY 2015

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

1 2 3

4 5

SCHOOL TERM STARTS

6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13

Communities, Housing and

Infrastructure Committee

(2pm)

14

Housing Cases Review Sub

Committee (2pm)

15

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

16 17

18 19 20

Licensing Board (10.30am)

21 22

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits) (9.30am)

23 24

25 26 27

Licensing Committee (10am)

28

Appeals Committee (10am)

29

Education and Children�s

Services Committee (2pm)

30

P
a
g
e
 1

0
9



2015 FEBRUARY 2015

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

31

1 2

Elected Member

Development Day

3 4

Disability Advisory Group

(10.30am)

5

Council Budget (2pm)

6 7

8 9 10 11

Petitions Committee (2pm)

12

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

13 14

15 16

SCHOOL MID TERM

17 18

Finance, Policy and Resources

Committee (2pm)

19

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits) (9.30am)

20

Corporate Health & Safety

Committee (10am)

21

22 23 24

Zero Waste Management Sub

Committee (2pm)

25

Appeals Committee (10am)

26

Shareholder Scrutiny Group

(10am)

Audit, Risk and Scrutiny

Committee (2pm)

27 28

P
a
g

e
 1

1
0



2015 MARCH 2015

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

1 2 3

Licensing Board (10.30am)

4

Council (10.30am)

5 6 7

8 9

Pensions Committee (10am)

10

Communities, Housing and

Infrastructure Committee

(2pm)

11

Education and Children�s

Services Committee (2pm)

12 13 14

15 16 17

Licensing Committee (10am)

18 19

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

20 21

22 23 24 25

Appeals Committee (10am)

SDPA (2pm)

26

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits) (9.30am)

27 28

29 30

Elected Member

Development Day

31

P
a
g
e
 1

1
1



2015 APRIL 2015

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

1

Disability Advisory Group

(10.30am)

2 3

SCHOOL TERM ENDS

4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17

Good Friday

18

19 20 21

SCHOOL TERM STARTS

Petitions Committee (2pm)

22

Housing Cases Review Sub

Committee (2pm)

23

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

Finance, Policy and

Resources Committee (2pm)

24 25

26 27

Pensions Committee (10am)

28

Licensing Board (10.30am)

Zero Waste Management Sub

Committee (2pm)

29

Appeals Committee (10am)

30

Shareholder Scrutiny Group

(10am)

Audit, Risk and Scrutiny

Committee (2pm)

P
a
g

e
 1

1
2



2015 MAY 2015

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

1

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits)(9.30am)

2

3 4

OTC Houston

MAY DAY HOLIDAY

5

OTC Houston

6

OTC Houston

7

OTC Houston

8 9

10 11

Elected Member

Development Day

12

Licensing Committee (10am)

13

Council (10.30am)

14 15 16

17 18 19

Communities, Housing and

Infrastructure Committee

(2pm)

20

ALL ENERGY CONFERENCE

(TBC)

21

ALL ENERGY CONFERENCE

(TBC)

22

Corporate Health & Safety

Committee (10am)

23

24 25 26 27

Appeals Committee (10am)

28

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

29 30

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3



2015 JUNE 2015

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/day

31 1 2

Education and Children�s

Services Committee (2pm)

3

Disability Advisory Group

(10.30am)

4

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits) (9.30am)

Petitions Committee (2pm)

5 6

7 8

Pensions Committee (10am)

9

Finance, Policy and Resources

Committee (2pm)

10

Housing Cases Review Sub

Committee (2pm)

11 12 13

14 15 16 17

Appeals Committee (10am)

18

Planning Development

Management Committee

(10am)

19 20

21 22

Elected Member

Development Day

23

Licensing Board (10.30am)

Zero Waste Management Sub

Committee (2pm)

24

Council (10.30am)

25

Shareholder Scrutiny Group

(10am)

Audit, Risk and Scrutiny

Committee (2pm)

26

Planning Development

Management Committee

(Visits)(9.30am)

27

28 29 30

Licensing Committee (10am)

P
a
g

e
 1

1
4



Group / Sub Committee Number of

Places

Current Membership

City Centre

Regeneration Board

6 Council Leader

Depute Leader

Convener � Finance, Policy & Resources Committee

Councillor Thomson

Convener � Audit and Risk Committee

Vice Convener � Audit and Risk Committee

Controlled Parking

Working Group

Convener and Vice Convener of Enterprise, Strategic

Planning and Infrastructure Committee and members

from affected wards

Corporate Health and

Safety Committee

5 1 Labour

1 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Donnelly

Corporate Parenting

Champions Board

To be the subject of a further report on remit and

membership to Education and Children�s Services

Committee

Cowdray Hall

Committee

6 1 Labour

1 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

2 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Thomson

Culture and Sport Sub

Committee

7 2 Labour

2 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Thomson

Diamond Jubilee

Commonwealth Travel

Working Group

7 2 Labour

2 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Donnelly

Disability Advisory

Group

5 3 Labour

2 SNP

Electoral Boundaries

Working Group

7 2 Labour

2 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Donnelly

Freedom of the City

Working Group

6 Lord Provost

1 Labour

1 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Forsyth

Guildry and

Mortification Funds Sub

Committee

4 Master of Mortifications

Lord Provost

1 SNP

Dean of Guild

APPENDIX F

Page 115



Group / Sub Committee Number of

Places

Current Membership

Hazlehead Grove

Nursery Working Group

6 4 Local Members

1 Labour

1 Independent Alliance Group

Homelessness Strategy

Working Group

7 2 Labour

2 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Forsyth

Housing Cases Review

Sub Committee

7 2 Labour

2 SNP

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Donnelly

Councillor Thomson

Licensing Hearings Sub

Committee

7 2 Labour

2 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Forsyth

Licensing Urgent

Business Sub Committee

7 2 Labour

2 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Forsyth

Local Government

Employees Joint

Consultative Committee

9 3 Labour

2 SNP

2 Liberal Democrat

1 Independent Alliance Group

Councillor Forsyth

Macdonald Art

Committee

4 1 Labour

1 Independent Alliance Group

2 Liberal Democrat

Marischal Square

Working Group

5 Council Leader

Depute Leader

Convener of Finance, Policy and Resources

Councillor Forsyth

1 member of the opposition

Older People�s Advisory

Group

5 1 Labour

1 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Donnelly

Planning Appeals Panel 5 2 Labour

1 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Property Sub Committee 9 3 Labour

3 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

APPENDIX F

Page 116



Group / Sub Committee Number of

Places

Current Membership

Councillor Forsyth

Rubislaw Field

Committee

3 Convener of Education, Culture and Sport

2 Local Members

Shareholder Scrutiny

Group

6 3 Labour

1 SNP

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Donnelly

Sistema Partnership

Board

To be the subject of a further report on remit and

membership to Education and Children�s Services

Committee

Special Licensing

Objections Committee

5 1 Labour

1 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Thomson

Sports Ground Advisory

Group

5 1 Labour

1 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Forsyth

Strategic Planning Group To be the subject of further discussion with partners

and reports to the Health and Care Integration Joint

Board

Taxi Consultation Group 5 1 Labour

1 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Forsyth

Urgent Business

Committee

13 5 Labour

5 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Forsyth

Zero Waste

Management Sub

Committee

7 2 Labour

2 SNP

1 Independent Alliance Group

1 Liberal Democrat

Councillor Donnelly

APPENDIX F

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Council  
 
DATE  20 August 2014  
 
DIRECTOR  Ewan Sutherland (Acting Director) 
 
TITLE OF REPORT   Update - Camping in Designated Places 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/14/099 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED: Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is update members on progress on the 
byelaw on camping in designated places. 
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
           The Council is recommended to note the report. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
There are no financial implications arising from this report.   

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no additional implications arising from this report beyond 
those set out in the report to the Council’s meeting on 14 May 2014 

. 
 

5.        BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

The Council, at its meeting on 14 May 2014, approved the wording of 
the proposed byelaw; approved the designated areas; and instructed 
officers to take all necessary steps to complete the statutory process to 
seek confirmation of the byelaw from the Scottish Government. 
Statutory procedures have been followed to advertise notice of 
intention to apply for confirmation.  The period for representation has 
expired and the application for confirmation has been made to the 

Agenda Item 7(c)

Page 119



 

Scottish Government. The Equality and Human Rights Commission 
amongst others has lodged representations to the Scottish 
Government.  The Scottish Government is collating representations 
lodged and will in due course copy to the Council for comment. 
Thereafter the Scottish Government will consider the position and 
reach a decision. 
 
The Council at its meeting on 14 May 2014 instructed the Chief 
Executive to write to the Lord Advocate to request a review of the 
guidelines issued to Procurators Fiscal in relation to unauthorised 
encampment by Gypsy/Travellers and the presumption against 
prosecution. A response dated 25 July 2014 (Appendix 1) has now 
been received from the Crown Office declining to do so. 
 
A further update regarding the byelaw will be provided to the next 
Council meeting. 

 
  
6. IMPACT 
 

Public – The report is likely to generate public interest as the issue of a 
byelaw has attracted widespread public interest. 

 
Equalities – The issues identified in the report to Council on 14 May 
2014 continue to exist. 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 

 
The issues identified in the report to Council on 14 May 2014 continue 
to exist. 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Council report and minute of meeting 14 May 2014. 

 
  

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

 
Alyson Mollison 
Legal Manager 

           E-mail: amollison@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
           Telephone: 01224 522557 
 

Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



 

 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Council 
 
DATE  20 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  SIP New Build Housing Budget  
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/054 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
This report advises on the investment opportunities for the Strategic 
Infrastructure Plan (SIP) Project to enable the delivery of affordable 
houses. The investment opportunities presented has two objectives; (1) 
to support the establishment of a delivery partnership; and (2) to 
support the undertaking of due diligence on the sites and the taking of 
the sites through the planning and design process to obtain Statutory 
Consents and Statutory Undertakings. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
  

It is recommended that the Council:  
1) Approves the investment opportunities for the new build housing 

project 
2) Authorises investment of up to £3 million to finance the cash 

flow enabling the delivery of this project which will be met from 
the Council’s reserves and Non Housing Capital Programme. 

4)  Authorises the Director of Communities and Infrastructure to 
conduct any tendering or competitive quotes processes as may 
be necessary for the purposes of delivering the Strategic 
Infrastructure Plan housing project(s) and to award contracts 
following on from such tendering or competitive quotes 
processes, subject to this being contained within the £3 million 
budget envelope. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The approval of the recommendations will have financial implications 
for the years 2014 to 2017. The expenditure required to undertake the 
due diligence on the sites and to take the sites through the planning 
process will be returned to the Council once a partner is procured and 
as development of the sites progress. There are some legal costs that 

Agenda Item 7(d)

Page 123



 

 

will not be returned. The estimated expenditure for all sites and other 
items is estimated to be up to a maximum of £3 million.  
 
Funding for this project will be met from the Council’s reserves and 
Non Housing Capital Programme in order to facilitate the necessary 
cash flow to take these critical projects forward. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
The due diligence on the sites and the procurement of a development 
partner will have implications for the Council’s legal, property, and 
finance teams. The process to deliver affordable housing and appoint a 
partner was approved through the SIP.  
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
A SIP for Aberdeen has been prepared by the Council that is focussed 
on the enabling infrastructure needed to build on the positive economic 
position of the city.  The SIP identified key goals, one of which was a 
step change in the supply of housing. To support this there is an 
objective to increase the supply of affordable housing to meet the city’s 
housing needs.  
 
The SIP identifies the availability of housing, including the cost, in both 
the rental and buying market as a fundamental problem and recognises 
it as one of the key priorities to support and underpin the economic 
growth of the city. Although sufficient land has been identified to 
address the housing requirements of the city, through the local plan 
process, there remains a greater demand across all sectors than the 
supply available in the market place and certainly in terms of 
development delivery timescale. This in turn impacts on rental costs as 
well as house values and acts as a constraint on the labour market. 
 
The requirement for a continuing supply of ‘Human Capital’ to support 
economic growth is one of a number of key imperatives for the city. 
The cost of housing within the travel to work area is a major barrier to 
mobility for those seeking employment in Aberdeen, moving from parts 
of the UK where housing is more readily available or available at a 
lesser cost across all tenures. Removing the barriers and delivering the 
infrastructure to enable the delivery of new housing developments is 
vital for the economic growth of the city and supporting the upfront 
costs, which are reimbursable, is essential to this. 
 
The SIP has committed to procure a suitable delivery partnership to 
help to meet its short and medium term affordable housing 
commitments of 2,030 by May 2017, and our forecast five year delivery 
pipeline of 2,430 units by 2019. In seeking to develop new affordable 
houses we are aware of the need for and the opportunity to increase 
the range, type and tenure of houses across the city. The 
developments will comprise of a housing mix of social rent, mid-market 

Page 124



 

 

rent, shared equity/ low cost home ownership and private sale, where 
some sites will have a greater or lesser mix of certain tenures 
depending on the individual requirements and site suitability. We will 
also endeavour to increase opportunities for some of our existing 
residents by enhancing options for them through different house types 
and tenures as their aspirations and family circumstances change over 
the years. By doing this it will free up their existing properties for 
others, meet their own housing requirements and enable them to 
continue to live in the area, providing stability for the community as well 
as their families. 
 
The purpose of procuring a delivery partner(s) is to: bring in private 
sector experience and expertise in the delivery of affordable and 
private housing, bring in a partner or consortium that has a 
standardised product to assist in the speed of delivery, increase ability 
to lever in finance to fund development and for both parties to share in 
the development risk and profit.  
 
The partnership will have both short and longer term objectives. In the 
short term there is an objective to deliver the 1,000 affordable houses. 
The long term partnership will have the objective of working together to 
develop sites for private development and maximise development 
returns for both parties together with capturing the planning 
requirement for delivery of affordable housing on site. At this stage all 
development is anticipated to be on Council owned land.  
 
A New Build Housing Team has been appointed to meet these 
objectives. There are two separate processes to go through before 
sites can be developed.  
 
1. Procure a Partner 
 
As mentioned previously it has been decided that the best way to 
deliver the objectives for new build housing is to procure a partner to 
develop the sites. To procure a partner the Council is required to follow 
European Union procurement procedures and in setting up a joint 
venture there will be legal and financial input required. Some of this 
can be covered by the Council officers, but for some aspects external 
advice will be necessary. 
 
2. Due Diligence  
 
The successful development of affordable housing targets set out in 
the SIP necessitates due diligence being undertaken on the sites being 
transferred to any future partnership. This is essential to ensure the 
sites are deliverable, that best value is maximised for the Council and 
that the joint venture can proceed with as little delay as possible once 
established. The process of due diligence involves the following 
process: 

• Identify available land 

• Ensure mechanisms to deliver land 

• Legal Title Reports 

Page 125



 

 

• Desktop Studies 

• Topographical Studies 

• Development Layouts 

• Initial Viability 

• Development Outturn Programme  

• Site Investigation Reports 

• Detailed design of roads, sewers, SUDS requirements and 
Statutory Undertaking requirements 

• Statutory Consents (Planning, RCC & Drainage Consent) 
 
These are normal development costs and therefore once a partnership 
is established and developments are completed the capital expenditure 
will be recovered. This will be in addition to a land receipt and share of 
development profit resulting from any private development. 
 
3. Housing Sites 
 
To deliver the affordable housing targets in the SIP a range of sites 
have been identified for delivery, see Appendix 1. It is likely that 
additional sites will become available for this project, and it is also 
possible that as due diligence on sites is undertaken, sites may be 
identified as unsuitable for development. Should sites be identified as 
unsuitable for development there will be no further expenditure on the 
site. Should additional sites become available for inclusion in the new 
build housing project and the Council decide that it is appropriate to 
include the site within the project it is important that the budget set in 
this report can be flexible to allow for expenditure without delaying 
progress on any new opportunities.  
 
The sites confirmed at this stage as committed to the housing project 
are (as identified in Appendix 1): 

• Former Bucksburn Farm 

• Former Craighill Primary School 

• Former Smithfield Primary School 

• Former St Machar Primary School (Tillydrone) 

• Former Aberdon Care Home (Tillydrone) 

• Former Tillydrone Primary School (Tillydrone) 

• East Woodcroft 

• Kincorth Academy 
 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
The budget approval will support the delivery of significant numbers of 
affordable houses across a range of sites in the city, with a number 
located within the regeneration priority areas. This project will deliver 
much needed affordable housing across a mix of tenures, support 
regeneration through the improvement of the environmental quality of 
development sites and assist in increasing the supply of private 
housing.  
 

Page 126



 

 

This project supports the Community Plan and Single Outcome 
Agreement objectives to increase the levels of affordable housing in 
new developments and the housing projects will help to improve the 
quality of life in regeneration areas given the location of the potential 
development sites.  
 
The delivery of affordable housing supports the key priorities of the 5 
year Corporate Business Plan for Smarter Living and Smarter 
Economy through the priority to improve access to affordable housing. 
This project also fits with the aspirations of the Housing and 
Environment Directorate for new house building which increases the 
provision of affordable houses and regeneration of strategically 
important parts of the city. 
 
Public – This report identifies expenditure related to the development of 
Council owned sites for affordable housing, which will be of interest to 
the public.  
 
Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment – This report 
provides a budget to take forward an approved Council objective as 
published in the Strategic Infrastructure Plan. The budget will have no 
impact on other Council budgets and will have no impact on equality 
groups. 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

The return of capital expenditure as set out in this report will be reliant 
on the establishment of a joint venture and development of the sites for 
housing. There is a risk that the project does not go ahead and 
therefore costs cannot be recovered through the development of sites. 
This is an opportunity risk which in taking will help achieve the target 
set out in the SIP. A team has been established to manage this 
process and market research has been undertaken to ensure that 
suitable partners are interested in the project. In addition capital 
expenditure on due diligence will not have been lost as the work 
completed on the sites would be valid for an alternative project or 
enhance the site value should they be sold on the open market. 
 
It is possible that in the process of undertaking due diligence on the 
sites that there are constraints identified on sites which will lead to 
them being undeliverable. These costs would then be unrecoverable, 
which is a financial risk. To mitigate this risk due diligence will be 
undertaken following a set process to ensure that capital is not spent 
on additional surveys, or gaining planning permission if the 
development is not considered to be viable. The lower value costs to 
establish development viability are an opportunity risk that may be lost, 
but are absolutely necessary to achieve the target for affordable 
housing set out in the SIP. The expertise of the officers within the SIP 
Affordable Housing Team is such that this risk will be nullified or 
mitigated to protect the Councils interests at all times. 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Page 127



 

 

 
Strategic Infrastructure Plan 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Paul Genoe 
Housing Programme Manager 
SIP Affordable Housing Team  
Regeneration and Housing Investment 

  

Page 128



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

: 
S

it
e

s 

R
e

d
 l

in
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s 
si

te
s 

li
st

e
d

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

F
o

rm
e

r 
B

u
ck

sb
u

rn
 F

a
rm

 

 

Page 129



F
o

rm
e

r 
C

ra
ig

h
il

l 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
ch

o
o

l 

 

 
 

Page 130



F
o

rm
e

r 
S

m
it

h
fi

e
ld

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

ch
o

o
l 

 

  

Page 131



T
il

ly
d

ro
n

e
 S

it
e

s 
(F

o
rm

e
r 

T
il

ly
d

ro
n

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
ch

o
o

l,
 F

o
rm

e
r 

S
t 

M
a

ch
a

r 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
ch

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 F
o

rm
e

r 
A

b
e

rd
o

n
 C

a
re

 H
o

m
e

) 

  

  

Page 132



E
a

st
 W

o
o

d
cr

o
ft

 

 
 

Page 133



K
in

co
rt

h
 A

ca
d

e
m

y
 

 

Page 134



 1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Council    
 
DATE     20 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  International Trade Overseas Travel – Oklahoma and 

Mozambique 
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/14/239 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED: Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
The report requests consideration of two overseas visits by an Officer and an 
Elected Member to Oklahoma and to Mozambique, over and above the Council’s 
approved International Trade Plan activities for 2014/2015.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
It is recommended that Council: 
 

1. Consider authorisation of an extension to the existing approval of an 
overseas trade visit to Louisiana to allow the Depute Provost, or his 
nominated substitute, accompanied by an Officer, to visit Oklahoma 
City in October 2014 to address an energy conference, as described in 
the report 

2. Consider authorisation of an overseas trade visit to Mozambique in 
November/December 2014 by the Depute Provost, or his nominated 
substitute, accompanied by an Officer, as described in the report  

3. Receive a bulletin report on each visit within one month of return, if the 
visits are approved 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The delivery of the International Trade Plan 2014/2015 (approved by Enterprise 
Planning and Infrastructure Committee in January 2014) is supported by 3 FTE 
staff and an annual operational budget of £69,000 (excluding staff costs).  
 
This operational budget is fully committed to the delivery of the approved Plan 
and its priority sector, markets and activities (details in section 5). There is 
therefore very little flexibility in terms of staff time and budget to carry out 
additional activity over and above the approved Plan. However the nature of 
international trade development is both proactive and reactive and, while careful 
planning of the 2014/2015 International Trade Plan addresses the proactive side, 

Agenda Item 7(e)

Page 135



 2

there are increasingly frequent requests from partner organisations, Elected 
Members, foreign Governments etc to the International Trade team to react to 
and engage in additional international business activities. The team endeavours 
to respond as positively as possible, while acknowledging that capacity is 
necessarily strictly limited. 
 
In the Administration’s 2013/2014 budget agreed in February 2013, a budget line 
of £25,000 was approved to enable the Depute Provost to take on a specific role 
in supporting international trade activity, and the remaining balance of this budget 
has been accrued into 2014/2015 to provide continuity of this activity. The two 
activities described in this report will be charged to this budget. 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 
Health and Safety: The health and safety implications of all overseas journeys 
are taken into account during planning, with any exceptional implications to be 
addressed at the time. Officers regularly review the travel advice provided by the 
Foreign and Commonwealth Office and are in contact with counterparts in-
country to ensure information is accurate and up-to-date. When participating in 
overseas journeys, Council officers and Elected Members are covered by the 
Council’s insurance policy. A risk assessment is carried out for each overseas 
journey. 
 
Risk Management: The risks associated with not delivering the International 
Trade Plan 2014/2015 are:  
 

• City companies would have significantly reduced opportunities to enter 
new export markets and exploit export opportunities;  

• Aberdeen’s position as a global energy capital would be compromised if 
there was no local support, for example, to host high-level visiting 
business delegations; likewise, there would be a serious risk of loss of 
visibility on the world energy industry stage if profile was not maintained at 
key overseas trade events; 

• The Council would not be fulfilling its obligations in the Single Outcome 
Agreement, the vision for Smarter Aberdeen, or the role set out in the 
Scottish Economic Recovery Plan, which places internationalisation as 
“one of the central priorities for the acceleration of the Scottish recovery”; 

• Loss of targeted local support to local businesses could contribute to their 
failure, or their decision to relocate from Aberdeen. 

 
Staffing: The International Trade team is currently staffed by one full-time Senior 
Executive (International Trade and Investment) and two full-time International 
Trade Executives. The successful delivery of the approved International Trade 
Plan is dependent on a fully-staffed team. Market prioritisation is considered very 
carefully to ensure staffing resources are targeted where they can deliver most 
value and benefit to local companies. However, any requests to deliver 
international trade activities over and above those in the Plan are subject to the 
availability of appropriate staff and budget resources. In this instance, the team is 
being asked to make available an officer to plan both additional activities. This 
may result in other planned work from the approved International Trade Plan 

Page 136



 3

being delayed or, if necessary, discontinued in order to accommodate the 
additional demands. 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
The International Trade team helps to create the conditions for sustainable 
economic growth in the City by providing strategic support to City businesses to 
enhance their internationalisation (eg increase export of products and services).  
 
The team does this by working effectively in partnership with key local, national 
and international partners to enhance the City’s strategic profile and position as a 
global energy capital, and as an even better place in which to work, live, invest 
and visit. 
 
In practical terms, this means supporting trade missions, hosting inward business 
delegations, facilitating contacts between local and international companies, 
holding business seminars, attending key industry conferences and exhibitions 
and providing the local business community with market intelligence.  
 
In many of these activities, the team works in partnership with Scottish 
Development International, UK Trade and Investment and other local and 
national organisations via the North East of Scotland Trade Group to ensure the 
focus of the work is demand-led and there is a coordinated approach to 
international trade activity.  
 
In the 2014/2015 International Trade Plan, the priority sector was identified as 
energy and the priority markets were identified as: 
 

• US 
• Canada 
• Brazil 
• Norway 
• Australia 
• Mozambique 
• South Korea 
• World Energy Cities Partnership fellow member cities 

 
The priority activities were identified as: 
 

• Attending industry conferences and exhibitions – taking an exhibition 
stand at some, simply having a proactive, mobile presence at others 

• Where appropriate, leading or accompanying) trade missions to target 
markets 

• Where appropriate, carrying out targeted fact-finding and “pump-priming” 
visits to initiate strategic inter-governmental/business links 

• Hosting (both through proactively attracting and responding to requests 
from partners) key inward business delegations from main target markets 

• Hosting business seminars for local companies 
• Making better use of existing networks such as World Energy Cities 

Partnership, Memoranda of Understanding 

Page 137



 4

 
Visit 1 – Oklahoma 
 
The US is identified in the 2014/2015 International Trade Plan as a Tier One 
(high) priority market. This means that business support will include proactive 
outward and inward activities, for example trade missions, exhibitions, 
conferences, inward visits, local seminars, sponsored events, exploration visits to 
develop new opportunities etc. 
 
To date, activity in this market has focused entirely on Texas and Louisiana, as 
the key centres for the offshore energy industry in the Gulf of Mexico. However, 
the onshore gas industry is widespread across the continental US and 
Oklahoma, the State immediately to the north of Texas, is the US's third-largest 
producer of natural gas, fifth-largest producer of crude oil, has the second-
greatest number of active drilling rigs and ranks fifth in crude oil reserves. As a 
whole, the oil energy industry contributes $35 billion to Oklahoma's gross 
domestic product, and employees of Oklahoma oil-related companies earn an 
average of twice the state's typical yearly income. Eight and a half percent of the 
US's natural gas supply is held in Oklahoma, with 1.673 trillion cubic feet 
(47.4 km3) being produced in 2009. 
 
The Depute Provost has received an invitation from Professor Steven Agee, 
Dean of Meinders School of Business, Oklahoma City University, to participate in 
a panel session on current energy industry activities in the UK, Canada and 
Mexico at the International Energy Conference in Oklahoma City on 15 October 
2014. 
 
There is an existing approval in the 2014/2015 International Trade Plan for the 
Depute Provost and one Officer to be in Louisiana, US at this time anyway, 
therefore this proposal relates only to the request for the inclusion of a short 
“add-on” visit to Oklahoma City to enable the Depute Provost and Corporate 
Director to attend and address the International Energy Conference in Oklahoma 
City on 15 October. 
 
The additional costs are estimated at £400 per person and would be charged to 
the Depute Provost’s international trade budget. 
 
Visit 2 – Mozambique 
 
Mozambique is identified in the 2014/2015 International Trade Plan as a Tier 
Two (medium) priority market. This means that business support will include 
some outward but mainly local or inward events such as seminars and hosting 
visiting delegations. 
 
Onshore oil and gas production has been developed in Mozambique since the 
1950s-1970s. In the past three years, however, Mozambique has raised 
substantial interest and expectations in the global oil and gas industry due to very 
recent major offshore discoveries. “Mozambique may hold the world’s fourth 
largest reserve and could become the world’s third largest natural gas exporter” 
(Maplecroft Analytics Report, 20 June 2013).  
 

Page 138



 5

The new potential is mainly offshore gas (LNG production) in deep-water 
reserves – the kind of development in which Aberdeen companies have 
particular expertise. So far the main international players have been Anadarko 
(US), ENI (Italy) and Statoil (Norway) but there are significant opportunities for 
Aberdeen-based supply chain companies to engage in this emerging export 
market. 
 
Both Scottish Development International and Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber 
of Commerce have taken trade missions to Mozambique in the last year and all 
the interested parties seek to coordinate their trade support efforts through the 
North East of Scotland Trade Group, to avoid duplication. 
 
Since the President of Mozambique’s visit to Aberdeen in July 2013, the 
International Trade team has hosted three senior Government or academic 
visiting delegations from Mozambique – one academic focused delegation in May 
2014 from Eduardo Mondlane University; one Government delegation in July 
2014 led by the Minister for State Administration; and one Government 
delegation in August 2014 led by the Minister for Fisheries. 
 
In addition, as part of the approved 2014/2015 International Trade Plan, 
Corporate Director Gordon McIntosh and the Depute Provost visited 
Mozambique in March 2014 and attended (with the Corporate Director 
addressing) the MMEC 2014 energy conference in Maputo. 
 
Discussions have continued since July 2013 with the Mozambican High 
Commission in London to continue to develop the strategic relationship between 
Aberdeen and Mozambique, particularly the Cabo Delgado Province and its 
capital city Pemba, from where Mozambique’s emerging offshore energy industry 
operations will be based. The purpose of developing this relationship is to create 
the optimal conditions for Aberdeen-based businesses to win contracts in this 
major emerging energy province. Discussions have also included the possibility 
of a future Memorandum of Understanding with Pemba/Cabo Delgado, which 
would be the subject of a separate report. 
 
The next step in the process is a proposed visit by the Depute Provost and 
Corporate Director Gordon McIntosh to Cabo Delgado Province and its capital 
city Pemba in November or December 2014. Final dates are to be agreed with 
the High Commission in London but are likely to be, according to proposals from 
the High Commission, either early November or early December, the latter being 
considered to enable the delegates to attend the Mozambique Gas Summit in 
Maputo 2-5 December. 
 
Costs are estimated at £1700 per person (excluding Mozambique Gas Summit 
costs, which would be approximately an additional £2000 per person at 
commercial rates, though the team would seek to secure a significantly reduced 
rate, if attending the Summit) and will be met from the Depute Provost’s 
international trade budget as described in section 3. 
 
Following this proposed visit in November/December, the next step is likely to be 
participation in a joint trade mission with Scottish Development International to 

Page 139



 6

take companies out to Mozambique, most likely in Q1 2015. This trade mission 
has already been approved in the 2014/2015 International Trade Plan. 
 
6. IMPACT 
 
Corporate: The contents of the report relate directly to delivering the economic 
development aspects of the Single Outcome Agreement: 
 
National Outcome 1 – We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for 
doing business in Europe 
National Outcome 2 - We realise our full economic potential with more and better 
employment opportunities for our people 
Local Outcome – Anchor the Oil and Gas Industry 
Local Outcome – Diversification of the Economy 
 
The contents of the report also relate directly to delivering the economic 
development aspects of the Administration’s Smarter Aberdeen vision. 
 
An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment is not required for this report. 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
International Trade Plan 2014/2015 (EPI Committee approved Jan 2014) 
International Trade Additional Commitments (Council approved June 2013) 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Elaine Robertson 
Business Growth Manager 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
Tel 01224 522940 
Email elrobertson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

Page 140



 

 7

Appendix A: Agenda for International Energy 

Conference, Oklahoma, 15 October 2014 

8:00 – 8:30 a.m. 

Registration, Continental Breakfast 

 

8:30 – 8:45 a.m. 

Welcome 

Dr. Steven C. Agee - CONFIRMED 

Dean and Professor of Economics 

Meinders School of Business 

Oklahoma City University 

 

8:45 – 9:30 a.m. 

Vello Kuuskraa - CONFIRMED 

President  

Advanced Resources International, Inc. 

 

9:30 – 10:15 a.m. 

The Development of Horizontal Drilling & Early Frac 

Treatments- Lessons Learned from Mitchell Energy and 

Devon Experiences 

John Richels - CONFIRMED 

President and CEO 

Devon Energy 

 

10:15 – 10:30 a.m. 

Break 

 

10:30 – 11:00 a.m. 

Future Technological Developments in Energy 

Exploration and Production 

C. Michael Ming - CONFIRMED 

General Manager 

GE Global Energy Research Center – Oklahoma City 

 

11:00 a.m. -12:00 p.m. 

New Cutting-Edge Technologies in Oil & Gas Industry –

Panel - 

John A. Arrell, Jr. ATK Defense Group-CONFIRMED 

Professor Peter Malin, Director Institute of Earth 

Science and Engineering, The University of Auckland, 

New Zealand-CONFIRMED 

 

Halliburton, TBA 

GE Oil & Gas, TBA 

Helmerich & Payne, TBA 

 

Jay Albert (GE) - Moderator 

 

12:00 p.m. – 1:00 p.m. 

Adjourn to Luncheon Hall and Lunch 

 

1:00 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 

Keynote Address - INVITED 

Dr. Ernie Moniz 

U.S. Secretary of Energy 

 

 

1:45 – 2:15 p.m. 

Matthew T. McManus - CONFIRMED 

U.S. State Department 

 

2:15 – 3:15 p.m. 

International Energy Activity – GUESTS INVITED 

UK, Canada, Mexico 

 

3:00 – 3:15 p.m. 

Break 

 

3:15 – 4:15 p.m. (Panel Discussion) 

“Communications in the Energy Industry”  

 

C. Renzi Stone – Moderator - CONFIRMED 

Chairman & CEO of Saxum 

 

Jillian Ryan – Panelist-CONFIRMED 

Founding Partner 

Geopolitical Advisory Partners 

 

Katrina Craigwell - Panelist 

Global Digital Programming 

GE 

 

Maria Amezaga - Panelist 

Global Social Media Strategist 

Shell  

 

Dave Samson 

General Manager, Public Affairs 

Chevron Corporation 

 

4:15 – 4:55 p.m. 

Keynote Address- INVITED 

William F. Martin- Former U.S. Deputy Secretary of 

Energy, Energy Economist, and International Diplomat 

 

4:55 – 5:00 p.m. 

Closing - CONFIRMED 

Dr. Steven C. Agee 

Meinders School of Business 

 

5:00 – 6:00 p.m. 

Reception 

 

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9(a)

Page 143

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 9 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5(a) Business Statement
	7(a) Organisational Review (Phase Two)
	7(b) Committee Structures
	7(c) Camping in Designated Places Update
	Camping in Designated Places - Appendix 1

	7(d) SIP New Build Housing Budget
	SIP Affordable Housing Report Appendix 1 Sites

	7(e) International Trade Overseas Travel
	9(a) Accelerate Aberdeen - Digital Connectivity Update

